
   Department of Transportation 
   Board of Directors  
                                   Notice of Public Meeting 
   1263 South Stewart Street 
   Third Floor Conference Room 
   Carson City, Nevada 
   November 13, 2013 – 9:00 a.m. 

 
AGENDA 

 
1. Receive Director’s Report – Informational item only. 
 
2. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 

Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins. Informational item only. 

 
3. October 14, 2013 Nevada Department of Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 

Minutes – For possible action. 
 
5. Approval of Contracts over $5,000,000 – For possible action. 

 
6. Approval of Agreements over $300,000 – For possible action. 
 
7. Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational item only.  
 
8. Condemnation Resolution – For possible action. 
  

a. Condemnation Resolution No. 441 – SR-650, South McCarran Boulevard; RTC 
Washoe widening project; from Longley Lange to Greg Street, in the City of Reno and 
the City of Sparks, Washoe County, NV  3 owners; 2 parcels 

 
9. Direct Sale – For possible action. 
 

a. Disposal of NDOT property located along US-95, between Decatur Boulevard and 
Valley View Boulevard in the City of Las Vegas, NV  SUR 08-24 
 

10. Public Auction – For possible action. 
 

a. Disposal of NDOT property located along a portion of US-395, between College 
Parkway Interchange and Arrowhead Drive Interchange in Carson City, NV 
SUR 12-15  

 
11. Discussion and Possible Approval of the Annual Work Program Fiscal Year (FY) 2014, 

Short  and Long Range Element FY 2015 – 2023 and Possible Acceptance of the 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) FY 2014-2017– For possible 
action. 

 
12. Briefing on Fuel Tax Indexing – Informational item only. 
 
13. Receive a Report on the Status of Future I-11 and the Intermountain West Corridor Study 

– Informational item only. 
  

  



14. Old Business 
 

a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters – Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report – Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated October 30, 2013 – Informational item only. 
d. Summary of Agreements for Kimley-Horn & Associates and Transcore ITS, LLC – 

Informational item only. 
 

15. Public Comment – limited to no more than three (3) minutes. The public may comment on 
Agenda items prior to action by submitting a request to speak to the Chairman before the 
Meeting begins.  Informational item only. 

 
16. Adjournment – For possible action. 

 
Notes:   
 

• Items on the agenda may be taken out of order. 
• The Board may combine two or more agenda items for consideration 
• The Board may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion relating to an item on the agenda 

at any time. 
• Reasonable efforts will be made to assist and accommodate physically handicapped persons desiring 

to attend the meeting. Requests for auxiliary aids or services to assist individuals with disabilities or 
limited English proficiency should be made with as much advance notice as possible to the 
Department of Transportation at (775) 888-7440.  

• This meeting is also expected to be available via video-conferencing, but is at least available via 
teleconferencing, at the Nevada Department of Transportation District One Office located at 123 East 
Washington, Las Vegas, Nevada in the Conference Room and at the District III Office located at 1951 
Idaho Street, Elko, Nevada. 

• Copies of non-confidential supporting materials provided to the Board are available upon request. 
• Request for such supporting materials should be made to Holli Stocks at (775) 888-7440 or 

hstocks@dot.state.nv.us. Such supporting material is available at 1263 South Stewart Street, Carson 
City, Nevada 89712 and if available on-line, at www.nevadadot.com. 
 

This agenda was posted at www.nevadadot.com and at the following locations: 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation Nevada Dept. of Transportation 
1263 South Stewart Street 123 East Washington  310 Galletti Way 
Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada   Sparks, Nevada 
 
Nevada Dept. of Transportation Governor’s Office   Clark County    
1951 Idaho Street  Capitol Building   200 Lewis Avenue 
Elko, Nevada   Carson City, Nevada  Las Vegas, Nevada 
 
Carson City    Washoe County 
885 East Musser Street   75 Court Street 
Carson City, Nevada   Reno, Nevada 
 
 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Governor Brian Sandoval 
Attorney General Catherine Cortez Masto 
Controller Kim Wallin 
Frank Martin 
Len Savage 
Tom Fransway 
Rudy Malfabon 
Bill Hoffman 
Dennis Gallagher 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Sandoval: Good morning, everyone.  I'd like to call the Department of Transportation 
Board of Directors meeting to order.  All members are present.  We will 
begin with Agenda Item No. 1, Presentation of Retirement Plaques to 25+ 
Year Employees.  Mr. Director. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  We have quite a list of retirees, and I believe that one 
is actually present here, so I'm going to kind of save him until last.  Retiring 
from the Las Vegas maintenance crew in District 1, Linda Burns, 26 years 
of experience with the State, primarily with NDOT.  Ren Jackson, who was 
a Highway Maintenance Supervisor 2 in Wells, 27 years.  David Leegard, 
Transportation Planner Analyst 3 in Planning Traffic Division, 24 years.  
Jerry Claussen, who was a Right-of-Way Supervisor here in Carson City, 24 
years.  Albert Chavez, Highway Maintenance Supervisor 2 in District 1, Las 
Vegas, 24 years.  Trish Giomi, recently retired, Transportation Planner 
Analyst 2, Intermodal Planning, 22 years.  Juan Sandoval, no relation, 
Engineer Tech 5 in Right-of-Way Engineering here at headquarters, Carson 
City, 18 years.  Christi Thomson, who we heard is going to go work up in 
Washington State, Administrative Services Officer 3.  She was the head of 
our Administrative Services division downstairs, 16 years.  Robert Wharton, 
Highway Equipment Mechanic 1 in Elko Equipment Shop, 15 years.  
Ronald Wynia, Highway Maintenance Worker 3 in Battle Mountain, 25 
years.  Bill Hamlin, Highway Maintenance Supervisor 1 in Montgomery 
Pass, 15 years.  And last but not least for the photo op, Todd Stefonowicz, 
Administrator 1 Assistant Division Chief in our Structures Division here in 
headquarters, 27 years experience.  So, Todd, if you could come up. 

1 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Sandoval: Todd, you don't look old enough to have 27 years.  Did you start when you 
were 10?  First, on behalf of the Board, as well as the Department of 
Transportation, I'd like to present you with this service clock to recognize all 
of your commitment to the State of Nevada.  We truly appreciate it.  27 
years.  That's remarkable. 

 Just one other comment.  As I was writing down the years, that's over 200 
years of experience that we've had the benefit of from each one of these 
individuals. And I'm sure it will be very difficult to replace that type of 
commitment over the years.  So I, you know, Director Malfabon, on behalf 
of the Board, if you will convey to each and every one of these individuals 
how much we appreciate their service to the State of Nevada, I'd truly 
appreciate it.  Thank you. 

Fransway: That's combined, Governor.  That's combined 50 years more than the State 
of Nevada. 

Sandoval: Yes. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Consider it done.  Moving on to… 

Sandoval: We'll move on to Agenda Item No. 2, which is Presentation of Awards. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  We have a few awards that we received from the 
American Society of Civil Engineers, Truckee Meadows Branch, for the 
outstanding achievement in civil engineering, environmental, for State 
Route 431, Erosion Control Project.  Let me get my cheat sheet here.  And I 
believe that project was overseen by John Angel, the Resident Engineer 
from District 2, and who was the designer on that, John, do you recall?  It 
was in our Hydraulics Division, primarily with Roadway Design, and we 
just wanted to extend appreciation to John for the performance of that 
project, our contractor, and the folks in Design that worked on that. 

 From Engineering News Record Southwest, the Best Project for Highways 
and Bridges category, the Interstate 580 Project was named the Engineering 
News Record Southwest Best Highway and Bridge Project.  Pete Booth had 
several REs on that project.  It was a lengthy project.  It started out with 
Rich Holmes, who is retired, Pete Booth who is retired.  Brad Durski 
became the resident engineer on that project and saw it through completion, 
and Rick Bosch also worked on that project.  He's currently Assistant 
District Engineer for Construction.  So thanks to them, also to Fisher and 

2 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

their construction team, as well as the multitude of folks that worked on it 
from the design side.  We had various project managers as well, and I think 
Todd Montgomery, who recently retired, worked on that as a project 
manager, as well as some others.  Tony Lorenzi, I think, finished out project 
management on that one. 

 The next award was the Intelligent Transportation Society of Nevada, ITS 
Nevada, for the ITS Project of the Year over $2 million.  It was the I-15 ITS 
Design-Build Project from 215 Beltway to Stateline, Integrated Traffic 
Camera System.  This project -- as we've been trying to operate our system 
better without adding a lot of capacity because of the limited funding, we 
find that it's more beneficial to operate it with cameras, ramp meters, that 
kind of thing, and we have to have communications with those devices.  So 
to set up that type of system we have to put in fiber optic, and that's what 
this project accomplished all the way down to Stateline.  So appreciate the 
efforts of our resident engineer, Glenn Petrenko, on this project.  Tony 
Lorenzi was the project manager.  The name of the contractor escapes me, 
but congratulations to that team on this award, as well. 

Sandoval: And, Mr. Director, before you move on, similarly on behalf of the Board, 
please convey our appreciation and congratulations for everyone who was 
involved in acquiring these awards, and typically you bring the hardware.  
We didn't get the see the -- so next time if you'd bring those, because I think 
it is a big point of pride for the Department to be able to win this significant 
of awards.  I mean, looking at the I-580 Project, there were 90 projects in 19 
categories entered by project owners, and for us to win that is extremely 
significant and a great compliment to the organization. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor. 

Fransway: Governor? 

Sandoval: Yes, Tom? 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you, Governor.  And thanks to everyone that was involved in 
all three of these prestigious awards.  But the second one really caught my 
attention.  And I think it would be deserving of a press release.  I believe 
that it's been a long, expensive project, and I think the people would be 
pleased to know that NDOT and the people who worked on this project are 
deserving of such a prestigious award.  So, do you agree, Governor? 

3 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Malfabon: Thank you, Member Fransway. 

Sandoval: Sure.  I mean, I see our PIO here, and head nodding.  So we'll get that done 
without any -- is there any objection from Board members?  So, yes, if we 
could do that. 

Fransway: Thanks, Scott.  Thank you, Governor. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: Agenda Item No. 3, Director's Report. 

Malfabon: A lot to report this time, so I'll get right into it.  Obviously, the Federal 
shutdown has been on everyone's mind, and I wanted to report that it's not 
having major effects on the Department of Transportation because the 
Federal Highway Administration is not directly impacted.  They didn't have 
to furlough their employees like some other modal agencies, Federal 
Railroad Administration, Federal Aviation Administration, for nonessential 
or noncritical staff.  And, also, one of the impacts to NDOT is from Federal 
Transit Administration, who had to furlough approximately 95 percent of 
their staff.  So what it -- how it affects NDOT is that we have agreements 
with rural transit providers to provide services to folks, a lot of seniors that 
have to get into the urban areas for medical treatment, to go shopping.  So 
we felt that it was essential to continue what we've agreed to with those rural 
transit providers.  Hopefully the payments will be processed in a timely 
manner, and this issue of the federal shutdown will be dealt with soon.  We 
know that there's discussions between the Senate leadership and the House 
leadership.  There's no agreement yet, but we're hopeful that because of the 
looming debt-ceiling issue, October 17th is the deadline for that, that they 
could come to some agreement before that date on this whole issue, and at 
least extend the budget for another three months or so. 

Sandoval: But in the meantime, that rural transportation will continue? 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor.  We felt that it was important to continue that.  Basically the 
process is they provide the service, they invoice the State by the agreement 
with NDOT, and then we pay that and then we get reimbursed by the 
Federal Transit Administration.  So we'll continue that so that Nevadans 
continue to receive that service and there's no layoffs in the transit agencies 
that provide that service. 

4 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Sandoval: All right.  Thank you. 

Malfabon: We're hearing that there might be some movement on a deal between the 
House and Senate.  We're not sure, but it's something that we're going to 
watch closely.  As I said, it's not affecting us too bad, as far as the highway 
program, but we'll watch it on the transit level. 

 
The other thing that the federal government shutdown is affecting is the 
Federal Highway Administration was going to issue performance measures, 
and they were looking at safety as the first performance measure to be 
issued to the states.  It's a rule-making process, so it takes a lot of time, but 
they hope to get that out by the end of the year, but they're probably thinking 
January of next year they'll issue that potential rule that will impose a safety 
performance measure.  We've been tracking safety and reporting it to the 
Board, as well as to the FHWA, on a regular basis.  So it's not going to have 
a major impact, but the states are concerned that there not be any penalties 
associated with not meeting a national goal, that the states be allowed to 
achieve their goals based on their issues within their own state.  Such as in 
Nevada we have issues with what we call run-off-the-road accidents, or lane 
departures.  So we want to concentrate on that.  We want to concentrate on 
pedestrians.  We want to concentrate on people that are not buckled up, and 
also impaired driving. 

 Good news on the federal front.  We received notice after the last Board 
meeting that we received 7.3 million of August redistribution.  That is funds 
that are not obligated by other states for their federal funds.  So that goes 
back in the pot and we were able to get that money awarded to Nevada and 
apply it to existing obligations.  So that's an additional 7.3 million that will 
go into the highway fund. 

 Recently the Federal Railroad Administration issued a Notice of Intent 
rescinding a notice where they were going to study the environmental 
impact statement for the high-speed rail corridor, Las Vegas to Anaheim.  
This was also known as the Maglev Project.  Their reason for rescinding that 
notice was inactivity and the preliminary EIS phase of more than five years 
inactivity.  So we will be meeting with the Maglev Group still.  They would 
like to try to access some earmarks that were there in the past.  There is 
some confusion whether that earmark money is still available, because 
Senator Reid, years ago, got Nevada some more obligation limits so that we 

5 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

could spend the money on the airport connector for the Clark County 
project.  So federal funds went to that project.  It was about a $36 million 
project, but there's some confusion, and whether that money is still 
accessible to Nevada or not has to be seen, but some folks feel that it's 
already been spent on that airport connector project, and not available to the 
Maglev Group.  But we'll continue to meet with them and have discussions 
with the Federal Highway Administration on that project. 

Sandoval: Mr. Lieutenant Governor. 

Krolicki: Rudy, just for clarification.  I read those news accounts and I didn't know it 
was just related to the Maglev (inaudible) or whatever the successor name, 
DesertXpress.  I thought it was high-speed rail between Southern Nevada 
and Southern California.  So is -- or is that a separate item? 

Malfabon: Lieutenant Governor and Board members, there was a separate action taken 
where they basically didn't -- they chose not to award the loan request from 
the XpressWest group, formerly known as DesertXpress.  So Federal 
Railroad Administration did take action separately on that one.  There was a 
loan request under a separate railroad program, significant amount -- 
hundreds of millions of dollars applied for but not approved by the Federal 
Railroad Administration. 

Krolicki: Okay.  I can see why there's not an environmental assessment necessary. 

Malfabon: Yes.  The DesertXpress, also recently changed their name to XpressWest, 
already had their environment approval.  So this environment impact 
statement was related to the Maglev all the way to Anaheim. 

 And recent press releases were made about the TRIP report.  The TRIP is a 
nonprofit transportation research group based in Washington DC, and 
basically the members are contractors, consultant engineers, equipment 
manufacturers, suppliers, and they usually gather a lot of information and 
report that.  Their theme is usually related to pavement condition or safety 
issues, user costs related to the condition of America's transportation system.  
But the recent news was that Reno was at the top of a bad list there in 
pavement condition.  They were number 2 out of 62 urban areas with a 
population between 250,000 and 500,000, whereas Las Vegas was actually 
near the bottom of that bad list.  Las Vegas was ranked 67th out of 75 urban 
areas with a population of 500,000 or more.  The basis of this information is 

6 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

primarily looking at pavement condition, which we believe is gathered from 
the Federal Highway Performance Monitoring System, HPMS.  So NDOT 
collects a lot of the pavement condition information and feeds it into this 
national database, and it's accessible by the public.  So we believe that's the 
basis for this issue, but a lot of this does not consider -- because the 
information in the HPMS system is always dated.  It's not as current as some 
of the information or accounting for some of the recent projects that we 
completed on I-15 -- I mean, well, I-15 we have finished some, but I-80 in 
the Reno area, primarily I-80, 580, some of the recent improvements on 
those roads would not be into this HPMS system.  We believe that it 
wouldn't be considered by this TRIP report.  So we believe that we are 
improving some of the roadway system in Reno, and there are some other 
roads that are considered -- they're classified as collectors, arterials, on up to 
expressways and interstate, so all these roads are classified according to how 
they're used and how much volume of traffic is on them, but we feel that 
there's only so much that the state is responsible for.  So we wanted to make 
that point that we are putting in some additional funding in some of our 
major roads in Reno, but there isn't enough funding to go around, obviously, 
for some of the other -- you know, the Washoe County arterials to receive 
the amount of pavement preservation work that they need.  In Las Vegas the 
condition is a bit better, but I think that that's just an indication that both the 
state and the local entities are doing their best to keep up with the pavement 
preservation needs. 

Sandoval: And Director Malfabon, how dated is that?  Do you know… 

Malfabon: I couldn't tell by looking at the information.  We'd have to dig into that, 
Governor, and answer that at the next Board meeting, I think. 

Sandoval: But at least it's your opinion that that was measured before the I-80 project, 
before the 395 project, before the 580 was completed?  Because , frankly, I 
can't think of a major road, north, south, east, or west, in Northern Nevada 
that hasn't been worked on within the last two years. 

Malfabon: In looking at the breakdown of the information, there was a substantial 
amount that was poor, but we couldn't dig into it and find out how much 
without looking into the HPMS data, where these categories of poor, 
mediocre, fair, and good came from.  So we'd have to correlate that to what 
year that information is currently in the system.  But we'll look into that, 
Governor.  I don't believe that it did consider some of the recent projects 

7 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

though that -- we do load that information in as we go out there and measure 
it, but I don't think that the TRIP report -- usually it's a little bit dated 
information that gets in the TRIP report because they started that report a 
while ago before the information from the recent projects would be fed into 
the system. 

Sandoval: And the other complicating factor is that the local roads are mixed in with 
the state roads, so it's probably difficult to extract which is which in there.  
Is that kind of the point you were making? 

Malfabon: Yes.  There's definitely a mixture of local roads in that.  We tried to work 
with the locals to collect the information even on the local roads, but they're 
still responsible for those local roads. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller. 

Wallin: Thank you.  Director Malfabon, to follow up on this, I know last year we 
had an issue with the vehicle that tests the smoothness of the roads or 
whatever, and that kind of impacts our financial reporting, how we -- 
whether we depreciate or expense some of the maintenance that we do.  
Have you guys fixed that vehicle because that's another thing that we had 
to… 

Malfabon: Yes.  I believe that we did correct that, Madam Controller. 

Wallin: Okay.  Great. 

Malfabon: It was soon after you asked the question that we -- it was about a year ago 
that we did address that. 

 Continuing on.  Recently we had a lot of public meetings.  Last week we 
had one on the U.S. 395 Pyramid Highway Connection.  That is in a draft 
environmental impact statement phase, and we will bring that forward, as far 
as a presentation to the Board, on what that project is.  That project is a huge 
project for a new road that would connect Pyramid Highway and U.S. 395 
and relieve some of the traffic that's currently congesting Pyramid Highway.  
Being that's in the draft EIS stage, it will take a while before it's in the final 
environmental stage, and then those types of projects that are of that scope 
take years to even deliver in phases, subject to available funding. 

8 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

 Recently, we presented to the Board about the disparity study.  Those public 
meetings are coming up October 22nd and 24th in Las Vegas and in Reno 
with videoconferencing to the other major maintenance stations in Northern 
Nevada from the Reno area on the 24th. 

 We recently had meetings on I-11, and I wanted to make it clear that there's 
a lot of meetings being held on this Future I-11 corridor, both in Arizona 
and Nevada.  Last week, they had three meetings in Kingman, Phoenix, and 
Tucson, and October 16th is the stakeholder partner meeting in Northern 
Nevada at the Carson City Community Center, 5:30 p.m., and with a 
stakeholder meeting at 2:00 p.m.  So the public meeting is at 5:30 on that 
date.  Las Vegas is going to have the meeting October 17th.  The 
stakeholder, again, is at 2:00 p.m., and the public meeting is at 5:30, and 
that's at our District 1 training room.  These meetings are just to get some of 
the stakeholder input; things like freight, economic development, some of 
the major concerns with this new interstate going in.  And it's of a particular 
interest in Arizona because they have a lot more work to do to deliver their 
portion.  In Nevada, as far as the area between Phoenix and Las Vegas, 
we've got our corridor defined by what we've been calling the Boulder City 
bypass as the Future I-11 Project.  So this study is looking at which 
corridors could be looked at to the north of Las Vegas, whether it would be 
on the west side.  There's a lot of interest to have it on that side.  There's a 
lot of interest to have it along U.S. 93 which is the existing NAFTA 
corridor.  But for the most part, this study will not come up with a defined 
corridor.  It would just come up with just a lesser number, because they're 
looking at various corridors and come up with a lower number of 
alternatives that could be taken to the next level of study. 

Sandoval: Who is the ultimate decision maker with regard to the 93 versus the 95 
corridors? 

Malfabon: The Transportation Board is. 

Sandoval: This Board? 

Malfabon: So it'll be -- we'll come up with the environmental impact statement but it'll 
be up to a lot of -- the Board will have input on that, as well.  So what we 
looked at is when it gets to the point of actually being constructed, they have 
to go through the environmental process so it'll look at what makes sense 
from the purpose and need that's defined for the project.  If the purpose and 

9 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

need is focused on economic development and movement of freight, it will 
define what is going to be the corridor that will be chosen out of those 
alternatives. 

Sandoval: So you'll have the environmental study, but would we also have available to 
us the physical study as to what the costs would be, one versus the other, 
impacts on communities, one versus the other? 

Malfabon: Yes.  All of those things will be looked into, Governor, and we'll have a -- 
actually, next month we could give the Board a presentation on some of -- 
the current status of the corridor study. 

Sandoval: Because I'd like to know what the criteria is going to be that is going to go 
into the ultimate decision point for this Board.  Because it's really important 
that we have the right facts loaded into that process so that when this Board 
makes that decision, we can know that.  And when we have these meetings, 
or when you have these meetings, one in Carson, one in Las Vegas, I want 
to make sure that the proper notices go to the rural communities, because, 
you know, when you look at each of those corridors, there are rural 
communities there that are going to be affected, as well. 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor.  And definitely -- the time to give the input that will kind of 
lead to the selection of the proper corridor is during the defining the purpose 
and need for the project.  So when it gets to the environmental study phase, 
that's when the purpose and need is actually established for the project.  So 
right now they're -- it's kind of a broader study that will define alternatives, 
but then getting those alternatives honed into one corridor will happen 
during the environmental stage. 

Sandoval: And when do you estimate this process will be completed and it would come 
to this Board for a decision? 

Malfabon: I would say that it's probably, for definition of the purpose and need, to go 
forward with that would probably be next year, and then the environmental 
would take several years to complete.  Usually on a project of this 
magnitude -- unfortunately, it takes about five years for a study of this 
magnitude for this type of corridor. 

Sandoval: Well, then that would put even more emphasis on the importance of these 
community meetings right now if those -- what happens there is going to go 
into the calculus over the next five years.  We have put out plenty of notice 

10 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

out there so people are aware that these meetings are about to occur in the 
next week? 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Malfabon: And we've had pretty good stakeholder participation, as well as public 
participation.  We've had previous meetings up in Northern Nevada and 
Southern Nevada.  I that we did have one in Eastern Nevada a while ago as 
well, but most of the ones that are well attended are in the urban areas in 
Reno and Carson City area and Las Vegas, obviously, and then the Arizona 
meetings. 

Sandoval: Any other questions?  Okay.  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor, and thank you, Mr. Director.  The way I hear it is that 
there will be options, 93/95, that come before the Board, and I assume that 
the environmental issues will be also presented before the Board so that we 
can make an informed decision on which option to take.  And then after we 
approve an option, then it will go back to the environmental side of it; 
correct? 

Malfabon: The environmental at this stage for this corridor study is very high level, so 
it's not as detailed as a detailed environmental impact study.  So I would say 
that they're going to come up with some options for corridors, but 
previously there were several different options, not only 93 and 95, but also 
through other alternatives through maybe even a new highway.  I wanted to 
make the point that it is very high level right now in this corridor study, so 
it's going to look at options and it will eventually come up with a lesser 
number of options to the Board, and it's not going to be okay, one or the 
other or at that level to present to the Board to say one or the other at that 
point.  It'll be a lot more work to do before the Board would kind of weigh 
in on which options are the most likely to benefit the state and the residents 
of the state and folks that are hauling freight on these roads. 

Fransway: Okay.  So you mentioned sometime next year it will come before the Board.  
Will that be informational mainly? 

Malfabon: That will be some discussion on purpose and need, defining -- when we go 
into the environmental impact statement and actually look at doing a project, 

11 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

it will -- the first step is to define the purpose and need, and usually we do 
that with stakeholders along that route and definitely the Transportation 
Board should be providing direction to the Department on purpose and need.  
So we'll have a discussion or a presentation next year about what is the 
purpose and need of this interstate route and what are we going to -- try to 
define and nail that down so that we can go forward and do the 
environmental impact study. 

Fransway: Thank... 

Sandoval: That purpose and need will go a long way in implicating which route, I 
would imagine. 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor. 

Sandoval: So that's -- you know, the more information this Board can have leading up 
to that decision, the better. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Thank you, Mr. Malfabon. 

Malfabon: Thank you.  Governor, a question was asked last month about the rubberized 
chip seals and whether the business in Las Vegas, I think it's called Phoenix 
Industries, was the supplier of the recycled rubber tire material.  And we 
looked into that, and it's actually a product that's obtained from Arizona 
from Wright Asphalt.  What it is, is the product that's manufactured in Las 
Vegas is not as fine of a grind.  It's a coarser grind, and what we do is we 
take a much finer ground rubberized material and blend it in with the asphalt 
at the terminal, and then it's shipped to the job site or closer to the job site, 
where it's blended some more.  So I just wanted to respond to that question, 
that it is not the business in Las Vegas that produces the recycled rubber 
product, but it is a product that's blended in Arizona and meets our needs 
because it's a much finer grind material. 

 A little bit of a status report on the EPA issue and our stormwater pollution 
prevention program.  We presently submitted our -- what's called NPDES, 
National Point Discharge Elimination System, MS4 requirements, to the 
Nevada Division of Environmental Protection at the end of last month.  The 
next step would be for us to kind of update the EPA on what our progress 
has been since the last update, which was July 18th of this year.  So we'll 
give regular updates to Environmental Protection Agency so they are 
apprised of what we're doing to enact some of these recommendations from 

12 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

the audit.  Meanwhile, we have hired a consultant for that audit, which the 
agreement was approved by the Board, and we've been talking to a lot of the 
maintenance workers statewide about what's coming up as far as training 
and maybe some improvements in washout stations at some of the 
maintenance yards.  Anything that impacts water quality, we have to be 
careful in what we're doing and make sure that we're complying with the 
EPA audit recommendations. 

 A little update on the Boulder City Bypass.  Pleased to report that on 
November 5th we should be advertising the next phase, which is the frontage 
road, a little bit over a $20 million project.  And the frontage road will be 
along the new kind of south and off the side of the new alignment.  So it's 
not going to be along the U.S. 93/95 route, it's going to be along the new 
alignment of the new Boulder City Bypass Future I-11.  We did get into an 
agreement with the -- or we will be entering into an agreement with the RTC 
of Southern Nevada, as they are proceeding with their phase, which is called 
Phase 2.  It's about a $300 million project, and it's the phase that has a lot of 
earthwork on it that goes up through the mountainous area around Boulder 
City.  They're going to be doing that project as a design-build procurement, 
and we will have participation along the process because we anticipate that 
we're going to be maintaining this entire interstate system when it's a Future 
I-11 designation.  They're looking at -- they're hoping to release their RFP 
for their design-build project, the Southern Nevada RTC, last Thursday, 
so -- they did?  Okay.  So a lot of interest on that project, as well as our 
project.  We'll give an update later on our Project NEON project, which is a 
large project occurring at the same time in Las Vegas.  But we will be 
working closely with RTC.  Our project is advancing, and willing to answer 
any questions.  We will have a more formal presentation in the months to 
come on the Boulder City Bypass. 

 We did also, where -- as far as the procurement of some of the properties 
and some of the legal issues, we had depositions occur in the -- the name 
slips my mind, but... 

Gallagher: Jericho? 

Malfabon: ...Jericho Heights, yes.  The walls came tumbling down.  So we did do the 
depositions on the NDOT staff that were involved in that project, and we'll 
go forward to the court hearings.  I think that we do our first initial 
presentation in November to the court, with the trial expected next year. 

13 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

 Governor and Board members, we will be deferring a presentation on the 
fuel tax indexing measure that was recently enacted in Clark County until 
next month, but we anticipate that there will be significant changes to the 
document that's later on in the Agenda, the Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Program, which is the four-year list of projects that are 
anticipated to be done across the state.  So a lot more to bring forward to 
you on that fuel tax indexing issue, and we probably will have the folks 
from the Department of Motor Vehicles involved, too, because they have 
to -- they're involved in determining the amount of revenue that is 
distributed back to the county through that fuel tax indexing measure.  They 
did come to some discussions with Clark County and the RTC of Southern 
Nevada on how to achieve collection of that fuel tax indexing amount 
starting January 1st of next year, so they have to do it manually while the 
programming is done to their system.  Washoe County, when they enacted 
fuel tax indexing, it took about nine months to complete the programming to 
the system at DMV for that fuel tax collection and redistribution back to the 
county.  So it does take some time, but they felt that it was doable to do it 
manually, and then implement the programming solution next year.  But it 
will not delay the collection of that fuel tax indexing. 

 And that concludes the Director's Report, Governor. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Director Malfabon.  Any questions from Board members?  All 
right.  And we'll move on to Agenda No. 4, Public Comment.  Is there any 
member of the public here in Carson City that would like to provide 
comment to the Board?  Is there anyone present in Las Vegas that would 
like provide comment to the Board? 

Martin: No, sir. 

Sandoval: We'll move on to Agenda Item No. 5, September 9, 2013 Nevada 
Department of Transportation Board of Directors' Meeting Minutes.  Have 
the Members have an opportunity to review the minutes, and are there any 
changes?  Yes. 

Wallin: I just have -- it's not really a change, but in the Minutes for Agenda Item No. 
8, we had requested the slides, and I never -- and I know Mr. Savage 
requested them, as well.  I think we all did, and we never did receive those 
slides, and I did receive a follow-up from Dennis Gallagher on my question 

14 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

about are they an in-state real estate company.  I did get that information, 
but not the slides, so... 

Malfabon: Thank you, Madam Controller.  We will get you those slides, and I 
apologize for missing that. 

Sandoval: If there are no changes, the chair will accept a motion for approval of the 
September 9, 2013 Nevada Department of Transportation Board of 
Directors' Meeting Minutes. 

Wallin: Move to approve. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller has moved to approve.  Is there a second? 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Martin.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor, say 
aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Motion passes unanimously. 

 We will move on to Agenda Item No. 6, Approval of Contracts Over $5 
Million. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Assistant Director for Administration Robert Nellis 
will present this item to the Board. 

Nellis: Governor and members of the Board, good morning.  Robert Nellis, 
Assistant Director for Administration, for the record.  The first Agenda Item 
No. 6, approval of contracts over five million, there's one item under 
Attachment A, Page 3 of 12, for your consideration.  This item is to 
construct a 2.5 mile truck climbing lane on I-15 in Clark County.  The 
Director recommends awarding the contract to Las Vegas Paving 
Corporation in the amount of $35,650,000.  Are there any questions on this 
item? 

Sandoval: Madam Controller? 

Wallin: Thank you.  I do have one question on this contract here.  In the Price 
Sensitivity Report here, you go down to where it talks about mobilization, 
and the engineer's estimate was like 2.1, almost 2.2 million, and they came 

15 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

in -- the low bid was 1.2 million and then the second lowest was 574,000.  
Can you tell me why we had such a difference there? 

Malfabon: I can respond to that, Madam Controller.  The mobilization typically is -- 
and the engineer's estimate is typically a flat percentage, depending on the 
size of the project.  So our designers would've estimated it based on 
whatever -- for that size of project, whatever the associated percentage is.  
But there are controls in -- when a contractor either overbids or underbids 
mobilization.  When they underbid it, that's basically up to them, because 
they don't receive the money as quickly.  But when they overbid it, there are 
controls in our specifications that prevent overpayment so that they're -- 
they only receive the money periodically as the -- it's not a lump sum that 
they get right at the beginning of the job.  It's limited based on our 
specifications. 

Wallin: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Any other questions from Board members on this Agenda item?  If there are 
not, the chair will accept a motion for approval of the contract described in 
Agenda Item No. 6. 

Cortez Masto: Move for approval. 

Sandoval: Attorney General has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 

Krolicki: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Lieutenant Governor.  Any questions or discussion?  All in favor 
say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously.  We'll move on to Agenda Item 
No. 7, Approval of Agreements over 300,000. 

Nellis: Again, for the record, Robert Nellis.  Agenda Item No. 7, there are three 
items under Attachment A for your consideration.  They start on page -- 
actually, just on Page No. 3 of 20.  Are there any questions on any of these 
three items? 

Sandoval: Perhaps if you would just take us quickly through each one. 

16 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Nellis: Thank you, Governor.  On Item No. 1, this is a transportation asset 
management plan in the amount of $383,728, and that's a service provider 
contract. 

 Item No. 2 is for the Central System Software support.  That's for software 
enhancements. 

 And Item No. 3 is upgrading the fiber optic cable along Interstate 80.  That's 
adding bandwidth in Fernley, Lovelock, Wells, to the state-owned Level 3 
fiber optic cable that crosses Nevada along I-80. 

Sandoval: And on that third contract, how is it that we're responsible for the cost of 
adding bandwidth? 

Malfabon: Assistant Director of Operations Rick Nelson looked into that issue, 
Governor. 

Nelson: Good morning, Governor and members of the Board.  For the record, my 
name is Rick Nelson.  I'm the Assistant Director of Operations for the 
Department.  Several years ago, many years ago, probably on the order of 
15 or so, when Williams Brothers ran fiber across Interstate 80 from 
Wendover to Stateline, part of the negotiations that occurred in allowing 
them into our right-of-way were that the Department would be given a 
number of dark fiber in the bundle of hundreds that they ran across the state 
for transportation use.  So what we've done over the years has been to tap 
into that dark fiber and light it up, illuminate it, so we could start running 
our communications across the state on that fiber, and that's how NDOT 
became responsible for it.  What this project will do is install taps, if you 
will, into that fiber across the state, a lot like interchanges on the freeway.  
Just because you live next to a freeway doesn't mean you can actually get 
your car onto it.  So what this project does is it builds these portals, if you 
will, at these eight locations, so the Department can tap into it for our radio 
traffic, for the production kinds of Internet access that we need for our 
maintenance stations, and to provide access for our ITS devices that we have 
along Interstate 80. 

Sandoval: Will other state entities have access for use of this, as well? 

Nelson: The short answer is yes.  We have a very good working relationship with 
EITS and NSHE.  The three of us -- these three state agencies cooperate and 
collaborate in order to move communications traffic across the state.  Just 

17 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

because we can get on to the I-80 fiber, we still NSHE and EITS to get that 
connection back here to headquarters, so... 

Sandoval: And what I have in mind, and I'm just talking off the top of my head, is 
telemedicine and distance learning.  Would those type of -- if there is some 
programming out there, will this assist in those endeavors? 

Nelson: I believe it will. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Any other questions?  Mr. Fransway? 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Rick, I have some questions relative to what the 
Governor just asked.  One of them that wasn't answered is if we have a dark 
fiber in the network, someone must own the cable itself.  I assume it's a 
Sprint cable.  Is it? 

Nelson: I believe it's owned by Level 3 these days.  It was originally put in by 
Williams.  Now, that fiber, I mean, physically is bundled up with the Level 
3 fiber, but we actually -- it's dark fiber, it's dedicated to us.  We've got 
exclusive use for it for transportation purposes. 

Fransway: Okay.  So if there is an incident like a cut cable, for instance, and we find 
ourselves out of service, would we be -- would someone be held accountable 
to restore that service for NDOT? 

Nelson: I believe the answer to that is yes.  This cable that runs across Interstate 80 
is the major connection between Chicago and San Francisco.  It carries an 
awful lot of commercial traffic on it, and I think restoring our four fiber 
would be sort of incidental to getting all of the commercial commerce going 
on that cable.  So whoever is responsible for the cable itself, they would get 
it all fixed up for us. 

Fransway: Okay.  And I notice in our packet that we were able to do this without going 
to bid because of the high risk of failure, and as part of the contract, are we 
guaranteed future maintenance to those circuits or… 

Nelson: Actually, this procurement was competitively -- it was a competitive 
procurement.  It just wasn't low bid.  So it's based on… 

Fransway: Okay. 

Nelson: It's a performance-based procurement, not a low-bid procurement. 

18 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Fransway: Okay.  So you did go out to bid, but we weren't obligated to take the low 
bid? 

Nelson: That's correct. 

Fransway: Okay. 

Nelson: And that's how it was procured, so they knew that going in, that it would be 
based on their ability to perform, not the low bid. 

Fransway: Okay.  And was any future maintenance negotiated into the bid process? 

Nelson: No.  This is just to install the facilities themselves.  Between NDOT and 
NSHE and EITS, we maintain all of this hardware. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you.  Thank you, Governor. 

Martin: I have a question, sir. 

Sandoval: Member Martin, and then Madam Controller. 

Martin: On the Item No. 2 on Page 3 of 20, the Kimley-Horn, when I read the 
information, that was not a competitively bid, or not a competition for the, 
as I recall, for this million dollar contract.  Could you kind of expand on 
why that is? 

Nelson: Well, installing this equipment is extremely technical and sensitive, because 
they're in -- working in and around live communications.  Oh, I'm sorry, 
Member Martin, were you talking about No. 2, the Kimley-Horn Central 
System Software? 

Martin: Yes. 

Nelson: Oh, okay.  I'm sorry.  The -- do you want to take this one, Denise? 

Inda: Denise Inda, Traffic Operations.  Member Martin, the Kimley-Horn 
agreement, Kimley-Horn is the developer of the software system that we 
use.  We call it Central System Software.  It's utilized to control and monitor 
the field devices that we have all along our roads throughout the state.  It's 
used by the RTC FAST group, who manages the roads for us down in the 
Las Vegas area, the interstates, and it's also managed by our two other 
districts in Elko and Reno to control the devices that are (inaudible).  And so 
those are things like cameras, dynamic message signs, ramp meters, 

19 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

anything that's out there, it uses this software to talk and control back and 
forth.  We implemented this software a number of years ago through a 
selective competitive process and Kimley-Horn was the firm that won.  At 
this point, because we have an investment in this program, they have 
developed the algorithms and the software itself, and so it's in the 
Department's best interest to continue utilizing the folks who actually 
developed and know the software best.  And so we were able to work 
through the sole source process that's available to us, and we were allowed 
to work directly with them to continue service of our software system. 

Martin: Okay.  So when we set ourselves up for sole sourcing a number of years 
ago, did we negotiate any rates for the engineers?  Any rates for the 
upgrades, anything like that or we just are stuck with whatever Kimley-Horn 
decides to charge us? 

Inda: No, sir.  We negotiate with them.  Each round of awarding, we put out -- 
this next -- for example, this agreement goes for four years.  And so what we 
did is we utilized the data that we had, all of the expenses and the 
expenditures and the work that has been done for the past eight years.  We 
looked all of that, and we utilized that to negotiate the rates for this next four 
years.  And you're asking -- one thing that you did ask, the hourly rates that 
we are paying Kimley-Horn for any changes that go beyond the regular 
maintenance portion, we actually kept them at the same rates that they've 
been using for the -- that they were using on the previous agreement.  So we 
worked very hard to keep the cost down as much as possible, and we did not 
let them raise the rates as they initially suggested.  You know, it's all part of 
the negotiation process. 

Martin: So the million dollars is for maintenance, or is it for enhancements? 

Inda: It's for both.  The agreement is broken down into two parts.  We know that 
there is a certain amount of support and maintenance that the system 
requires, that the software requires, and so that breaks down to about 13 
hours a month, and we're paying them $35,000 a year to take care and 
maintain the system.  They are able to network in, look at the system, work 
with our IT folks, work with our district staff, and just keep the system 
running because, obviously, when you have a system that runs devices that 
are actually regulatory devices, you need quick response and quick 
turnaround when something like a dynamic message sign can't be 
communicated with or the ramp meters down in Las Vegas can't be 

20 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

communicated with.  So they're -- it allows them to be available and 
accessible and to make quick turnaround changes. 

 The other component of the agreement is it's actually only paid out as we 
need the work to be done, and it's based on agreed hourly rates for the 
different people who work on that, the different levels of employees.  And 
when we decide that something needs to be done.  For example, something 
that might occur, maybe not regularly, but it does occur, is if a device that 
we have out on the road, if the manufacturer of that device upgrades or 
changes the operating system of that device, sometimes -- because they don't 
care about us, you know, they use their priorities and their preferences.  
Those upgrades might change the way our Central System Software needs to 
communicate with it.  And so they will -- we will have to go in and tweak 
our software or tweak the algorithms so that it can make -- you know, 
control the device like it always has, turning the camera, different functions 
that we might be able to do, maybe the different fonts on a dynamic message 
sign.  These things that seem simple sometimes aren't simple.  And so we 
will -- when changes like that occur, we will work with Kimley-Horn and 
negotiate how many hours we're going to pay them to make whatever 
changes we need them to make so that we can continue operating the 
devices and utilizing our investment that's out in the field. 

Martin: Okay.  Because when I looked on Page 15 of 20 for the rates, it's all zeroes. 

Inda: We noticed that as well, and unfortunately, the scope that was attached in 
the Board packet was the draft scope.  The agreement that has been finalized 
includes a sheet that has all of those hourly rates filled in.  So the agreement 
was executed with all of the appropriate information.  I can't say why that 
happened, but it just did not get included in your Board packet. 

Martin: Okay.  Thank you.  And Rick, could you make sure that the Board members 
get a copy of that rate sheet so that we know what we're supposed to be 
signing off on here? 

Nelson: Absolutely, Member Martin. 

Martin: Thank you, sir.  No further questions. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller? 

21 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Wallin: Actually, Governor, I had the same questions that Member Martin had 
about, you know, being a sole source contract and not having the rates in the 
schedule.  I thought, well, I guess we're just paying for expenses, that's a lot, 
you know, no hourly rate.  And I guess -- I don't know if this question would 
be for Rick or for Denise.  There's a lot, you know, because I know that this 
is sole source and things like that, there's a lot of talk now of looking at 
moving to the cloud to support software and things like that.  One, because 
the maintenance and upgrades are taken care of as part of the package and 
stuff.  I know that we're already involved in this one, but at some point we 
may move off of this platform because when you're kind of held hostage 
with one vendor, they can keep on raising up their maintenance costs and 
what they do for you year after year, and you just can't get off of that merry-
go-round, so to speak.  So are you guys looking at possibly going to the 
cloud sometime in the future as you do software upgrades and contracts? 

Inda: Yes, Member Wallin.  This product may or may not be something that could 
be accessed via the cloud, but what we have done is we somewhat recently 
put out an RFI, a request for information, for -- and the purpose was to find 
out from all -- many of the vendors who provide this kind of software, this 
kind of system to other agencies, other states.  And so we put an RFI with 
all kinds of questions in it to find out what their systems do, how they 
function, what services and what abilities they had, and so then we have all 
of this information back.  We're in the process of summarizing it, and then 
we're going to use that information to determine what our next steps might 
be.  We may find that we're better off just tweaking our existing system for a 
while longer.  We may find that we want to plan for some kind of, you 
know, competitive process replacement, because it is software, and 
software, unfortunately, becomes outdated faster than we ever want it to.  
But we're exactly looking into what might be the best direction for us to 
move into, over time. 

Martin: One other question.  The previous four-year contract, which I'm assuming 
there was a previous four-year contract, was it a million dollars, was it 
500,000?  Do you recall? 

Inda: Let me pull that sheet out.  Okay.  We have had four previous contracts with 
Kimley-Horn regarding the Central System Software.  I'll start with the first 
one, the oldest one first.  That agreement started in 2001, and it ran through 
2009.  That was the initial purchase of the software, development and 

22 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

purchase of the software and, you know, got it running and into place.  That 
agreement was for approximately $4.7 million.  Then the next agreement 
was for maintenance and support only, and that ran from 2008 to 2009, so 
one year for $250,000.  The next agreement ran from 2010 to 2012.  The 
total cost was $500,000.  So two years for $500,000.  The most recent 
agreement was for $250,000 and it ran from 2012 to the present, so a little 
bit longer than a year.  So each year we find -- because of the changes and 
the development to our ITS infrastructure in the field, we find that we need 
to do about a quarter of a million dollars worth of work on the system. 

Sandoval: I was going to go to Member Savage, and then I'll go to -- or did you have a 
follow-up on this one? 

Wallin: I just had a follow-up on what she just said. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller and then Member Savage. 

Wallin: Okay.  So my question is, so we've been paying -- when we've done the 
contracts in the past for maintenance and what have you, we've been 
basically doing it for a year, maybe two years, and now all of a sudden we're 
doing it for four years.  Can you tell me why we're doing it for four years, 
and especially if we're doing an RFI and we might be making some changes, 
why we did this one for four years and instead of just a year or two years. 

Inda: Going through the process of getting an agreement out there and putting it in 
place takes a significant amount of time and effort on our part, and so this 
just gives us the ability to continue through four years should we need it, 
instead of going through this process yearly.  What we have done in the past 
is we were able to utilize our RFA, request for approach process, and those 
are more restrictive.  They have a lower dollar amount, and so we were 
putting them out for a shorter amount of time for less money, and we looked 
at it from internally within the division and felt that we could put out a four-
year agreement with the same level of effort by going through this process. 

 Now, just because we have four years of agreement doesn't mean that we 
can't end the agreement should we put something in place sooner than that.  
I would suggest, though, that the process will take a while.  Even if we were 
to decide tomorrow that we wanted to go through the process of getting a 
new system, we'd have to develop the RFP, we'd have to put it out, all of 
that process, then we'd select the firm, and then they would have to begin 

23 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

developing and preparing a system for Nevada.  Now, it might be an off-the-
shelf system, that would be quicker, but it would still need to be customized 
for our state, so that would take a year, two years perhaps, you know, just 
depending on what the process was.  So we definitely need Kimley-Horn to 
support the system in this interim period, and if we stay with them then, you 
know, after reviewing the decision if we decide that this is really the best 
system for us right now, then we need them on board to perhaps tweak and 
fine tune the system based on our findings. 

Sandoval: Member Savage. 

Savage: Thank you, Governor.  Along the same lines as the Madam Controller and 
Member Martin, I have concern with the length of agreements, but most 
importantly does NDOT have any other current agreements in place with 
Kimley-Horn and Transcore, other than these two agreements (inaudible)? 

Inda: Member Savage, I can't speak for the entire department.  We do -- both 
Kimley-Horn and Transcore are on the list of consultants, firms, who are on 
the on-call consultant lists.  And so we have utilized them, both of these 
firms, in the past for a variety of different programs.  Currently, in Traffic 
Operations, I think we have maybe two agreements for design work that 
were projects that are under construction and Kimley-Horn was the firm - 
the engineer of record on those contracts, so those agreements are still in 
place to allow them to respond to any issues that come up while a project is 
under construction, but we have not had any recent new agreements with 
Kimley-Horn.  Transcore we do.  We have a couple of smaller agreements 
with them that we utilize out of Traffic Operations to provide some 
assistance for our ITS system.  One is for ITS knock-down.  That's a unique 
agreement where if a driver or someone crashes into any of our ITS devices, 
often it's a device that needs to be repaired quickly, and within the 
department we don't really have the ability to turn that around quickly, and 
so we work with Transcore.  They can go out there, respond, fix whatever 
was damaged, and get it operating quickly.  The really great thing about that 
agreement is then they go after the responsible party and their first order of 
business is to be reimbursed by the responsible party.  If they cannot be -- if 
that work cannot be paid for by that person or group, then NDOT comes 
back and pays it, and I think out of nine claims, we only paid for two.  So 
nine out of seven instances where there was damage to state NDOT 

24 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

property, the responsible party paid for it.  So it's a pretty -- that's a very low 
expense agreement where we can get some very quick turnaround for repair. 

Savage: Okay.  With that being said, Ms. Inda, I would like to request a summary of 
the current agreements, the lengths of time, as well as the dollar amounts 
associated with both Kimley-Horn and Transcore that the department is 
obligated to at this time.  Thank you. 

Inda: Absolutely. 

Nelson: And also, I would like to add, Member Savage and Board members, that 
there will be an upcoming agreement with Kimley-Horn, I believe, for the 
Strategic Highway Safety Plan support for the Department, and that'll be 
coming probably next month.  That's being negotiated right now by a 
different group, the Safety Division under Planning.  So Denise wouldn't 
have been apprised of that. 

Savage: Yeah.  My point being is just what obligation does the entire Department 
have with other agreements with these two entities.  I think it'd be helpful 
for our review.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: And one last follow-up question. What I'm sensing is a little bit of 
discomfort with the length of the term of the contract.  What jeopardy, if 
any, would there be if we went from four years to two years on the length of 
the agreement? 

Inda: Only the time investment in two years to put something in place, whatever 
that might be.  You know, we would have to -- within our division, we 
would have to go through the process of getting a new agreement in place, 
you know, developing the approvals through the Director, well, through the 
channels and then getting it approved working with Admin Services, 
getting -- negotiating another -- well, we'd have to get a new sole source 
approval and then if that were approved, when we would go through the 
whole negotiation process once again.  So time.  Time within our division is 
the investment that we would have to make. 

Sandoval: But you've been doing it on an annual basis up until now, correct? 

Inda: Two years or one year, depending -- kind of moving back and forth 
depending on what we could do. 

25 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Sandoval: Because we have that initial one that went from '01 to '09, but then it's '08 to 
'09, '10 to '12, and '12 to '13. 

Inda: Right.  So we did have one two-year agreement in there during the interim, 
and we're just looking at it -- the administrative process takes a seemingly 
significant amount of our time, and so we were just looking to trim that up 
and not have to do that -- spend all of that extra effort and time because 
we're… 

Sandoval: No, and we're not -- I don't think, speaking for the Board, that we're not 
cognizant of the length of time that you put into this, but just given -- it's the 
length of four years and binding future Boards to a four-year agreement, 
whereas there may be a different set of circumstances into… 

Wallin: And, Governor, I think also for the lack of having the hourly rates and the 
information available, as well, that's another concern for me. 

Sandoval: Madam Attorney General? 

Cortez Masto: The only thing I would recommend is we take a look at the termination 
clause.  I'd be curious what it looks like in the contract, if there's a penalty 
associated with it, is it with or without cause, that's what I would be 
interested in seeing, and that goes to your question, obviously. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  Well, we won't see it for four years if we approve it today.  I mean... 

Cortez Masto: Right.  So that's why I don't know if we want to put this off and give us an 
opportunity to get that information before we approve this contract.  If we 
do put this off, what kind of, I guess, bind does this put the Department in at 
this point in time.  What's the start date for this contract? 

Inda: It's immediately.  The existing agreement has expired.  Well, the existing 
agreement hasn't expired, but there isn't any available funding on it.  So in 
the interim, we would not have any support for the software system that 
controls our devices statewide. 

Martin: Governor? 

Sandoval: Member Martin. 

Martin: Could the Board agree on a two-year extension with a two-year option that 
would be solely up to NDOT's Board of Directors to exercise? 

26 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Sandoval: I don't know if I'm comfortable with the option because that may cause an 
issue with the contractor.  I don't know why we just can't go for two years.  
I'm a little concerned not doing anything because we can't afford to be 
hanging out there with regard to this technology, and particularly in 
Southern Nevada, if you say this is cameras and, you know, all the different 
things that control the flow of traffic there. 

Nelson: Governor, may… 

Cortez Masto: Governor, this is Catherine.  And I guess my only concern is without seeing 
the contract in front of us, that's what we are voting on today.  We can 
request that they come back with a new term of two years, but again, then 
there is no contract put in place, and I guess that's my only concern is with 
respect to NDOT, what does that mean and how fast can we get a new 
contract before us, because right now what we have is a four-year term.  If 
we can get a contract today, maybe before the end of this Agenda, if all 
parties can agree that we want to amend the term of contract and it's not 
going to affect anything else in the contract for two years, I think that's 
possible before we leave today, and maybe that's what we do is table this 
and put it at the end of the Agenda to see if that's something -- after looking 
at the contract to see if that's something that's possible. 

Nelson: Governor, Madam Attorney General, in response to your question, typically 
the standard contract language is that we can terminate for no cause.  When 
we do that, we do look at the -- if there's any business costs from the other 
party that we should be negotiating on for reimbursements, something that 
they didn't recoup because of an early dissolution of the contract.  But I 
would suggest that maybe if the Board could consider approving the four-
year contract, and we renegotiate by amendment to the two-year with the 
two-year option subject to Board approval two years from now.  That could 
be done by an amendment to the existing contract, but we always have that 
option of termination as a department without cause. 

Cortez Masto: With no penalty? 

Nelson: Yes. 

Sandoval: But that was my other question, is what jeopardy attaches if we were to 
change it to two years?  Was the four-year term part of the negotiation and 
which helped structure what the rates were or those types of things that 

27 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

they've figure they're going to get it over four years versus two years.  They 
being Kimley-Horn. 

Inda: I don't think that that -- I don't -- I mean, I can't speak for what would 
happen during negotiations, but I believe that Kimley-Horn would work 
with us to come up with the length of an agreement that suits the 
Department's needs and the Board's desires.  You know, they're a good firm 
to work with; they want us to be successful, so, you know, I don't think 
they're going to hold us hostage.  I don't expect that they would do that. 

Sandoval: Well, no one's suggesting anything pejorative as to Kimley-Horn, it's just 
that what would happen if we continued this to next month?  What happens 
in the next 30 days?  They're not -- the switch isn't going to go off, is it? 

Inda: No.  The software will continue to run, but if there are any significant issues 
that occur, Kimley-Horn does not have the legal ability to do any work for 
us because we don't have any way to compensate or engage their services. 

Sandoval: So what happens if we just say -- if I took a motion right now that said we'll 
approve this contract for two years? 

Inda: I'm not exactly sure about the… 

Nelson: Governor, I think the motion would be to approve it for four years subject to 
an amendment to revise the contract to a two-year period with a two-year 
option that would come before the Board in two years for approval. 

Sandoval: If I'm Kimley-Horn, why would I agree to that? 

Nelson: We would still have the option of -- the standard language in any contract 
with a service provider is that the Department can stop the contract.  It's a 
general clause in all of our contracts with service providers, Governor. 

Sandoval: So you're saying that we can unilaterally cancel the contract at any time? 

Nelson: Yes.  Now, we do have to negotiate if there's some unrecouped costs, but 
typically we don't have a penalty imposed on the Department for those types 
of clauses or... 

Sandoval: Okay.  I'd like to hear from counsel please.  Mr. Gallagher. 

Gallagher: Members of the Board, for the record, Dennis Gallagher, counsel for the 
Board.  Staff is securing a copy of this agreement right now, so if you would 

28 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

like to postpone it, we can take a quick look at the termination clause and 
the Board can proceed from there.  I would point out, too, that the agreement 
for your approval today does contain that four-year term on it, and whether 
or not the Board would feel any comfort if there's a termination without 
cause provision in this agreement, you know, I defer, obviously, to the 
Board's view on that. 

Sandoval: So are you saying that we either have to take it or leave it, with regard to the 
four years? 

Gallagher: That's the contract that's being presented, Governor. 

Malfabon: And, Governor, we do have a representative of Kimley-Horn here, Mike 
Colety, if he could come up to the podium to say a few words. 

Colety: Thank you, Rudy.  Members of the Board, my name is Mike Colety with 
Kimley-Horn.  Lived and worked in Nevada for 17 years.  Kimley-Horn is 
located in Las Vegas, Nevada.  We're very committed to the State and the 
options that have come before, the two year with a two-year option, we 
would take no objection.  We can do that, and, yes, it's true exactly, even 
though we have the contract, NDOT can stop the contract at any time over 
those four-year period.  It does make it easier just to have that option to keep 
it going when it's on the four-year term.  But I would just like to say 
Kimley-Horn is staffed to do this project.  We're here in Nevada, and like 
we said, we're here to provide support for the system. 

Sandoval: So you have no objection if we were to approve this agreement for four 
years subject to renegotiation in two and having the contract revisited by 
this Board in two years? 

Colety: Correct, Governor. 

Sandoval: So no objection? 

Colety: No objection. 

Sandoval: Okay.  I just want to make you clear. 

Colety: Thank you.  First time in front of the Board.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: No.  No.  No.  No problem.  And, again, I don't want you to interpret in any 
way that we don't have full faith in Kimley-Horn.   

29 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Colety: Thank you.   

Sandoval: It's just not often that we get -- we go jump from one year to four years.   

Colety: Right. 

Sandoval: And the Board likes to have a little bit more input as these contracts go 
along than rather having the opportunity to do it ever four, if I can... 

Colety: Right. 

Sandoval: If I'm speaking (inaudible)… 

Colety: And I would also just like to -- I can follow up with the other members, as 
well.  Speaking to the workload, I know that we're a particular firm that 
often has numerous separate contracts in different specialties, like the 
software, ITS design, bicycle and pedestrian plans or highway safety, but 
just because there are separate contracts that we have at the same time, we 
have the capability to do all that work and are very responsive in our service 
to NDOT.  We follow up with the backlog and the number of projects.  You 
have other projects with consultants in our engineering community that are 
for Project NEON or Boulder City Bypass where you put 20 million into 
one contract for a design contract, and those are our competitors, and we just 
have a different method where we may have a lot of smaller projects or 
good-size -- medium-size projects.  But we have the local capacity to do this 
project, as well as the other work that we're doing. 

Sandoval: Okay.  And one other question for you that the Lieutenant Governor 
suggested to me is that would there be any problem with our delaying this 
contract for another month so we can get that information?  Can you -- is 
there the ability to continue the work for another 30 days? 

Colety: We have no ability to do this work for the next 30 days without this 
contract. 

Krolicki: Because there is no funding?   

Colety: We have no... 

Krolicki: I'm not sure -- why could you physically not do the work for 30 days? 

Colety: We have no ability to be paid for the work. 

30 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Krolicki: Okay.  So because of funding? 

Colety: Because of funding, yes.  Solely that. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  Mr. Gallagher. 

Gallagher: Governor, Members of the Board, I've been provided a copy of the 
agreement, and as the Director indicated, it does contain a 30-day 
cancellation with or without cause, at any time. 

Cortez Masto: So since we have the negotiator on the other side of this contract here today, 
Dennis what if we were to just negotiate right now with the vendor on the 
term, two years instead of four years for this contract, and do it right now?  
Can we have the ability to do that without violating some open meeting law? 

Gallagher: Madam Attorney General, that's an excellent question and it is not the 
contract that's before the Board.  I believe that somebody could object to 
negotiating here at this meeting to modify the terms of the agreement. 

Sandoval: But I think we do have on the record that it we approve this four-year 
agreement, there's no objection by the vendor to the Board revisiting the 
contract in two years. 

Gallagher: Correct.  And Governor, based on the language in the agreement, NDOT 
could turn around tomorrow and cancel it upon 30-days notice, subject to 
entering into a new agreement a two-year term, or any other term, to present 
to the Board in the future. 

Sandoval: Well, I'm comfortable in going forward, but I would comment that we 
shouldn't wait till one second to go in the fourth quarter to approve these 
type of contracts, that perhaps we should start looking at these maybe two or 
three months before they lapse… 

Nelson: Yes, Governor. 

Sandoval: … instead of now.  And then if you would follow up, and I think you've 
agreed to do this, you being the Department, with providing us some of that 
contractual information that we didn't have today. 

Nelson: Yes, Governor. 

31 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Sandoval: So with -- I think that pretty much covers it, unless there are any other 
questions or comments from Board members?  All right.  Mr. Martin, did 
you have any other questions or comments? 

Martin: No, sir. 

Sandoval: All right.  And Board members, do we have any other questions or 
comments with regard to the Contracts, 1, 2, or 3, that are described in 
Agenda Item No. 7?  Mr. Colety, thank you very much.   

So I don't think we even need to take that motion that would allow for the 
Board to -- well, I still would like to see this contract in two years.  So what 
I'm hearing from -- would that violate anything -- any open meeting law 
issue, Mr. Gallagher, if we were to -- if I were to take a motion approving 
these three contracts, however, Contract No. 2, subject to it being revisited 
in two years by this Board? 

Gallagher: Certainly you could do that, Governor, or perhaps without a motion you 
could simply direct staff to come back with a new agreement for your 
consideration with a two-year term.  I think both methods accomplish the 
Board's objective.  It's really which vehicle you'd like to utilize. 

Sandoval: I mean, there is risk on the other side.  I mean, in two years, Kimley-Horn 
can come back and say we want double if we open it back up.  So that's, you 
know, I think it's important that the Board be aware of that.  I think that we 
take the -- we approve the agreement, but just subject to review, not subject 
to it being brought back, if that makes sense. 

Nelson: Governor, I think that what we would do is to amend the four-year 
agreement to make it into a two-year with a two-year option subject to 
Board approval, but, you know, the rates are the rates, so they're negotiated 
currently for the four-year period and we would just make it the Board's 
approval in two years so we could amend the agreement if you approve it 
today, and just amend that. 

Sandoval: Is that clear, everybody? 

Cortez Masto: Yes. 

Sandoval: All right.  Then -- Member Fransway? 

32 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Fransway: Governor, so what I'm hearing is if we approve the agreement today, on a 
subsequent Board meeting we can amend it to a two-year term, correct? 

Nelson: Yes. 

Fransway: And so are we going to approve it for a four-year term today? 

Nelson: Yes.  That is correct.  And then as far as the term of the agreement, it would 
be amended and brought back to the Board at a future meeting just so you 
can see that it was actually negotiated. 

Fransway: Do we need to make that notation on any motion then? 

Gallagher: For the record, Board Member Fransway, Dennis Gallagher, you can either 
make it -- include it in your motion or simply direct staff to bring back an 
amended contract with a two-year term.  But the Board does need either to 
accept this agreement here with four years, or reject it and I think the 
discussion has been -- shown a bit of reluctance to reject it and not have this 
vendor in place should their services be needed within the next 30 days. 

Sandoval: Mr. Gallagher is correct.  I mean, we have to approve this or we won't have 
the service, and that was part of my comment why we shouldn't wait until 
this moment, because that puts a lot of pressure on this Board, and actually 
it takes away our discretion, because we can't reject this and leave the traffic 
system vulnerable without having Kimley-Horn available.  So my 
suggestion would be that we approve this contract and then -- up or down, 
and then also make the admonition that it be brought back to us separate 
from the motion in two years. 

Fransway: So we would make a directive to have it brought back and not part of the 
motion? 

Sandoval: Yes. 

Fransway: Okay. 

Cortez Masto: So I'm prepared to make a motion, Governor. 

Sandoval: Madam Attorney General. 

Cortez Masto: So I will make a motion to approve these three contracts, and then direct 
staff as to Contract No. 2 with Kimley-Horn that you come back -- bring 
back to the Board another contract that has amended to two years, with -- 

33 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

and then to lock in the rates with the option for two years to extend it.  That 
way it will lock in at the same rate, so we are reviewing it after two years. 

Krolicki: Is your direction part of the motion? 

Cortez Masto: No. 

Krolicki: Okay.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: All right.  You have heard the motion.  Is there a second? 

Wallin: Second. 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by Madam Controller.  I want to make sure we're clear.  Any 
questions or comments with regard to the motion? 

Fransway: So the directive is part of the motion then? 

Sandoval: It is not. 

Fransway: Okay.  In her motion, it sounded to me like it was. 

Sandoval: No. 

Cortez Masto: No. 

Sandoval: Madam Attorney General, if you want to clarify. 

Cortez Masto: Let me just make sure.  Let's do this first.  The motion will be to approve the 
contracts as they are.  And I don't know, Governor, if you want to do that, 
and then we can do the direction to the staff after that so it's not part of the 
motion, but right now the motion is to approve the three contracts. 

Sandoval: Yeah, and I guess our record is not -- that's the best way to make sure we 
have a clear record on this is to take a straight up or down motion, and then 
after we've taken that motion, I'll ask the Attorney General to make a 
directive.  So the motion before the Board is the approval of Contracts 1, 2, 
and 3, as described in Agenda Item No. 7.  Madam Controller, do you 
second the motion? 

Wallin: I still second. 

34 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Sandoval: All right.  Madam Controller has seconded the motion.  Any further 
questions or discussion?  All in favor say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  That motion passes unanimously.  I'd like to go back to the 
Attorney General to determine whether she has a directive. 

Cortez Masto: Sure.  Governor, I would ask the staff the bring back to the Board the No. 2 
Kimley-Horn & Associates contract with an amended term for two years 
with an option after that for another two years. 

Malfabon: Understood. 

Sandoval: And also, I'd like to direct the Board to come back with any of the 
information that was not contained in this Agenda item so that the Board has 
the benefits of that at the next meeting. 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor. 

Sandoval: All right.  Thank you.  That completes Agenda Item No. 7.  We will move 
on to Agenda Item No. 8, Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements. 

Malfabon: Again, Robert Nellis. 

Nellis: Yes.  Thank you, Governor and Director.  Robert Nellis for the record.  
There are four contracts under Attachment A that were awarded by the 
Director for the Board's information.  They start on Page 4 of 11, and 
complete on 5 of 11.  The first is for a chip seal project on State Route 116 
and State Route 860 in Churchill and Pershing Counties.  The Director 
awarded this contract on August 28th for $2,094,000.  The second is for a 
replanting project along Interstate 580 in Washoe County.  The Director 
awarded this contract on August 30th in the amount of $1,496,496.  Item No. 
3 is a remove and replacing bridge decking along I-80 in Washoe County.  
The Director awarded this contract on September 16th for $792,459.75.  And 
finally, Item No. 4, a roadside vegetation control project in District 1, Clark, 
Lincoln, and Nye Counties.  This one was awarded by the Director on 
August 21st to Pestmaster Services in the amount of $1,143,748.16. 

 Did the Board have any questions or like more information on any of these 
projects? 

35 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Sandoval: Member Fransway? 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Number 4, I'm wondering why the discrepancy 
between the engineer's estimate and the way the bids came in, the low bid? 

Malfabon: I can respond to that, Governor.  This is a performance-based contract for 
roadside vegetation control in District 1, so it has performance measures 
related to it, and the estimate is best on a best guess, but the amount of 
vegetation to remove from the roadside is obviously subject to how much 
precipitation we receive, usually not a lot.  But this is a contract that's based 
on whatever is performed has to meet certain measures, and then they get 
paid for that.  If they don't meet the performance measures, they get either a 
reduced payment or no payment.  So it is -- basically they did bid lower than 
the engineer's estimate, but it's subject to the work performed, and then we 
pay that after we investigate that it was to our performance measures. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: You're welcome.  Madam Controller? 

Wallin: Actually, that was my question since there was a $1.7 million difference 
between the bids.  So they aren't going to go -- you said it's performance 
based, so they're not going to go over that $1.1 million, or… 

Malfabon: No.  They cannot... 

Wallin: They cannot. 

Malfabon: ...exceed that without... 

Wallin: Okay. 

Malfabon: ...basically a contract change order.  We will -- this is in line with what 
we've been doing as a Department in trying to contract our more 
maintenance services, and comparing that to self-performance.  You can see 
that this is limited to District 1, so Districts 2 and 3 will be a good side-by-
side comparison since we're self-performing this kind of service in those 
districts. 

Martin: I have one question, sir. 

Sandoval: Member Martin. 

36 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Martin: Does the 30 percent delta between low and second bother you, Rudy? 

Malfabon: Member Martin, I would say that based on the analysis of the qualifications 
that we were comfortable with Pestmaster Services.  We do see the 
difference in bids, but they have to perform, or not get paid, basically, and 
there are -- as is the case on contracts, if they don't perform, we can dismiss 
them from the contract. 

Martin: But we haven't done that customarily? 

Malfabon: We did in that sweeping contract, but it was mutual, with that sweeping 
contract in Washoe County. 

Martin: Mm-hmm.  Okay.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Just to follow up, I think, on Member Martin's comment is they are so low, 
and what if they figure out, boy, this is bad for us, the next closest is a half a 
million dollars more, so what position... 

Malfabon: We would... 

Sandoval: ...would the Board… 

Malfabon: Governor, we would probably reprocure that and just self-perform in the 
interim while we reprocure those services, so go back out on a competitive 
procurement. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway? 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Are the bidders privy to the engineer's estimate 
beforehand? 

Malfabon: Typically the Department submits a range for the engineer's estimate, not 
the specific value, so that contractors can't just match the engineer's 
estimate. 

Fransway: Okay. 

Sandoval: Please proceed. 

Nellis: Thank you, Governor.  Robert Nellis, for the record.  Moving on to 
Attachment B under Agenda Item 8, there are 65 executed agreements for 

37 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

the Board's information, starting on Page 7 of 11 and ending on Page 11.  
Were there any questions from the Board on any of these items? 

Sandoval: I hear none. 

Nellis: Thank you, Governor. 

Sandoval: And it's an informational item.  If there are no other questions, I'll move on 
to the next Agenda item. 

Fransway: Governor? 

Sandoval: Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Just a comment.  I noticed the vehicle transfers and as far as the grantee, it's 
working extremely well, and I assume that it's working well for NDOT, too. 

Nellis: Yes. 

Fransway: I believe that that's a very good way to distribute vehicles that are no longer 
needed. 

Sandoval: We'll move on to Agenda Item No. 9, Condemnation Resolution.  
Mr. Director? 

Malfabon: Governor, this is a condemnation resolution for a property, Trinidad Medina 
and Adrianna Medina in Las Vegas, related to Project NEON Phase 1.  We 
have been trying to negotiate with the property owners, who are 
unfortunately involved in a divorce.  So it is getting to be difficult to reach a 
resolution with the property owners, so we want to proceed to 
condemnation. 

Sandoval: I mean, I just -- my review of this is that we're negotiating against ourselves.  
We keep going up and up and they haven't made a counteroffer, so we need 
to get moving. 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor.  And when there is a counteroffer made, we have to 
substantiate that it's based on some comparable sales or some type of 
information that's reliable so that we can get federal reimbursement. 

Sandoval: Board members, any questions with regard to Agenda Item No. 9?  If there 
are none, the chair will accept a motion for approval of Condemnation 
Resolution No. 440 as described in Agenda Item 9A. 

38 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Martin: Move for approval. 

Sandoval: Member Martin has moved for approval.  Is there a second? 

Savage: I'll second. 

Sandoval: Second by Member Savage.  Any questions or discussion on the motion?  
All in favor, please say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Opposed no?  Motion passes unanimously.  Agenda Item No. 10. 

Malfabon: Governor, I would like to request taking an item out of order.  The briefing 
on the Statewide Transportation Funding really sets up the discussion of the 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program, both from the amendments 
and administrative modifications, but primarily with Item No. 11, the 
discussion of the draft and work program for information.  So I would like 
to request that we present Item 12 first, and then go into Items 10 and 11. 

Sandoval: If there are no objections, we'll proceed with Agenda Item No. 12, then 
Agenda Item No. 10.  Please proceed. 

Malfabon: Let's load up the presentation on funding.  As that's being loaded up, I 
wanted to mention that there has been a lot of discussion about 
transportation equity and as it's timely that we make this presentation to the 
Board as we're presenting the draft Annual Work Program and the Statewide 
Transportation Improvement Program draft.  So without further ado, next 
slide. 

 So there's three primary sources of state highway fund revenue that goes in 
the State Highway Fund.  Federal Highway Trust Fund, obviously that's a 
reimbursement program, and we typically get about -- I believe it's $320 
million or thereabouts.  The State Highway Fund -- the state gas tax and the 
diesel tax goes into the State Highway Fund, as well, and that's usually a 
couple hundred million dollars.  Other funding sources we've enjoyed in the 
past, primarily through legislative action and Governor's approval, has to do 
with perhaps, as a later Agenda item shows, the Las Vegas Convention and 
Visitors Authority funding, for instance, where that was room tax revenue 
bonds that went to transportation projects in Las Vegas.  General bonding 
for the Department of Transportation, and also any kind of general fund 

39 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

expenditures like we enjoyed in years past, but no longer have the ability to 
access that type of funding because of the state of the economy in Nevada.  
Next slide. 

 So this shows you, under MAP-21, which is the Federal Transportation Bill, 
and how money flows through us, and we wanted to make the point in this 
slide that there's some funds that are available statewide.  So you got about 
half of the funds available statewide.  Some funds must be sent to Clark 
County to the RTC of Southern Nevada to distribute.  Some have to be spent 
in other counties, so you see about 17 percent going to other counties across 
the state, that includes Washoe, and some is committed to bond repayments 
and subject to FHWA reductions.  Sometimes they rescind certain fund 
categories at the federal level. 

 And when we received federal funds there are certain pots of money.  So 
color of money is an issue.  You've got to look at these pots of money and 
silos, if you will, and the projects that are expended in these funding 
categories have to meet those qualifications for these specific funding 
categories.  You have the Air Quality Program, CMAC, Metropolitan 
Planning category, Surface Transportation Program category, and 
Transportation Alternatives category.  The point of this slide is to show that 
there are different silos of funding, so that is another thing that we have to 
consider when we receive the money.  Some definitely goes to the urban 
areas, and some can be used statewide.  But primarily, this is money that's 
going to the urban areas.  Next slide. 

 There's a lot of federal funding categories that are available to other -- 
primarily rural counties and other counties, such as Washoe.  You have 
different programs, safety programs, planning programs, you see the Air 
Quality, the Surface Transportation Program, Transportation Alternatives 
Program.  So a multitude of programs.  Even though MAP-21 consolidated a 
lot of the programs, there's still a lot of program areas to consider, and we 
do our best to expend the money in each one of these program areas.  Next 
slide. 

 Now, NDOT is not the only recipient of money that goes into the State 
Highway Fund.  There's a lot of other things, besides fuel tax revenue, that 
goes in there that primarily support the Department of Public Safety and 
Department of Motor Vehicles, such as motor vehicle registration and 
license fees.  As far as the 1 percent to the other, that's just a minor 

40 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

expenditure to support things like EITS or LCB investigations, State Public 
Works Board support for our architectural projects, Board of Examiners and 
such.  So there's some expenditure there.  Bond reimbursement is shown, 
and about 74 percent of that money that goes in the Highway Fund is 
available to the Department of Transportation.  Next slide. 

 And one of the questions that we received recently was how much money is 
raised in Clark County and how much is received by Clark County for 
projects?  So on the left side the pie chart is focused on how much state gas 
tax revenue is raised in Clark County?  There's about a little over 60 percent 
raised in Clark County, about -- between 15 and 16 percent in Washoe, and 
then all the other areas.  Now, it's significant in the other areas of the state 
primarily because of the special fuels tax, which is primarily diesel.  So 
there is a substantial amount of money raised in the rural counties other than 
Clark and Washoe. 

 Now, as far as the expenditures, what we did is look at our annual work 
program, and this is information that's reported to the legislature on a 
biennial basis, but it's based on our project obligations, what was 
programmed, basically, for those fiscal years, and it shows that Clark 
County received, over that average of that five-year period about 55 percent 
of the transportation funding revenue.  That's federal, state, and local.  The 
reason that we include federal and state in that calculation of percentage is 
because some projects are federally funded, because we want to leverage the 
federal funds with the state funds to meet that match requirement.  Typically 
it's 95 percent federal, 5 percent state, but it can vary, depending on the 
program.  But you can see there that Clark County does receive a lot of 
transportation funding, and Washoe County is actually receiving a little bit 
less in that five-year period than what's collected.  It's percentagewise, but 
the reason for a lot of the spending in the other areas of the state is primarily 
Interstate 80 receives a lot of funding and we'll cover that a little bit later. 

 Here is the breakdown of the county distributions, and this can ebb and 
flow.  You can look at Elko County and Eureka County getting a bit, Lyon 
County.  So in Elko County primarily the projects there in that five-year 
period, a lot of interstate projects.  In Lyon County the US-50 widening 
projects that have been occurring toward Silver Springs account for some of 
that. 

41 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

 Statewide projects, those are the projects that can't be attributed to one 
single county, and so we've had some safety programs, such as the Rumble 
Strip Program, that are a statewide project.  Sometimes we have some 
projects that improve other systems that are a statewide nature.  So it 
benefits the entire state, usually related to operations programs.  Next slide. 

 Now, the question was asked, well, what about 2013?  And we looked at our 
annual work program report that's going to be going to the legislature next 
biennium, but we broke this out, and it's about the same distribution.  
Washoe County definitely received a lot less, primarily because of a huge 
amount of work, as the Board has seen, on Interstate 80 and the area around 
Winnemucca up into the Elko area.  So we've had some major projects over 
the last year that were programmed for Elko and Humboldt County, and that 
kind of causes that increase in percentage in all other counties.  Clark 
County still receiving a substantial amount of funding, but you can see that 
the amount is lower, as far as compared to previous years, and that's 
primarily just what was delivered in that annual work program.  Projects are 
typically -- we expend all the federal aid that's available for highway 
projects, but there is an ebb and a flow on an annual basis.  So that's why we 
want to look at that five-year average that we had on the previous slide.  
Continue. 

 Here is the distribution by counties.  Sometimes you have a year where a 
particular county does not receive a substantial amount of work, such as 
Storey County there or Pershing County.  And as I said, there is an ebb and 
a flow based on project need.  The way that we select projects is typically 
when it becomes due for payment preservation, typically an overlay or a 
mill and fill, we will proceed with funding that type of project, but we avoid 
a worst first approach.  So we have some roads that really are in bad shape 
that need to be reconstructed, but we do that based on availability of 
funding.  We try to keep up with the interstates first, U.S. routes second, and 
then the other state routes, which include some of the urban areas, as far as 
urban arterials in the hierarchy.  Next slide. 

 As far as what is on a later Agenda item is draft annual work program.  And 
what we did was look through that, recognizing that there are some 
corrections that are going to be noted when that item is presented to the 
Board.  We did our best to assess what is coming forward in 2014, based on 
our annual work program.  This, again, includes local funds, as well as state 

42 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

funds and federal funds.  Now, we -- the asterisk there for Washoe County, 
it says, does not include the Southeast connector because that is 100 percent 
locally-funded project.  So it kind of skews the numbers if you include these 
100 percent local projects.  We try to avoid that by concentrating on federal 
and state-funded projects.  So if a project has some federal or a combination 
of federal and state, as well the possibility of local funds, we included it in 
this pie chart. 

Sandoval: And there's a little perspective that needs to be pointed out, I believe, is that 
not only is the percentage greater, but the piece of pie is substantially 
greater, almost double the amount from 2013 to 2014.  So the amount here 
is over half a billion dollars, whereas the amount of money in 2013 is about 
250 million.  So the pie is twice as big, and the percentages are obviously 
different.  So, I mean, do we have another chart that kind of shows what -- 
over the seven-year period and how that, as you say, starts to spread things 
around? 

Malfabon: We do not, but we could definitely -- it's worth looking at an average for 
that, Governor, and I think that a point that's well made is that you don't 
want to look at one particular year, and this year, significantly, the amount 
of money and the amount of percentage increased for Clark County and 
Washoe County, but you want to look at kind of the average because of that 
ebb and flow of projects, as I discussed earlier.  But it definitely shows that 
we are investing a significant amount of revenue into Clark County projects, 
and also in Washoe County, primarily Project NEON and the Boulder City 
Bypass Future I-11 Project are significant increases, but there's been other 
projects in Clark County that are being delivered such as the US-95 
widening from Ann to Durango was a project that we actually went out with 
the currently -- it was actually programmed in fiscal year 2013. 

 I wanted to make the point also that when we program a project, it could be 
a multiyear project, but just for the sake of being simple in our booking of 
the project or counting it towards the fiscal year, we don't break it out into 
multiple years.  We just book it in one year.  So if it's a two-year project and 
it went out in 2014, we just book it and count it towards 2014.  So that's how 
you see some kind of differences in some of the funding per fiscal year, 
because a big project that could be a two-year project went out in one 
particular fiscal year, although the money is expended over two years.  Next 
slide. 

43 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

 Now, you see that there's not as much going to Interstate 80 projects and 
some of these rural counties that you've seen in previous years, such as Elko 
or Eureka County.  Humboldt County does have a significant project 
coming up.  So this is, again, related to when projects are due, when they're 
funded.  As far as the preservation program, primarily in the rural areas, 
you'll see some differences.  But primarily the bulk of the money is still 
going to continue going to Clark County and followed by Washoe County.  
Next slide. 

 Definitely one of the -- well, two of the major projects that we have as a 
high priority are Project NEON, and we've been spending a lot of money, 
state funds primarily, on acquisition of right-of-way as we've advanced that 
project, and later you'll receive a presentation on the status of Project 
NEON.  Boulder City is advancing, as I have mentioned.  In November we 
will advertise the next phase, the frontage road project, which is 
approximately a $20 million range.  So significant advancements on these 
two projects occurring and a lot of coordination on Phase 2, which is shown 
in blue on that -- the inset slide there showing the Boulder City Bypass 
Future I-11 Project.  But I just wanted to make the point that you will see a 
lot more investment on these projects as they advance through the delivery 
process.  Next slide. 

 I wanted to mention the importance of state roads.  Now, the state system, as 
you can see, is not a large part -- not the majority of the system, but it is 
significant in that it carries a lot of the traffic.  So you can see the 
significance of state roads, primarily because the state system covers the 
Interstate system where there's a lot of volume of traffic, the U.S. routes 
which also carry a lot of the traffic.  Definitely there are some locally 
maintained roads that carry high volumes of traffic, primarily the urban 
arterials in Las Vegas and Washoe County, but we also own some of those 
state arterials -- state highways which are urban arterials.  So those are also 
counted in the vehicle miles traveled.  But you can see that the state roads 
are very important, particularly for carrying that traffic.  Next slide. 

 Another point to make is that the state roads are important and critical 
because of how much freight movement and heavy trucks.  So you can see 
that we carry 70 percent of all truck traffic and 80 percent of the heavy truck 
traffic on the state system of roads.  So another point to make on the 
importance of the state system.  Next slide. 

44 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

 Now, Nevada -- you've probably seen the slide before, but it shows the New 
England states and how they fit in-between some of the major highways in 
Nevada, indicated by the red lines.  We have a large area to cover with our 
state transportation network, and we have low population in some of these 
areas of the state.  So one of the concerns is, well, are some of the rural 
counties -- I think there's four to six counties that have not enacted 
everything that's optional to them as far as their fuel tax, but with low 
populations, it isn't going to raise a lot of revenue, but I think it's just the 
point that everybody should be doing as much as they can to cover the 
funding for the transportation network.  When a county does raise its fuel 
tax, though, such as Elko County just recently did this last year, that money 
goes to the county for county roads.  So it's not going to directly benefit the 
state typically, but it is an effort to try to keep up with all the state highway 
network, not just what's maintained by the Department of Transportation, 
but also what's maintained by the counties.  But the point being that a lot of 
area to cover, and we have an obligation to keep this system in a state of 
good repair.  When we do spend federal money on our system, that's one of 
the obligations that we make to the federal government, is that we will keep 
our system in a state of good repair.  Also definitely as it was noted on the 
previous slide, it's critical for freight and national commerce, Nevada being 
a bridge state to a lot of these ports in California, ports of Oakland, San 
Francisco, L.A., and Long Beach, that move a lot of freight across our state 
on the interstate system.  And definitely we have an obligation to rural 
Nevada for connectivity, for people that need to get agricultural goods or 
livestock to move that across the state systems, as well as recreational and 
economic development opportunities.  So we are one state, and we try to 
keep our state system in good shape, and there is an obligation for residents 
in the state and our visitors to the state to keep the entire system in fairly 
good shape.  Next slide. 

 So I feel that it was important to note that we are aware that there is an 
equity concern, but we feel that with these statistics that we are paying 
attention to the needs in Southern Nevada, as well as throughout the State of 
Nevada.  We recently saw a letter to the editor by a North Las Vegas city 
councilman over the weekend that was concerned and they brought up the 
Interstate 580 contract and how much that cost and how other projects 
should be done in Southern Nevada.  With the fuel tax indexing initiative 
that was recently passed and we'll present to the Board probably next month, 
there are going to be a lot more projects funded in Southern Nevada, and 

45 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

NDOT by no means is holding back on any funding to Southern Nevada, as 
you can see by the amount of effort we've expended for Project NEON, for 
Interstate 15, and the Boulder City Bypass Future I-11 Project, as well as 
widening on U.S. 95 that's continuing. 

 So with that, I wanted to take any questions from the Board on this 
presentation. 

Sandoval: Thank you, Mr. Director, and at least from my review of the slide for 2014, 
it appears for that year that the amount of funding that goes to Clark County 
dwarfs what is occurring in the other counties.  And then if we were to 
anticipate what's going to happen in '15, '16, and '17, with the onset of 
Project NEON and the Interstate 11 or the Boulder City Bypass, that that 
type of percentage would at least be stable or perhaps even increase. 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor. 

Sandoval: And then what was interesting to me when I looked at this is that Washoe 
County is actually an exporter of fuel tax dollars that they don't -- it does not 
receive a greater percentage of funding than what it raises. 

Malfabon: Based on the annual work programs that we reviewed for '13 and '14, that is 
true. 

Sandoval: And the other point that I think you made by that slide with all those eastern 
states that fit in there is the immensity of the amount of roads throughout 
our state and that the rural counties simply cannot generate the amount of  
money that's necessary to maintain Interstate 80 and some of these other 
roads, and by definition, you're going to see Washoe County and perhaps -- 
or Washoe County and then to a certain extent up until 2014, that Clark 
County would be, in other words, subsidizing them because it just -- there's 
no other way that it could be done. 

Malfabon: Yes, Governor.  Although there's a lot of revenue raised in those rural 
counties on the diesel tax, it's just not enough to maintain the entire system, 
and there is an obligation to maintain that entire system. 

Sandoval: But given the expenditures for 2008 and 2012, and the amount of work that's 
gone on on Interstate 80, it looks like, for now, we're not going to be having 
those types of expenditures because we've done the work. 

46 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Malfabon: There appears to be one project in 2014, in Humboldt County, but you're not 
seeing as many projects as you did the previous year with the Carlin Tunnels 
Project and the project around Winnemucca and Elko County.  So there's 
been a significant amount of investment on I-80 that you won't see in the 
next fiscal year.  There'll just be a smaller amount of projects on I-80. 

Sandoval: And we should never underestimate, obviously, the importance of Interstate 
80 to interstate commerce, as well as commerce within the state.  I mean, I'll 
say from my perspective on economic development, we have to have great 
roads logistically so that we can move goods in and out of the state and 
that's one of the reasons why companies are coming here to distribute, is that 
not only our geographic location, but the quality of our roads to get that 
product in and out. 

Malfabon: Definitely, Governor.  And we believe that with the improvements that 
we're going to be making with the Future I-11 Boulder City Bypass and 
Project NEON, that it will also support that type of investment by new 
companies that want to move to the Southern Nevada region for investing in 
their business development, and we think that -- also that the level of effort 
that we put into I-80 is going to provide a good transportation network for 
those ports, primarily from San Francisco and Oakland, that are passing 
through to the eastern states. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  You also have 95, which is a very important corridor for commerce 
for Southern Nevada, as well; is that right? 

Malfabon: Yes.  US-95 and US-93 both are primary quarters for freight movement, and 
US-93, as I mentioned, is the NAFTA corridor. 

Sandoval: And so, obviously, some of those roads pass through many rural counties, 
which will, you know, again, won't be able to generate the type of money 
needed to maintain those, so some of that money that is generated in 
Washoe and Clark will go to those counties. 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Sandoval: Or will go to those areas I should say. 

Malfabon: Yes.  It goes to those major U.S. routes, US-95 and US-93 to maintain those 
in a good repair. 

47 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Sandoval: And just out of curiosity, as I mentioned, the piece of pie from '13 to '14 
doubles.  Where did that extra revenue come from? 

Malfabon: It's primarily a combination of when locals put in some of the funding to 
match some projects.  If there's a combination, as I said, of federal, state, 
and local on a project, chances are the local portion is supporting some of 
that increase in funding.  We did not include the $100 million bonding 
request that will go to the Interim Finance Committee for Project NEON, 
although that will also increase the amount of expenditures in Las Vegas for 
purchase of right-of-way for Project NEON Phases 3 and 4.  But primarily 
that's based on the annual work program.  So as you go through the next 
presentation, it will become clearer as far as what projects are included in 
that that substantiate that dollar amount. 

Sandoval: Questions from the Board members -- excuse me.  Madam Controller? 

Wallin: Thank you.  Question on the charts that you have going from 2008 to 2012.  
Did that include stimulus money in those projects? 

Malfabon: Yes.  That would have included some stimulus money... 

Wallin: Okay. 

Malfabon: ...which was distributed statewide. 

Wallin: Okay.  Yeah, because it kind of -- it shows here's the gas tax and then we 
have the stimulus money, which has nothing to do with the Highway Fund. 

Malfabon: Yes.  The '08 to '12 numbers were from, basically, our annual work program 
that was reported to the legislature. 

Wallin: Okay.  And then another thing, because we talk about, well, this county 
collects this much, we need to send money to this county, and I think 
something that needs to be made aware of is we need to make our decisions 
based on cost benefit analysis when we do our projects and stuff.  And I 
think it would be interesting if you could supply the Board next meeting 
with a cost benefit analysis of the I-580 with Project NEON and the Boulder 
City Bypass, just to, you know, as we go forward, and then any future 
projects make sure that we have that cost benefit analysis before the 
meeting. 

Malfabon: We will provide that information, Madam Controller. 

48 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Wallin: Because I think that that's important.  I think people -- we need to make our 
decisions based the numbers and not on, well, it seems like it's a good idea, 
we should do that.  So if you'd do that for me.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Well, and that I-580, when was the decision made to... 

Malfabon: That was... 

Sandoval: ...for that project? 

Malfabon: ...three governors and four directors ago, I believe.  But it was one of those 
projects that takes years and years to deliver, starting with the environmental 
impact statement and going on through to acquiring property and designing 
the project and constructing it.  That definitely was years ago, and any 
project of that magnitude takes years to deliver. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

Krolicki: Governor, if I may. 

Sandoval: Mr. Lieutenant Governor. 

Krolicki: And with 580, I still vividly recall Governor Guinn talking about that and 
these decisions literally made -- or begun to have been made that were 
difficult (inaudible) 30 years ago, and even if it were to have been scratched 
when, you know, the bridging efforts were being challenged, it would've 
cost more to not finish 580 than to proceed, according to Governor Guinn.  
With Controller Wallin's comments, I mean, I've never doubted that the cost 
benefit aspects have gone into the decisions that this Board and NDOT staff 
have been making.  So, you know, I've been making in my -- whether it's 
treasurer or lieutenant governor, I've been making decision on a statewide 
basis for, you know, many years, and I've never been a regional -- never has 
a regional thought been part of my decision making.  It's been what's best 
based on the information I have, and I'm regularly frustrated when there are 
tensions, certainly north/south, and certainly less so, but rural/urban.  And I 
just think, you know, not to be defensive, but, you know, the decisions and 
the deployment of capital by NDOT, you know, has been under, you know 
question and editorial comment and those kind of things, and you know, 
we'll continue to make the right decisions for the right reasons.  But I think 
there's an educational component to this.  I mean, you know, I think a 
contemplation -- and this is a conversation between you, Governor, and the 

49 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Director, but even a visitation to editorial boards and other key stakeholders, 
I mean, this is a poignant demonstration.  You know, these are the things 
we've believed and, you know, intuitively there, but I just think the facts 
speak for themselves, and if Washoe County is an exporter of revenues from 
fuel tax, I mean, I think many people would be very surprised.  So I would 
urge at least a discussion about having some kind of editorial visit, you 
know, and especially with projects like Project NEON and the Bypass and 
I-11, and other things coming up. I think it would be a great road show to 
have.  Not only where we're going in the future, which demonstrates, you 
know, a deployment in, I think, a very equitable, strategic way, but also 
historically that perhaps has been a different reality than some suspect. 

Malfabon: Well said, Lieutenant Governor, and I know that that's a good suggestion to 
go forward with the editorial boards.  One of the things that we do want to 
address is some of this reliance on the Brookings Mountain West 
information that looks at per capita federal spending and makes the -- kind 
of the jump from that per capita in Washoe County to if you applied that 
level of spending to Clark County, there'd be 1.7 billion that's available, and 
that is not accurate because there's only -- as I said, of federal funding, 
there's only about 320 million available per year.  So there's no way that 1.7 
billion would ever come per year to Clark County from the federal 
government for transportation.  But those are the kinds of points that we 
need to talk and discuss with editorial boards, because elected officials are 
relying on that information, and making conclusions that are not accurate. 

 Another one that Brookings Mountain West makes has to do with the 
federal transit grant funding and that money is used by urban areas, by 
metropolitan planning organizations, such as RTCs, to do light rail transit 
projects.  Since we haven't been doing that in Washoe County or Clark 
County, Nevada will look like it's not receiving its fair share of federal 
transit grant funds, but that's because that's not the type of project that has 
been approved and going forward with those urban areas, with those NPOs.  
So that's another point that we could make with editorial boards. 

Sandoval: Further questions or comments?  Madam Attorney General. 

Cortez Masto: Rudy, thank you.  This is very, very informative.  Can you address one thing 
for me, though, and maybe this needs more information out there.  We 
always talk about the freight going I-80 east and west, but there's a lot of 
freight that goes I-15 out of California through. 

50 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Cortez Masto: And there's a lot of traffic that is traveled on I-15 from California through.  I 
mean, if you've been in Las Vegas at any time, particularly during the 
weekends, you see bumper-to-bumper traffic… 

Malfabon: Yes. 

Cortez Masto: …from California into Las Vegas.  Will you comment on what we as NDOT 
do to not only maintain those roads, but how we've addressed the travel of 
those vehicles on I-15, and the funding for the maintenance and the roadway 
repairs that are necessary to maintain it. 

Malfabon: Considering I-15 we've done a lot of projects.  Some of them have been 
funded through the LVCVA room tax revenue bonds, primarily the 
widening there by the airport.  But NDOT has also applied some federal 
funds for -- in the past it was under the -- what's called Interstate 
Maintenance category.  That's been consolidated into a program called 
National Highway Performance Program.  So interstates are eligible under 
that, as well as some of the high-level U.S. routes.  But we've been putting 
in a lot of effort on I-15 to keep that pavement in good shape.  We've paved 
down to Stateline.  We have another project that's the one that Las Vegas 
Paving was awarded.  That addresses a really rough area of the interstate 
where there's a lot of problems from the soils there in that case that caused 
some heaving of the pavement.  We're going to address that, so -- another 
project that we've been doing with the help of the local funds -- but we often 
do things in partnership with the local agencies in the urban areas, but we've 
been doing projects such as the Mesquite Interchange.  We've built a lot of 
interchanges on I-15 so that it could open up certain areas of the Las Vegas 
Valley to warehousing or to more mobility and access to where those trucks 
need to load.  And for the traffic that's following -- going through the state, 
definitely we've done a lot of pavement preservation projects on the 
interstate. Significant costs for those projects, but it's money well spent 
because of the amount of traffic on that system. 

 I wanted to just say thanks to the LVCVA for their funding, because it 
helped us to operate the system better by building those express lanes in that 
urban corridor to get the trucks over there in their lane so that they can get 
through that urban area and not be in that congestion where there's a lot of 

51 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

cars entering and exiting at the off-ramps and the interchanges in the urban 
area of Las Vegas. 

Sandoval: Any further questions or comments with regard to this Agenda item?  
Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  In defense of the expenditures in District 3, one 
needs to remember that 280 miles of Interstate 80 Transit District 3, and 
another 100, Transit District 2, and we as a state are obligated by the federal 
government to prioritize the interstate as number one.  And so whereas I-15 
in Southern Nevada is substantial and it is 120 miles, there is a major 
difference in the fact that Interstate 80 transits the entire northern section of 
the state.  And so I concur with the Lieutenant Governor that this Board 
should take the big picture in account and be mainly concerned about the 
entire state, and the fact that we will be expending major funds over the next 
several years with NEON and the Boulder City Bypass, I believe, balances 
things out into the objective that this Board is responsible to obtain going 
forward.  So that's my comment, Governor. 

Sandoval: Thank you.  Anyone else?  So, Mr. Director, is it appropriate for us to move 
back to Agenda Item 10? 

Malfabon: Yes.  Assistant Director for Planning, Tom Greco, will present Items 10 and 
11. 

Greco: Governor, members of the Board, good morning.  For the record, Tom 
Greco, Assistant Director of Planning.  Agenda Item No. 10 deals with 
amendments and modifications to our present STIP.  The 2012 to 2015 
document, which in our next Agenda item we are updating -- revising.  
Looking at Attachment A, which delineates amendments, which are major 
updates to the planning document, there is one amendment out of RTC 
Southern Nevada made up of two items.  And Item No. 6005 is to increase 
funding on a multistate study in the amount of about $113,000.  Any 
questions on that amendment?  Okay. 

 Moving on to 4148.  This is a major amendment in that it moves the airport 
connector out of year '13 and into '14, and in its place, funds US-95 to the 
amount of about $44 million. 

Sandoval: Mr. Greco, if I may interrupt you, I am not following you, at least with my 
materials that I have in front of me -- in front of us. 

52 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Malfabon: Governor, what's he's referring to would be the RTC number.  So you'll see 
in bold a CL number on page -- or Attachment A, there will be a CL201101 
RTC 4148.  So he's referring to the RTC number. 

Sandoval: Okay.  So that would be -- when you speak of the airport connector, we're 
looking at this third item under RTC of Southern Nevada? 

Greco: Yes, sir. 

Sandoval: All right. 

Greco: Yes, sir.  And that is the major amendment that moves the airport connector 
project out of physical year '13 into '14, and in that vacant space, Southern 
Nevada would like to support US-95, and all of the numbers that are in that 
paragraph below that.  And also in Attachment B, Modification on the next 
page, Modification CL17 also moves around funding to support the US-95 
project.  So the net result is that the airport project moves into next year, and 
the US-95 project is designated in '13, to the amount of $44 million.  So that 
covers the amendments and the first modification on Attachment B.  Any 
questions with those? 

Sandoval: Not a question, but with regard to Attachment A and B, relevant to the 
discussion that occurred in Agenda Item No. 12 is this Board takes its cue 
from -- with regard to priorities on the Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Plan from the local regional transportation entities, correct? 

Greco: Absolutely.  And the RTC of Southern Nevada, at a previous Board 
meeting, did approve these actions. 

Sandoval: So my point being is, I've -- at least in my experience here, we've never 
overridden the recommendation of the local RTCs when it comes to how 
they want their capital deployed as to specific projects. 

Greco: Understood. 

Sandoval: Yeah. 

Greco: And we would ask your acceptance, even though the action item does 
discuss approval of.  As you mentioned, the local agencies do the initial 
approval oversight and it is within their jurisdiction. 

53 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Sandoval: Board members, any questions or discussion with regard to the approval of 
amendments and administrative modifications to the FFY 2012/2015 
Statewide Transportation Improvement Program as recommended and 
approved by the local Regional Transportation Commission?  If there are no 
questions, the chair will accept a motion.  Oh, Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Thank you.  In referring to the modifications -- administrative 
modifications, CL 17, is that not only a revenue substitution?  Is it not also a 
budget increase? 

Greco: It is.  It increases the amount of NHPP funding by about 9 1/2 million 
dollars going toward the US-95 project. 

Fransway: Okay.  And I assume those funds are available funds? 

Greco: Readily.  Yes, they are, sir.  And while we're on the Attachment B 
modifications, there are two items there that are in addition to any Southern 
Nevada actions, and that is the NPO up at Tahoe wanting to do a funding 
decrease by about a half a million dollars, and the last item, statewide rural 
is a funding increase of about 2 1/2 million dollars on bridge work.  So those 
are also elements of this amend modification Agenda item. 

Sandoval: If there are no further questions or comments with regard to Agenda Item 
No. 10, the chair will accept a motion for approval. 

Krolicki: Move to approve. 

Sandoval: Lieutenant Governor has moved to approve.  Is there a second? 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: Second by -- it's the tie.  Second by Member Martin.  Any questions or 
discussion on the motion?  All in favor say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Motion passes unanimously.  We'll move on to Agenda Item 11. 

Malfabon: Governor, we would like to hand out a document that as we look through the 
draft Annual Work Program, which is under Public Comment right now, we 
notice some things which will be addressed in the presentation, but wanted 
to bring it to the Board's attention about some changes that we've made to 
the draft document.  They're listed in tabular form on this handout. 

54 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

 What happened was this STIP document has not -- because of the MAP-21 
enactment last year, the feds basically gave us a pass to get to a MAP-21 
compliant Statewide Transportation Improvement Program, so that's why 
we were operating under the previous STIP.  There were some major 
changes from the previous STIP document that we noted when we looked at 
the draft document, so these are -- the major ones are noted in the handout 
that we're giving to the Board.  With that, I guess I'll turn it back over to 
Tom Greco and Jason Van Havel. 

Greco: Thank you, Rudy.  Again, for the record, Tom Greco, Assistant Director of 
Planning, and our Planning Subject Mentor Expert. 

Van Havel: Jason Van Havel, Assistant Chief Transportation Multimodal Planning. 

Greco: And we plan an overview of Agenda Item No. 11.  We might have done that 
better.  We didn't rehearse.  Okay.  We have only four slides, so this will be 
short and sweet.  Transportation planning is a cooperative, comprehensive, 
and continuing process.  This document, that we had offered a draft to you 
recently, and to all other agencies and the public and on our website, the 
draft document comment period just ended yesterday, and the document is 
one very important document of our planning process. 

Van Havel: The Transportation System Project, the TSP, is a collaborative -- is 
developed in a collaborative effort with the Federal Highway 
Administration, NDOT, 17 counties, four MPOs of the state, tribal entities, 
and community input. 

Greco: So moving on to the elements within this document, the two major divisions 
is a work program and a STIP.  The work program is a one-year plan that is 
financially unconstrained, but it is close to as many projects as we are able 
to support.  There are extra in there if Project A needs to move out here, or 
be replaced with another one.  That's why there's more projects within the 
one-year program than there are funding support.  The other elements of the 
work program are the short-range plan, which is a two- to three-year 
element, and the long-range plan, which is a ten-year element that is mostly 
planning stages of future projects, and the Board does approve that element 
of this document. 

Van Havel: A couple of items on the STIP side that I wanted to point out is that the 
STIP shows all of the federal funding that is used in various projects.  If a 

55 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

project is going to use federal funding, it needs to be represented inside of 
the STIP.  The STIP also has financial constraints, so we cannot show more 
in projects going out than we what we have available money, reasonable 
expectation of money, to be able to cover those projects, and as you pointed 
out, Mr. Governor, that we incorporate the local TIPs from the four MPOs 
exactly as they are.  That's their jurisdiction, and they develop their TIPs, 
and we must incorporate their TIPs into the Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Program as is.  We cannot make changes to those, and those 
local TIPs are adopted by their local boards. 

Greco: And they are accepted by this Board.  I would like to move on to the 
tradition revision schedule of these documents.  So we start the effort in 
January, presenting workshops to the counties, the MPOs, tribal interests, 
public, anyone who wants to listen, we offer.  That input then is rolled into 
the first draft of a new document made available about April or May.  That 
goes out for review.  In June and July, and this year we actually scheduled it 
for June, July, and August, went out to the county commissioners with our 
district staff and our planning staff, gave them an update of the previous 
draft.  They accepted that document, and then in August, with any input 
during the tours, we update the draft again, and it goes out for public 
comment, which just ended yesterday.  And normally we would bring you a 
final document at this monthly meeting.  We are running a little behind.  We 
would like to offer the final draft next month's Board meeting.  And with 
your acceptance and approval of elements, then it moves on FHWA and 
FTA.  We would hope that by November the federal government is back in 
action.  Because right now FTA is on furlough, and would not be able to do 
that approval step.  After that document is approved, because Southern 
Nevada is generating an additional gas tax revenue and additional projects 
that will be supported by that revenue, we would expect a major amendment 
to this document early in the year. 

Van Havel: So once again, regarding the TSP document, we're presenting the draft to 
you here today, and we're going to come back to you in the November 
meeting and ask for the acceptance and approval at that time.  I did want to 
highlight a couple of -- and mention that there are some significant changes 
that are being made to the STIP, just at Rudy mentioned earlier, associated 
with the handout.  A couple of examples would be there's currently a project 
listed in the CAMPO TIP for a $20 million project that would address some 
of the safety issues in Mound House.  We're removing that project and 

56 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

installing a project into '14 that'll be a pavement and safety project, so that's 
an example of a change that we're making from the draft STIP that you 
have. 

 Another example is that in the draft STIP that you have, we show a $100 
million project for bonding activities to support the right-of-way activities 
on Project NEON.  Now, that project is not currently represented in the TIP 
for Southern Nevada.  So next month, when we bring back the final one for 
your acceptance, that project will not be listed there.  We are currently 
working with the RTC of Southern Nevada to get this projected listed into 
their TIP, but in the interest of public transparency, I think it would be not 
genuine to go forward with a public comment and not show a project of that 
magnitude.  So it was in there for the public comment.  Because of the way 
the rules of the whole process work, we were going to have to remove that 
to get this STIP accepted and adopted by FHWA, but we are working to get 
that into the TIP so we can get it into the STIP as quickly as possible.  So 
there's a couple of examples. 

Krolicki: Governor, thank you.  Jason, just -- maybe I missed it, but why is not part of 
the Clark County TIP to be part of this Project NEON? 

Van Havel: Well, the… 

Krolicki: This is not a -- I mean, this is something we've been discussing for some 
time. 

Van Havel: It has been something that we've been discussing for some time, but some of 
the particular numbers -- the particular course of action or how we're 
delivering the projects and the exact numbers are a later developing 
particular, and we can't just put in vanilla numbers.  We do have to show a 
financial constraint on the STIP.  And so we try to have some level of 
certainty before we move forward and, unfortunately, in this situation we do 
need to move forward quickly on the STIP side so that way none of that 
procedural item will impede the advancement of the NEON project. 

Krolicki: But you're talking about a hundred million dollar of bonding, so that's still 
not quantifiably definite enough to be put into the STIP? 

Malfabon: I can add to that, Lieutenant Governor.  The process that starts with the local 
RTC happens very early on, so at that time we had not the definite number 
that we do now, and we anticipate going to the IFC in December to request 

57 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

that formally.  But because they had started their process and had their 
regional TIP approved by their Board around May/June time frame, we were 
not in the -- that amendment was not made at that time. 

Van Havel: And then just to finish up, as Mr. Greco mentioned, that once the Board 
accepts the STIP and approves the annual work program, the STIP will 
advance to the Federal Highway Administration and the Federal Transit 
Administration for their approval, and also to the EPA for consultation.  
And at this time, Federal Transit and the EPA are both furloughed, so 
hopefully that will change by the time we need to seek action from those 
agencies. 

Greco: Let me mention that in the absence of a new approved document, we operate 
under the old document, and amend that as needed. 

Van Havel: We'll accept any questions if you have them. 

Sandoval: Board members, do you have any questions with regard to Agenda Item No. 
11?  Member Fransway. 

Fransway: So, Mr. Greco, am I correct by assuming that we are a month behind by our 
approval of the STIP documents and statewide plan? 

Greco: Member, Fransway, yes, that's an accurate statement. 

Fransway: Okay.  And then I'm assuming that there's no statutory deadline for us to 
make that approval. 

Greco: The federal guidelines require NDOT to bring a new document a minimum 
of once every four years.  So we're not up against any deadline there. 

Fransway: Okay.  Thank you. 

Sandoval: Any further questions?  Thank you, gentlemen. 

Van Havel: Thank you. 

Sandoval: Next item is Agenda Item 13, Report of the Status of Project NEON. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  Project Manager, Cole Mortensen will give the 
update. 

58 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Mortensen: Good morning, Governor, Members of the Board.  For the record, I'm Cole 
Mortensen, the Project Manager for Project NEON, and what I'd like to do 
today is provide you an update of what's going on with the project and then 
offer an opportunity for any questions.  We've got a lot of exciting things 
going on.  One of the things I'd like to do to start off with was just thank the 
project team and everyone who's helping to make this project move forward.  
There's a lot of work being done.  There's a lot more than I can fit in an 
update, so, you know, what'd we like to do here is just hit some of the high 
points. 

 One of the big things that's happened, I believe it was September 26th, we 
were in receipt of four Statement of Qualifications from interested partners 
for the project.  As you can see, they're listed up here in alphabetical order.  
Kiewit-Meridiam NEON Partners, Las Vegas NEON Ventures, NEON 
Mobility Group, and Silver State Mobility Partners.  And so we're excited 
about having some good competition on the projects as we move forward. 

 Another recent inclusion in the project is we've been working with the City 
of Las Vegas, and as you know we try not to impact an area as much as 
possible.  If we can get more work done with one project, we're often very 
excited to do so.  So we're working with the City of Las Vegas to actually 
have what was known as Phase 2 of the project which is the reestablishment 
of Martin Luther King from Alta to Oakey included with the public/private 
partnership.  At this point in time, the relationship between the city and 
NDOT would be outside of the relationship between NDOT and the 
public/private partner.  We'd come to an agreement for the cost of the work, 
the City of Las Vegas would pay us for that work, and then the private 
partner would design and build it. 

 As mentioned earlier, I believe, briefly by Director Malfabon, we have been 
briefing the Interim Finance Committee on the right-of-way bonding.  This 
right-of-way bonding has also included the discussion of the construction 
completion payment.  And just to bring back one of the slides that was 
shown in June, this slide shows -- at least the lower slide shows what we're 
anticipating for the P3 project, where what we're asking to do is go out with 
a bond up front here for the right-of-way.  We'll start acquiring that right-of-
way and enter into the agreement with a P3 developer, and then at 
construction completion, when our availability payments would start, we'd 
also be requesting another bond approval, at that point in time, as a 

59 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

construction completion payment to buydown on some of that principle to 
make it a bit better financing for us in the long run. 

 One of the other things that I know is often of interest is, of course, our 
right-of-way acquisition and where we're at with Phase 1.  As it is right now, 
we have 71 percent of the parcels acquired as a percentage of the anticipated 
cost, so this includes -- the 71 percent is the actual cost that we've either 
spent for right-of-way or occupancy, and then the remaining is what we'd 
anticipate for those parcels.  So we're still in the process, and we anticipate 
being able to wrap that up in the next four to six months.  We're also 
working with some of the property owners to try to keep them in place as 
long as we can so that they have the opportunity to function and to look for 
better sites to relocate.  And so we're trying to be flexible with the property 
owners, as well, with the P3 project as we're moving forward here. 

Sandoval: Are we within budget as well? 

Mortensen: Our projected budget right now is still within what we had budgeted for the 
right-of-way acquisition.  Now, of course, we still have a number of those 
properties that have gone to condemnation, so the ultimate cost of those 
projects, or those properties, we don't quite have our hands around yet, but 
we will. 

Sandoval: Madam Controller? 

Wallin: To follow up with the Governor, his comment, are we on budget with the 
right-of-way, can you, by next month, get me the schedule of right-of-way 
where we said this is how much we think we're going to have to pay and this 
is how much we actually paid that I asked for last November and again in 
February, and Member Martin also asked for it in February, as well. 

Mortensen: I can certainly make sure that you get that in your hands. 

Wallin: Thank you. 

Mortensen: One last slide here that I wanted to bring up, just once again to let you guys 
know where we're at with the project.  With the inclusion of Phase 4 and 
Phase 2, we're actually having to ramp up a little bit more than what we'd 
originally anticipated, so I'm working with the project team to see what we 
can do to still meet that February deadline.  But I do want to point out that 
when we do come back to you in February, it's going to be kind of the draft 

60 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

final RFP, and once that goes out to industry, there will be negotiations that 
take place throughout the RFP response and evaluation period when they're 
actually developing their proposals.  In August of 2014, you'll once again 
have the opportunity to approve the selected proposer.  At that time we'll 
have a more polished RFP -- or contract that we can put in front of you, and 
then once we get through the negotiations process with that proposer, once 
again the Transportation Board will be offered the opportunity to approve 
that contract before we actually move into construction for the project. 

 So right now, without getting into many of the details that we have on the 
technical side of things, I'd like to conclude with that. 

Sandoval: So we are on schedule? 

Mortensen: Right now we're evaluating what we can do to meet the schedule, as I 
mentioned, with the addition of Phases 2 and 4.  It's added a bit more work 
than we had originally anticipated, but we're still going to be shooting for 
that early 2014 target and moving forward. 

Sandoval: And those additions, as you mentioned in your presentation, are in the name 
of efficiency and less disruption? 

Mortensen: Correct.  Correct.  And to some extent available funding.  The City has the 
funding available for Phase 2 within that period of time, and so it really 
makes sense for them to work with us to get that included into the project, as 
well, so... 

Sandoval: Well, and that's what I mean by efficiency. 

Mortensen: Yeah. 

Sandoval: Not only are we doing it all at once, but you're -- today's dollars are… 

Mortensen: Absolutely. 

Sandoval: …obviously cheaper than later dollars. 

Mortensen: Absolutely.  And it also works into an economy of scale for that work, as 
well.  It'll be cheaper if we can have it done as part of the P3 project, as 
well. 

Sandoval: Questions or comments from Board members? 

61 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Martin: Yes, sir. 

Sandoval: Member Martin. 

Martin: Yes, sir.  Is there a milestone schedule out there on a P3 or P6 or Microsoft 
Office that you can share with the Board members on this process? 

Mortensen: I believe that we can do that with you.  We do have -- that's been something 
we've held in confidence, but I think that's something we can certainly share 
with you.  What we do is we have an overall schedule and a layout for it in 
Microsoft Project, at this point in time, but I can certainly get that to you 
either in a PDF or a Word document just so that you can see some of those 
dates that we're really shooting to hit right now. 

Martin: Thank you.  That would be much appreciated. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  And if you could get those -- I'm glad that the Controller has a better 
memory than I do, but when it comes to that information that she is seeking, 
if we could -- if that could be supplied, that would be great. 

Mortensen: Absolutely.  Absolutely. 

Sandoval: Any other -- Member Fransway has a comment. 

Fransway: Thank you, Governor.  Cole, are we going to be discussing the request to 
include Phase 2 from the City of Las Vegas today? 

Mortensen: Certainly, if you'd like.  It's really an agreement between NDOT and the 
City, and it's a receivable for us.  Yeah, I… 

Fransway: And that's entirely funded by the City of Las Vegas, correct? 

Mortensen: Not entirely.  There's a certain portion of MLK that was going to be required 
to be reestablished by NDOT since we are disrupting it, and so we're 
working with the City on what those costs are.  And originally we were 
going to be making some of those reestablishments as part of Phase 1.  And 
so rather than going through and building a two-lane MLK to reestablish the 
portions that we're disrupting, the City's working with us to provide them 
with a four-lane MLK in the future. 

Fransway: Okay.  Did the City Council of Las Vegas then take official action to request 
that inclusion? 

62 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Mortensen: We're working -- I made a presentation to the City Council in, I believe it 
was August, and they were in support of it at that time.  However, we 
haven't officially brought it before them in the form of an agreement.  So as 
we develop that agreement it will go before the City Council, and then I 
don't recall whether or not it would actually be included as an Agenda item 
for the Transportation Board to approve or not. 

Fransway: Well, being that it's part of Project NEON, I would assume that it would 
come here. 

Sandoval: Well, at a minimum in the context of how it fits with the entire project.  If 
there are other -- I think it's very good that we're doing this, and as we said, 
in the name of efficiency and cost and less disruption, but it -- so we can 
have a full understanding how everything fits together and... 

Mortensen: Absolutely. 

Sandoval: Is that what you're seeking, Tom? 

Fransway: Yes. 

Mortensen: And as I mentioned, we're still very early on in the development of that 
information.  As I mentioned, we don't have a finalized agreement with 
them yet at this point in time.  We're still really looking at the feasibility in 
developing those costs, too, and so we can certainly come back and discuss 
that. 

Fransway: Thank you. 

Sandoval: And that makes sense.  I mean, it's logical that we wouldn't be approving 
that when we haven't even approved the project ourselves.  Any further 
questions or comments from Board members?  Thank you, Mr. Mortensen. 

Mortensen: Thank you. 

Sandoval: We'll move on to Agenda Item No. 14. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  This item will be presented by Assistant Director for 
Engineering John Terry. 

Terry: Once again, John Terry, Assistant Director of Engineering.  We're talking 
today about the agreement between the LVCVA and NDOT, the various 

63 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

projects that have been developed to date, and where we're going to go with 
the remaining money from the agreement. 

 Going back, the funding for all of this was provided by AB 595 at the 2000 
legislature that a portion of the room tax in Las Vegas was to be assigned for 
transportation project improvements. AB 595 had other things in it, but this 
was probably the biggest money part that was in that.  And working with the 
LVCVA and NDOT, we decided that the LVCVA would sell bonds against 
this room tax money, and they have sold bonds in the amount of $300 
million. 

 So to date, we have done the I-15 Express Lanes Project back in 2007 to '09, 
Contract 3355 for $21 million, LVCVA funds.  And then those express 
lanes were from 215 to Sahara.  We added a lane in each direction.  Two of 
the lanes became express lanes, and it really improved the travel times on a 
critical stretch of I-15.  Then we did Design-Build South from 2009 to 2012, 
which was NDOT Contract 3366 DB, $279 million of LVCVA. 

 So the I-15 South Design-Build Project, we talked a lot about here.  I think 
most of you know what it was.  That project is completed and closed out.  
Go ahead.  And so essentially now we have five lanes in each direction all 
the way to Sahara, plus lots of improvements in the south end in terms of 
collector roads, and we have the express lanes. 

 With those projects, the average vehicle speeds have really increased on 
I-15 from Blue Diamond to south of Sahara, accidents and severity of 
accidents have been reduced, and we've really improved the access to the 
South Las Vegas strip.  Go ahead.  And so now we have money left.  So 
NDOT currently owns and maintains Tropicana Avenue.  We maintain the 
Tropicana Avenue/Las Vegas Boulevard pedestrian bridges.  These are the 
first of these groups of bridges that were built.  These were built in 1992, 
and really were the first ones, and the escalators, especially, are extremely 
expensive to maintain, and they have poor service because they break down 
a lot currently. 

 So we have $19 1/2 million left from the $300 million bond sale.  The 
previous projects are complete, so we went ahead and closed out the 
previous agreements with the Convention and Visitors Authority for 
spending that money.  We have now executed a new agreement with the 
Convention and Visitors Authority to spend the remaining $19 1/2 million.  

64 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

We're going to spend it on this Tropicana Avenue/Las Vegas Boulevard 
area.  We're also going to do some improvements for ADA improvements 
on Tropicana Avenue, as well as safety improvements, like the barriers that 
are down there surrounding the escalators and the bridges on Tropicana 
Avenue. 

 So we have really high -- obviously, really high pedestrian and vehicular 
volumes.  The project will definitely improve the reliability of the bridges, 
reduce the long-term maintenance, improve the escalators and machinery, 
and we are coordinating with the abutting resorts.  That's going to be kind of 
complicated.  More response from the New York-New York than the other 
ones, and we're going to work that in as a part of the process. 

 Tropicana Avenue improvements include some handicap ramp 
improvements, sidewalk upgrades, replacement of barriers, and we're going 
to upgrade the esthetics.  These are kind of pictures of the existing escalators 
that are out there.  There's this one and the next one shows we have some 
issues where we've got to fix on the bridges, but in general, the bridges are 
not being rehabbed.  They're just going to -- maybe some esthetics.  It's 
really the escalators and elevators.  Another picture of -- at the MGM Grand, 
these escalators have caused us a lot of problems.  And the next one. 

 So currently the design is underway.  The construction is proposed to begin 
the end of 2013, and continue into '15.  This type of construction is very 
labor intensive, so it will create a lot of jobs.  More jobs in proportion than 
say a highway project just because of the nature of the vertical construction. 

 And I ran it through our project delivery methods.  We're not very familiar 
with this type of vertical construction, although we built them originally 
many years ago, but this is a rehab.  Through our selection process, we 
selected the CMAR process for use on this project and we also are updating 
our Pioneer Program Guidelines so that the new AB 283 passed in this 
current legislature is incorporated and that we are in compliance with that as 
we proceed with CMAR in this project.  And with that, I can answer any of 
your questions. 

Sandoval: Historically there was some negotiation between the State and the County 
regarding taking ownership of these escalators, and if my recollection is 
correct, there was an indication by the County that it would take ownership 
once these were replaced.  Is that still on the table? 

65 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Terry: There were again indications by the County and we continue to work with 
the County, but we have been down this road before.  We are working hard 
to get with the County and/or the resorts to get us out of the maintenance.  It 
could be some combination of the resorts, specifically New York-New 
York, taking over maintenance of stuff that they want to improve on their 
corner with the County taking over others.  No guarantees, but we're 
working very hard to make that happen. 

Sandoval: Because that conversation was going on when I was the Attorney General. 

Terry: That is clearly the intent.  That the escalators currently are not really 
escalators designed for this type of outdoor service, to replace them with 
escalators -- new technologies that weren't available in '92, that are 
escalators that are more appropriate for this location, so the maintenance 
will be less, as well as the other upgrades, so that we can work with the 
County to turn it over to them or the resorts.  That is our intent, yes, sir. 

Sandoval: I have no further questions.  Board members?  Member Fransway? 

Fransway: Mr. Terry, when do you expect action to be taken relative to the long-term 
maintenance of those escalators? 

Terry: The County will -- and others will come to us as we develop the project.  In 
other words, saying we're going to update the escalators to a level that 
reduces the maintenance, we're only at a low level of design now.  We've 
got to work, and they attend our meetings, to see that those escalators are 
being designed that way, and incorporate that agreement, as we develop the 
project with the money that's available. 

Fransway:  Okay.  So it will be an incorporation of the agreement? 

Terry: Yes.   

Fransway:  Okay.   

Terry: And they will cooperate, as well, in the development of the project. 

Fransway: Okay, good. 

Sandoval: Any other questions or comments?  Thank you, Mr. Terry. 

Terry: Thank you. 

66 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Sandoval: Agenda Item 15, Briefing on Statewide and Local Bike Plans. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  The next item will be presented by Bill Story, 
Manager of Bicycle and Pedestrian Programs.  And as you recall, the State 
has been looking into not only the State Bicycle Plan, but implementation of 
that plan and looking at local bike plans by county.  Bill? 

Story: Hi.  Thank you for having me here today.  I'd like to give you an update on 
our project in creating these bicycle plans.  One thing that came out of these 
plans is to develop a vision and some objectives and determine what is 
needed.  Now, I should say that the four MPOs, they have their own process 
and they are the planning entities within those jurisdictions, so essentially 
this ended up being a high-level rural plan looking at those other parts of the 
state.  And so our goal is to try to get as many people out biking as possible, 
create as much mode shift as possible, and make it a convenient and safe 
experience.  Right here the mode share and reducing the crashes, relevant to 
the Zero Fatalities Campaign also. 

 So as we went out to do this plan, we went out to all these communities in 
the rural parts of the state.  We looked at existing conditions.  We looked at 
how they connect to schools and attractors, such as senior centers, things 
like that.  What kinds of users they have, what kinds of programs, if there 
were any issues with law enforcement or any other opportunities that maybe 
they had not thought of or that were out there that we were unaware of.  We 
looked to see if they had any standards, any other amenities, such as parking 
or shower facilities, things like that that people could use, and we also -- 
what we heard loudly from a lot of these communities is how important the 
cycle tourism in the rural parts of the state has become, especially along the 
Highway 50 corridor.  And then we also brought out and showed them the 
new U.S. Bike Route System, which I'll show you in a couple minutes.  So 
we went out, we did a state tour.  We met in most of the communities -- 
most of those rural communities and we developed a plan to go forward, 
collected data, and we recommended in the plan, which I believe you were 
all provided, strategies and an implementation plan, and as part of that, we 
also provided training workshops in bicycle facilities, both in the south and 
in the north, under that contract.  So once again, these are the areas outside 
of the RTC Southern Nevada, Washoe RTC, CAMPO, and Tahoe MPO 
areas.  But what we did also look at is how we connect with other states, all 
the adjoining states, and how those counties can also connect to these MPO 

67 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

plans.  We want to make sure they're not routing bicycles in a particular 
direction and we're not having facilities to match up on the other side of 
their jurisdiction. 

 So these three colors basically show the trips that were taken.  This is a list 
of the cities that we went out to and met with people in public meetings, and 
collected data.  We went out, we collected data, actually, on the highways.  
We measured highways, we -- anytime the character of the highway 
changed, we documented that, and we got input both at the meetings and we 
also had a web-based survey that anyone in the state could log in to, and 
people from out of the state could log in to and provide us input. 

Sandoval: One quick question, why was Clark County so low proportionally to the 
population? 

Story: On this part?  On the survey? 

Sandoval: Yes. 

Story: Yeah.  This was a survey on the web, and even though we did notify all the 
bicycle groups in all -- throughout the state, obviously Washoe got their 
people together and provided lots of comments is what that was.  We did not 
provide meetings in Clark or Washoe or anything like that.  We just, pretty 
much by email, sent the word out to the known bicycle clubs and groups out 
there that if they wanted to comment on the state plan they could, and this 
was basically the makeup of the responses that we got, based off the Web.  
This was the Web only. 

 One thing I wanted to show is part of it is knowing what our customer base 
is, and this top diagram is actually a national diagram.  It actually came out 
of one of the planners in Portland, but it's pretty -- a lot of the other states 
are using it.  It's very significant in that it's pretty standard throughout the 
United States that these are the percentages we're looking at.  And what 
we're looking at -- and you can see that that little pink line on the left, that is 
your spandex crowd.  Those are the recreationalist cyclists that are out all 
time, and they are the strong, the fearless.  It does not matter what facilities 
are there, they're comfortable riding in traffic.  And then you go to the 
enthused and confident.  Those who ride some, but are not quite as 
confident.  But the big group we're looking at is those people that are 
interested and have indicated through surveys that they would like to use 

68 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

their bicycle more, but they're afraid, either from traffic conditions or what 
other -- physical shape, temperature, environment, any of those types of 
things.  So that's the group -- and, of course, on the right we have a group 
that will never be interested.  So in the State Bicycle Plan, we basically 
broke that into two sectors, the experienced and confident group and the 
casual and less confident group, and looked at it that way. 

 We saw many examples out there of good conditions where we have wide 
shoulders; we have lots of room for vehicles and bicycles to operate side-by-
side.  We had excellent -- some communities had excellent wayfaring where 
it was very, very easy to find where you were going to get to schools to get 
to parks.  Lots of good facilities out on the ground in these rural 
communities.  Lots of innovative features where we have new facilities that 
are being built and they make an extra effort to connect to neighborhoods 
that would be otherwise cut off to these major new bike facilities.  So that 
was excellent to see.  This is actually out in Fernley.  And we also, 
obviously, had our share of poor conditions.  We had areas where we had 
constraints that are difficult, and expensive constraints to fix.  We had lots 
and lots of the state with little or no shoulder, where the bicycles -- and 
because of the rumble strips, the bicycles have to ride in the travel lane, and, 
of course, we have the environmental conditions that we deal with in 
Nevada. 

 So we are also looking for other opportunities, opportunities like the picture 
on the left of restriping, where we have an extremely wide center turn lane 
in a rural community, and there would be opportunities to provide more 
shoulder.  Abandoned railway corridors.  The right-hand picture is actually a 
picture off I-80 where the old highway parallels for miles and miles, but 
knowing where to get on and where to get off so that you can use that 
facility is not designated.  Construction accommodation, that came out in 
these rural communities -- in all communities, actually.  Making sure that 
we're accommodating the bikes, we're providing a way to get them through 
our construction when we do our needed construction. 

 And another specific problem area where we are working on a fix for that is 
part of the Carlin Tunnel Project.  And in this particular situation we had no 
option if you were an eastbound cyclist touring, going across the state, that 
you could take the old highway eastbound around the Carlin Tunnels, but 
once you got on the east side, the only thing you could do was run across the 

69 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

freeway.  And they thought that was so provocative that when they would 
call that we would say, well, you're going to have to go across the freeway, 
be very careful, all that, that they would take pictures of it, and there's 
pictures of this stuff all over the Web that they have to run across the 
freeway to get back to the other side.  So as part of the Carlin project we are 
building a facility that will go under that bridge and take them to the proper 
side of the highway. 

Sandoval: And that was -- that is a temporary situation, in other words? 

Story: Which?   

Sandoval: The bottom right slide. 

Story: Yes.  This situation is now being fixed as part of the Carlin project. 

Krolicki: (Inaudible) is being constructed (inaudible)... 

Story: Being constructed as part of that project. 

Krolicki: We saw... 

Story: Yeah. 

Sandoval: We being the Lieutenant Governor and I just drove it, but when is the 
project completion for that? 

Story: On the Carlin?  It's a two-year project, right, so it's probably '15, that would 
be my guess.  I'm getting ahead.  I'm getting ahead now.  Probably 2015, as 
part of that project.  That's right. 

 As part of our going out in the rurals, we were very surprised to hear how 
important cycling tourism has become to those rurals.  They've really 
decided, especially on the 50 corridor, that these cyclists are coming in that 
are not carrying a lot of gear.  They're buying food and hotel rooms and all 
these things.  So that became a very high priority that came out of the plan.  
And so we also looked at events people are doing, projects that they're 
building, and ways that we can improve or enhance that segment of it.  And 
we get this question when we're out there a lot, "Well, you know, we don't 
understand why we see all these cyclists out here."  Well, you know, they're 
here because of the all reasons that we can't understand why they're riding 
out here.  You know, the example I use is that if you look at National Park 

70 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Service data, Death Valley's highest visitation, by far, is July and August, 
because people want to be there in the extreme, and the same thing is true.  
We get some in the fall -- some in the fall, but our highest numbers of riders 
coming through are during the heat.  They want to go across that Great 
Basin when it's at its peak. 

 As part of that, other states have -- those documents on the right, other states 
have actually evaluated cycle tourism to see the effect on the state, and the 
numbers are fairly impressive.  Arizona just completed a study, and it's -- 
just from people coming from outside the state it's $88 million a year that 
they're bringing into Arizona, these cyclists.  Iowa down on the bottom, 
almost $500 million a year into that economy.  They have one event in Iowa 
that's $18 million in one week brought into the economy.  So it's becoming a 
big thing and we're starting to see more of that. 

 Some other reasons specific to Nevada, we are the loneliest highway, and 
we're on the Western Express, which I'll explain, which is a national cycling 
route.  Some states are promoting scenic bikeways, which is something 
we're looking at with our state parks and our tourism officials, designating 
specific scenic bikeways.  They're coming here because of these low volume 
rural roadways.  They're looking for state-sponsored tours, the first of which 
we just -- it was actually the third year.  You can see that Park to Park Pedal 
that Nevada State Parks sponsors in Lincoln County; it was just last 
weekend again, and that event tends to double each year.  The other thing 
that we were successful is getting State Parks -- this was actually the 
Bicycle/Pedestrian Advisory Board made a request several years ago to 
Nevada State Parks to develop a permanent written policy that if you're a 
touring cyclist you would not be turned away even it was 4th of July, 
campground full.  You'd still have to pay the money, but they would find a 
spot for you.  And that is a tool that we can use to market that, you know, 
they can feel confident that when they get to a state park they'll always have 
a place to go.  So that was signed about three or four years ago. 

 The Western Express Route, just to explain why we have so many on 
Highway 50, the Adventure Cycling Association, which is a nonprofit out of 
Montana, has routes all over the United States, and as you can see, one of 
the main east/west routes is the Western Express from San Francisco to 
Pueblo, Colorado, and that it why we're seeing so many cyclists on Highway 
50.  And they're from all over the world.  We were out recently, in one 

71 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

afternoon counted 12 in July, and most of them from out of the country, 
most of them from other countries. 

 As a lead-in from the Western Express Route, AASHTO has also now 
approved, and the MUTCD has a sign that is now approved, to develop U.S. 
bike routes throughout the country.  And there are going to be three that 
come through our state that roughly follow the 80 corridor, the 50 corridor, 
and the 15 corridor.  Now, the ideal situation would be that they're not on 
those heavy-used corridors, but in Nevada much of it will be on those 
freeways and highways.  So we're working right now to -- we're actually in 
negotiations with Caltrans that you have to all your surrounding states sign 
off that the routes you want to sign and want to develop are amenable to 
them and are what they're thinking, also, at the border.  So right now we're 
dealing mainly with Caltrans in the Tahoe area as to how those routes will 
come over. 

 So the resulting objectives that came out of the high-level state plan were to 
develop community plans..  These rural communities said, great, you know, 
where can we start, how can we get a plan to implement this U.S. bike route 
system, to increase bike tourism, and to make sure that we have the 
appropriate facilities where needed on any of our state highways, and to also 
look at increasing both vehicle driver and bicyclist knowledge of traffic 
laws, both through education programs and awareness campaigns, so we've 
begun that through our education program. 

 Now, the rural bike plans, coming out of that statewide plan, we have now 
entered into a contract to develop 14 rural bike plans for all those 14 rural 
counties, and this will be a much more on the ground, what types of 
facilities and what specific programs they want in their communities.  Once 
again, it'll be outside the MPO areas, and we've currently had workshops in 
one county, and we'll be continuing from -- starting, actually, next month we 
go to Lyon and Churchill County and hold public workshops and develop 
these plans.  These plans will look at, once again, specific things down at the 
county level, and the community level, both from the programmatic, the law 
enforcement, the tourism side, and actual facilities on the ground, and they 
will be approved by those local entities and then come to NDOT for 
approval.  So in a nutshell, that's the two projects. 

Sandoval: Questions or comments from Board members?  This -- a lot of work went 
into this. 

72 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Story: Yeah. 

Sandoval: And I really want to make sure that that's acknowledged by the Board, and I 
really appreciate it.  Very informative and it looks like there are exciting 
things on the horizon. 

Story: There are. 

Malfabon: And, Governor, I wanted to point out that Bill does a lot of interaction with 
that MPOs for their urban areas and their bike plans of those urban areas, 
because definitely although there wasn't a lot of Web comments from Clark 
County, there's definitely an advocacy group down there that works with the 
RTC and NDOT, because some of the solutions are on NDOT roads in 
Clark County. 

Krolicki: Absolutely. 

Sandoval: Yeah.  We were just -- the Lieutenant Governor and I were -- had a side 
conversation.  We'd like to see the people who ride up Austin Summit, 
because... 

Story: Yeah.  Yeah.  That's a dream breaker there because from Fallon heading 
east, that's a bad end to your day. 

Sandoval: Dream breaker.  I haven't heard that one. 

Krolicki: That's a good term for it.  Governor, if I may.  Bill, thank you.  And 
obviously a lot of work has gone into this.  You keep mentioning the 
tourism piece, and as part -- you know, one of my hats is with tourism.  We 
have FAM Tours.  I mean, some of the Germans in particular love to bike 
through Nevada.  But would you just tell me how you are indeed with the 
Nevada Commission on Tourism or the rural tourism territories, the 
volunteer groups, to really make sure that you're, you know, sucking up all 
of the information that they've acquired in a hands-on basis with the bikers, 
please. 

Story: Certainly.  As a result of this plan, and hearing what we did in these rural 
communities, we did start having meetings with Commission on Tourism.  
We were invited to their Rural Roundup.  We provided a presentation on 
bike touring and how it can affect these local communities.  We heard lots 
of great input from especially those folks on 50 that are getting a lot of the 

73 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

bike tourists now, and want to increase those numbers.  We even see -- I 
monitor quite a bit of the blogs on the touring cyclists just trying to see what 
their needs are, if they're running into problems, you know, and many of 
them now, both going east and west, they're shipping their camping 
equipment forward ahead of them to lighten up so they can carry more water 
in the Great Basin, and as a result, that means they're buying hotel rooms 
and meals in every town as they go across and... 

Krolicki: I got stuck in the Legislature during this year's Rural Roundup so that's why 
I missed that. 

Story: Okay. 

Krolicki: Thank you.  Thank you for doing that.  That's just terribly, you know, 
exciting, and it's important, and thank you for working with these folks. 

Sandoval: And do you -- to follow up on Lieutenant Governor on the tourism website, 
there were suggested itineraries for weekends and things.  Is there a link for 
suggested bike itineraries on that website? 

Story: Well, and that's part of the Scenic Bikeway Program.  Both Wisconsin and 
Oregon had developed these programs where you actually put just on the 
Web, instructions and all the necessary information someone would need to 
go do a two-day ride or a three-day ride, just in a small section of the state.  
And we've identified about three or four sections, initially, in the state where 
we think that would work, because you got to have places to stay and water 
and things along the way.  And we are moving forward.  We've discussed 
that some with State Parks representatives.  A lot of times it will tie into the 
state parks and we're definitely going to be bringing that forward to those 
rural territory areas on the tourism side to try to actually get those nailed 
down, and then part of that is also getting the businesses on board so that 
what those states do is the businesses put a little sticker in their window that 
lets those cyclists know that they're a part of this bike touring -- Scenic 
Bikeway Program so that they know where they're going to be welcomed. 

Krolicki: Governor, if you can back me up, I'm going to put Bill on the spot  A biking 
event statewide certainly sounds like something the Nevada 
Sesquicentennial celebration would enjoy and benefit from, and I'm sure 
Bill has tremendous ideas to share with us and to register his event for 
Nevada's birthday celebration. 

74 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Story: Yes.  We've already begun that.  In work with the western nine counties, 
USDA Tourism Economic Development plan that was developed, I can't 
remember quite the exact acronym for it.  But we are looking at having a 
sesquicentennial state-sponsored ride with in the future hopes that it would 
continue every year, but maybe be in a different part of the state every year. 

Krolicki: Not every 50 years. 

Story: Hmm? 

Krolicki: Not ever 50. 

Story: Yeah, exactly. 

Sandoval: We're looking to seeing the Lieutenant Governor in his spandex. 

Story: That's right. 

Unidentified Male:  In the Legislative gift shop they have Nevada Battle Born spandex.  I -- 
what's your size? 

Sandoval: All right.  Any further questions or comments?  We better stop there.  All 
right.  Thank you very much. 

Story: All right. 

Sandoval: We'll move on to Agenda Item No. 16, Old Business. 

Malfabon: Thank you, Governor.  The first three parts of that Agenda item, A, B, and 
C, deal with some legal issues.  I wanted to mention on Item C, this 
settlement was associated with the accident that occurred with the truck 
escape ramp on Mount Rose Highway, where the truck went off the end of 
the ramp and ended up hitting a house, which was destroyed.  So this was a 
settlement that was very reasonable for the State to accept, only $25,000 in 
that particular case.  With that, Dennis Gallagher, our Chief Deputy 
Attorney General, is here to answer any questions on A, B, and C of this 
item of old business. 

Sandoval: Any highlights, Mr. Gallagher? 

Gallagher: Governor, I recognize the meeting's running long, but since it is so rare that 
I get to give the Board good news, we've had some developments in some of 
the litigation that occurred after the report was prepared.  So I'd like to 

75 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

report that in addition to that particular settlement, there were two lawsuits 
out of Clark County that named the State in a horrific accident where an 
allegedly impaired driver plowed into a bus stop, killing and seriously 
injuring a number of people.  We've been dismissed from that lawsuit.  The 
State had no relationship whatsoever to either the highway or the particular 
street. 

 But also I'd like to report that previously you're aware that the State was 
named in a number of lawsuits that stemmed from the tractor trailer/train 
collision out on, I believe, Highway 95.  There were over nine cases naming 
the State representing dozens of claimants.  We are in the process of getting 
dismissed out of probably all of them.  There's a couple of loose ends, so I'm 
hoping that we will be dismissed out of all of them, and look forward to 
bringing that up again next month. 

Sandoval: And that's associated with the tragedy with the Amtrak train up near Fallon? 

Gallagher: Yes.  Yes. 

Sandoval: Okay.  Any questions or comments from Board members with regard to 
Agenda Item 16?  Thank you very much. 

Malfabon: Governor, on Item D, the Fatality Report, although we're seeing a lower 
trend as far as the latest statistics, the Board information provided 12 less 
fatalities compared to last year.  The latest dated October 7th is seven less 
than last year, although it's unfortunate that we kind of saw a little uptick, it 
is still on a good trend for less fatalities than last year. 

 The last item had to do with Freeway Service Patrol costs, and that was an 
old business item that was requested by the Board for that information.  As 
you can see, the total hourly cost on Attachment E shows that the actual 
costs for us to perform it was about 98 bucks per van hour, so it wasn't as 
cost-effective as we thought initially, but the information is provided here 
for the Board's consideration and any questions. 

Sandoval: Questions from Board members?  I know Member -- this has been a priority 
for Member Savage.  He's had an opportunity to visit with you about this. 

Savage: Yes. 

Sandoval: Okay. 

76 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Malfabon: And I would like to just add, Governor, I forgot to acknowledge some 
assistance that I received in putting together that equity and transportation 
funding presentation.  I wanted to acknowledge Tracy Larkin-Thomason, 
the Deputy Director in Southern Nevada, for her efforts in that, and also the 
folks in Performance Management, Dale Lindsey, in collecting all that 
information.  That was -- a lot of effort that went into that to pull that 
information together. 

Fransway: Governor? 

Sandoval: Member Fransway. 

Fransway: Yes.  Is there any way that we, as an organization, can minimize the 
difference between actual and estimated on the costs of the roadside service? 

Malfabon: I think that we have to -- what we have to do is to watch and prevent what 
happened last time with the contract.  Gradually, the performance period 
was kind of extended just by the operations and not giving specific 
direction.  So, geographically, the limits kind of expanded and the hours of 
operation kind of grew, as well, and we wanted to kind of target the 
commute hours and target the specific areas that had a lot of congestion and 
that could really get the bang from the buck by improving operations and 
clearing these incidents off the shoulders of the road.  So I think that what 
we can do to maintain costs is to make sure that they comply with the 
geographic restrictions and the hourly restrictions that we've implemented in 
the contract. 

Sandoval: And at the end of the day, the takeaway is it's cheaper to privatize than have 
the Department (inaudible)… 

Malfabon: Yes.  For this specific contract it is, yes. 

Sandoval: Anything further, Mr. Director, on Agenda Item 16? 

Malfabon: That's it, Governor. 

Sandoval: All right.  We'll move to Agenda Item 17, Public Comment.  Is there any 
member of the public here in Carson City that would like to provide 
comment to the Board?  Anyone present in Las Vegas that would like to 
provide comment to the Board? 

Martin: No, sir. 

77 



Minutes of Nevada Department of Transportation 
Board of Director’s Meeting 

October 14, 2013 
 

Sandoval: All right.  It's been a long meeting, but a good one.  I appreciate all the 
information and the level of detail that we've had for the items in the 
Agenda.  Is there a motion to adjourn? 

Fransway: So moved. 

Sandoval: Member Fransway… 

Martin: Second. 

Sandoval: …adjourn, second by Member Martin.  All in favor say aye. 

Group: Aye. 

Sandoval: Motion passes unanimously the members present, this meeting is adjourned.  
Thank you, ladies and gentlemen. 

 

 

 

_____________________________   ______________________________ 

Secretary to the Board     Preparer of Minutes 

 

78 



MEMORANDUM
November 6, 2013 

TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT:      November 13, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #5:  Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000 – For Possible Action 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary:  

The purpose of this item is to present to the Board a list of construction contracts over $5,000,000 for 
discussion and approval. 

Background: 

The Department contracts for services relating to the construction, operation and maintenance of the 
State’s multi-modal transportation system. Contracts listed in this item are all low-bid per statute.  

The attached construction contracts constitute all contracts over $5,000,000 for which the bids were 
opened and the analysis completed by the Bid Review and Analysis Team and Contract Compliance 
section of the Department from September 24, 2013, to October 23, 2013. 

Analysis: 

These contracts have been prepared following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada Revised 
Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or Department policies and 
procedures.  

List of Attachments: 

A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Contracts Over $5,000,000, September 24,
2013, to October 23, 2013.

Recommendation for Board Action:    

Approval of all contracts listed on Attachment A. 

Prepared by: The Administrative Services Division 

1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
1 of 12



Attachment 

A 

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
2 of 12



Attachment A 

STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

CONTRACTS OVER $5,000,000 

September 24, 2013 to October 23, 2013 

1. September 19, 2013 at 1:30 p.m. the following bid was opened and read on Department of
Transportation Contract No. 3550, Project No. STP-0032(126), 2" Mill, 2" PBS with Open-
Grade and 3 3/4" Mill, 1" Stress Relief Course, 2" PBS with Open-Grade on SR227, SR535,
and SR225 in Elko County.

Road and Highway Builders LLC. ....................................................................... $19,656,656.00 
Q & D Construction, Inc. ..................................................................................... $20,699,982.71 
W.W. Clyde & Co ,............................................................................................... $21,130,358.53 
Granite Construction Company...........................................................................$21,333,333.00 
Staker Parson Companies................................................................................... $24,186,074.15 

The Director recommends awarding the contract to Road and Highway Builders in the 
amount of $19,656,656.00.  

Engineer's Estimate: $19,319,354.38 

Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
3 of 12



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
4 of 12



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
5 of 12



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
6 of 12



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
7 of 12



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
8 of 12



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
9 of 12



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
10 of 12



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
11 of 12



Approval of Contracts Over $5,000,000
12 of 12



MEMORANDUM
  November 6, 2013 

TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT:      November 13, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #6: Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 -  For Possible Action 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary:  

The purpose of this item is to provide the Board a list of agreements over $300,000 for 
discussion and approval following the process approved at the July 11, 2011 Transportation 
Board meeting.  This list consists of any design build contracts and all agreements (and 
amendments) for non-construction matters, such as consultants, service providers, etc. that 
obligate total funds of over $300,000, during the period from September 24, 2013, to October 
23, 2013. 

Background: 

The Department contracts for services relating to the development, construction, operation and 
maintenance of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. The attached agreements 
constitute all new agreements and amendments which take the total agreement above 
$300,000 during the period from September 24, 2013, to October 23, 2013. 

Analysis: 

These agreements have been prepared following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures. They represent the necessary support services needed to 
deliver the State of Nevada’s multi-modal transportation system.  

List of Attachments: 

A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Agreements over $300,000, September
24, 2013, to October 23, 2013.

Recommendation for Board Action:    

Approval of all agreements listed on Attachment A. 

Prepared by:  Administrative Services Division 

1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 1 of 27



Attachment 

A 

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 2 of 27



Attachment A

Line 
No 

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Contractor Purpose Fed

 Original 
Agreement 

Amount 

 Amendment 
Amount 

 Payable 
Amount 

Receivable 
Amount Start Date End Date Amend 

Date
Agree 
Type Notes

1 26713 00 BIOLOGICAL AND 
ENVIRONMENTAL CONSULTING, 
LLC

BIOLOGICAL OVERSIGHT N     1,000,000.00 -                  1,000,000.00 -           11/13/2013 12/31/2015 -      Service 
Provider

11-13-13: BIOLOGICAL OVERSIGHT AND 
THREATENED/ENDANGERED SPECIES 
COMPLIANCE OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IN 
CLARK, NYE, AND LINCOLN COUNTIES. NV B/L#: 
NV20081558348
NOTE: THIS PROCUREMENT WAS AWARDED AS A 
50/50 SPLIT AMONG THE TOP 2 SERVICE 
PROVIDERS

2 49813 00 HDR ENGINEERING, INC. BIOLOGICAL OVERSIGHT N     1,000,000.00 -                  1,000,000.00 -           11/13/2013 12/31/2015 -      Service 
Provider

11-13-13: BIOLOGICAL OVERSIGHT AND 
THREATENED/ENDANGERED SPECIES 
COMPLIANCE OF CONSTRUCTION CONTRACTS IN 
CLARK, NYE, AND LINCOLN COUNTIES. NV B/L#: 
NV19851010291
NOTE: THIS PROCUREMENT WAS AWARDED AS A 
50/50 SPLIT AMONG THE TOP 2 SERVICE 
PROVIDERS

3 17013 00 KIMLEY HORN AND ASSOCIATES, 
INC.

ROAD SAFETY AUDITS AND 
SAFETY ENGINEERING 
SERVICES

Y 620,000.00       -              620,000.00       -           11/13/2013 12/31/2015 -      Service 
Provider

11-13-13: ROAD SAFETY AUDITS (RSA) AND SAFETY 
ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES (SEDS)  FOR THE 
CONTINUED SUPPORT OF THE HIGHWAY SAFETY 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (HSIP) AND THE NEVADA 
STRATEGIC HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN (SHSP). 
STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: NV19911015458
NOTE: THIS PROCUREMENT WAS AWARDED AS A 
1/3 EACH SPLIT AMONG THE TOP 3 SERVICE 
PROVIDERS

4 36813 00 PARSONS TRANSPORTATION 
GROUP

ROAD SAFETY AUDITS AND 
SAFETY ENGINEERING 
SERVICES

Y 620,000.00       -              620,000.00       -           11/13/2013 12/31/2015 -      Service 
Provider

11-13-13: ROAD SAFETY AUDITS (RSA) AND SAFETY 
ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES (SEDS)  FOR THE 
CONTINUED SUPPORT OF THE HIGHWAY SAFETY 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (HSIP) AND THE NEVADA 
STRATEGIC HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN (SHSP). 
STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: NV19781009263
NOTE: THIS PROCUREMENT WAS AWARDED AS A 
1/3 EACH SPLIT AMONG THE TOP 3 SERVICE 
PROVIDERS

5 36913 00 ORTH-RODGERS AND 
ASSOCIATES

ROAD SAFETY AUDITS AND 
SAFETY ENGINEERING 
SERVICES

Y 620,000.00       -              620,000.00       -           11/14/2013 12/31/2015 -      Service 
Provider

11-13-13: ROAD SAFETY AUDITS (RSA) AND SAFETY 
ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES (SEDS)  FOR THE 
CONTINUED SUPPORT OF THE HIGHWAY SAFETY 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (HSIP) AND THE NEVADA 
STRATEGIC HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN (SHSP). 
STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: NV20001460282
NOTE: THIS PROCUREMENT WAS AWARDED AS A 
1/3 EACH SPLIT AMONG THE TOP 3 SERVICE 
PROVIDERS

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Agreements for Approval

September 24, 2013 to October 23,2013

Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 3 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 4 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 5 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 6 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 7 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 8 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 9 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 10 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 11 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 12 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 13 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 14 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 15 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 16 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 17 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 18 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 19 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 20 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 21 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 22 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 23 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 24 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 25 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 26 of 27



Approval of Agreements Over $300,000 
                                           Page 27 of 27



MEMORANDUM
November 6, 2013 

TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT:      November 13, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #7: Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements – Informational Item Only 

___________________________________________________________________________ 

Summary:  

The purpose of this item is to inform the Board of the following: 
• Construction contracts under $5,000,000 awarded September 24, 2013, to October 23,

2013 
• Agreements under $300,000 executed September 24, 2013, to October 23, 2013
• Settlements entered into by the Department which were presented for approval to the

Board of Examiners September 24, 2013, to October 23, 2013

Any emergency agreements authorized by statute will be presented here as an informational 
item. 

Background: 

Pursuant to NRS 408.131(5), the Transportation Board has authority to “[e]xecute or approve all 
instruments and documents in the name of the State or Department necessary to carry out the 
provisions of the chapter”. Additionally, the Director may execute all contracts necessary to 
carry out the provisions of Chapter 408 of NRS with the approval of the board, except those 
construction contracts that must be executed by the chairman of the board.  Other contracts or 
agreements not related to the construction, reconstruction, improvement and maintenance of 
highways must be presented to and approved by the Board of Examiners.  This item is intended 
to inform the Board of various matters relating to the Department of Transportation but which do 
not require any formal action by the Board.  

The Department contracts for services relating to the construction, operation and maintenance 
of the State’s multi-modal transportation system. Contracts listed in this item are all low-bid per 
statute and executed by the Governor in his capacity as Board Chairman. The projects are part 
of the STIP document approved by the Board.  In addition, the Department negotiates 
settlements with contractors, property owners, and other parties to resolve disputes. These 
proposed settlements are presented to the Board of Examiners, with the support and 
advisement of the Attorney General’s Office, for approval.  Other matters included in this item 
would be any emergency agreements entered into by the Department during the reporting 
period. 

1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                            Page 1 of 12



The attached construction contracts, agreements and settlements constitute all that were 
awarded for construction from September 24, 2013, to October 23, 2013 and agreements 
executed by the Department from September 24, 2013, to October 23, 2013.  There were no 
settlements during the reporting period. 

Analysis: 

These contracts have been executed following the Code of Federal Regulations, Nevada 
Revised Statutes, Nevada Administrative Code, State Administrative Manual, and/or 
Department policies and procedures.  

List of Attachments: 

A) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Contracts Awarded - Under $5,000,000,
September 24, 2013, to October 23, 2013

B) State of Nevada Department of Transportation Executed Agreements - Informational,
September 24, 2013, to October 23, 2013

Recommendation for Board Action:   Informational item only 

Prepared by: Administrative Services Division 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                            Page 2 of 12



Attachment 

A 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                            Page 3 of 12



STATE OF NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
CONTRACTS UNDER $5,000,000 

September 24, 2013 to October 23, 2013 
 
1. August 22, 2013, at 1:30 p.m. the following bid was opened and read on Department of 

Transportation Contract No. 3549, Project Nos. SI-0032(103). The project is signal 
modification including systemic replacement of 5 section protective/permissive heads to 4 
section protective/permissive heads utilizing a flashing arrow on Multiple Intersections in Clark 
County. 
 
Transcore ITS LLC.............................................................................................. $870,935.40 
Acme Electric....................................................................................................... $911,829.00 
MC4 Construction LLC......................................................................................... $924,744.00 
Las Vegas Electric, Inc……................................................................................. $972,973.16 
LAM Contracting LLC........................................................................................... $985,534.09 
Fast-Trac Electric (Nev-Cal Investors, Inc.)......................................................... $999,017.99 
Black & McDonald............................................................................................. $1,022,240.77 
 
The Director awarded the contract September 24, 2013, to Transcore ITS, LLC in the amount of 
$870,935.40. Upon receipt of an approval bond from the contractor, the state will enter into 
contract with the firm. 
 
Engineer's Estimate: $911,025.50 

 
2. September 26, 2013, at 1:30 p.m. the following bid was opened and read on Department of 

Transportation Contract No. 3553, Project No. SPS-0164(002). The project is emergency 
reconstruction of a washed-out portion with hydraulic improvements on SR-164 Nipton Road, 
Clark County. 

 
Aggregate Industries SWR, Inc........................................................................... $540,000.00 
Meadow Valley Contractors, Inc. ........................................................................ $594,636.80 
Capriati Construction Corp., Inc. ......................................................................... $595,294.26 
TAB Contractors, Inc. .......................................................................................... $599,946.10 
Las Vegas Paving Corporation............................................................................. $843,490.75 

 
The Director awarded the contract October 24, 2013, to Aggregate Industries SWR, Inc. in the 
amount of $540,000.00. Upon receipt of an approval bond from the contractor, the state will 
enter into contract with the firm. 
 
Engineer's Estimate: $775,574.89 

 
3. September 26, 2013 at 2:00 p.m. the following bid was opened and read on Department of 

Transportation Contract No. 806-13, Project No. SP-000M(197). The project is Mount 
Charleston Maintenance Station energy conservation upgrades, Clark County. 

 
Construction Services Unlimited........................................................................... $426,225.00 
 
The Director awarded the contract October 8, 2013, to Construction Services Unlimited in the 
amount of $426,225.00. Upon receipt of an approval bond from the contractor, the state will 
enter into contract with the firm. 

 
 Engineer's Estimate: $409,000.00 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                            Page 4 of 12



Attachment 

B 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                            Page 5 of 12



Attachment B

Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Vendor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Notes

1 44713 00 NEVADA TITLE COMPANY ACQUIRE I-015-CL-042.301 Y 105,500.00     -                105,500.00       -                  10/3/2013 9/30/2014           - Acquisition 10-07-13: AQUISITION COSTS FOR PARCEL I-015-CL-042.301 
FOR CLEARWIRELESS LLC, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV19951135191

2 28813 00 COACH MASTERS 
INTERNATIONAL

USE OF NDOT TRAINING ROOM N -                  -                -                    -                  10/4/2013 6/30/2014           - Facility 10-04-13: TO ALLOW COACH MASTERS INTERNATIONAL TO 
USE NDOT FACILITY TO OFFER TRAINING CLASSES IN 
RETURN FOR FREE SEATS, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: 
NV20121737694

3 32313 01 NV ENERGY TWO LINE EXTENSION IN 
WASHOE VALLEY

Y 71.00              -                71.00                71.00              8/15/2013 7/31/2018 10/7/2013 Facility AMD 1 10-07-13: ATTACH TWO (2) ADDITIONAL ORIGINAL 
LINE EXTENSIONS FOR WASHOE VALLEY, US-395 
VARIABLE SPEED LIMIT SIGNS.                                                                                                      
08-20-13: ATTACH TWO (2) ORIGINAL LINE EXTENSIONS 
FOR WASHOE VALLEY, US 395, VARIABLE SPEED LIMIT 
SIGNS, WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19831015840

4 42512 01 CITY OF HENDERSON RELOCATION AND 
ADJUSTMENTS HENDERSON 
SEWER

N 1,210,950.00  509,455.00   -                    1,720,405.00  10/11/2012 12/31/2025 10/15/2013 Facility AMD 1 10-11-12: INCREASE AUTHORITY $509,455.00 FROM 
$1,210,950.00 TO $1,720,405.00 DUE TO THE PROJECT 
SCOPE CHANGE RELATED TO RELOCATION OF THE CITIES 
UTILITY FACILITIES.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                          
10-11-12: RELOCATION AND ADJUSTMENTS TO THE CITY 
OF HENDERSON'S 8 INCH WATER LINE TO A 16 INCH AND 6 
INCH SEWER LINE BOTH LOCATED ALONG US93, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

5 48713 00 NV ENERGY 2 MANHOLES/VALVE COVERS N 1,100.00         -                1,100.00           -                  10/14/2013 10/31/2019           - Facility 10-14-13: TWO MANHOLES AND VALVE COVERS TO BE 
LOWERED PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND RAISED AFTER 
CONSTRUCTION, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19831015840

6 29913 00 DOUGLAS COUNTY RURAL 
TRANSIT

VEHICLE TRANSFER N -                  -                -                    -                  9/26/2013 9/30/2015           - Grantee 09-26-13: TRANSFER A 2010 STARTRANS CANDIDATE FORD 
E350 CUT AWAY VEHICLE FOR THE USE IN THE GRANTEE'S 
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION PROGRAM, GRANT NUMBER NV-
86-X001, DOUGLAS COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

7 42413 00 TANGLEWOOD NEVADA 
LLC

MULTI USE LEASE S529-CC-
000.809

N -                  -                -                    48,380.00       9/13/2013 6/30/2033           - Lease 09-13-13: MULTI USE LEASE FOR PARCEL S 529-CC-000.809 
FOR THE PURPOSE OF PARKING AND LANDSCAPING, 
CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV20021163976

8 42513 00 S & S TRUST SALE OF PARCEL U-095-CL-
148.XS

Y -                  -                -                    4,145.95         9/24/2013 10/31/2013           - Property 
Sale

09-24-13: LAND SALE PARCEL U-095-CL-148.XS2 SU 08-25, 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

9 44813 00 PEGASUS TOWER 
DEVELOPMENT

ACQUIRE I-015-CL-042.301 Y 140,000.00     -                140,000.00       -                  10/3/2013 1/31/2014           - ROW 
Access

10-07-13: ACQUISITION OF PARCEL I-015-CL-042.301, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20101299756

10 48613 00 CENTURYLINK COMMON USE AGREEMENT N -                  -                -                    -                  10/15/2013 10/31/2019           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: CONSENT TO COMMON USE FOR 
CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION & MAINTENANCE FOR 
PUBLIC HIGHWAY, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
NV19711000425

11 41813 00 KYLE D KENNEDY TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-021.070TE N 2,300.00         -                2,300.00           -                  9/23/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

09-23-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.070TE, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

12 43113 00 JUAN MIRELES JR TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.998TE N 3,700.00         -                3,700.00           -                  9/30/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

09-30-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.998, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

13 43213 00 SALVADOR LOPEZ TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020-758TE N 2,000.00         -                2,000.00           -                  9/30/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

09-30-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.758, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

14 43313 00 WARREN 
WHITE/ELIZABETH 
RASSIGA

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.116TE N 4,900.00         -                4,900.00           -                  9/30/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

09-30-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.116, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

State of Nevada Department of Transportation
Executed Agreements - Informational

September 24, 2013 to October 23, 2013

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                            Page 6 of 12



Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Vendor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Notes

15 43413 00 THEODORE/PATRICIA 
BUSCH

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.318TE N 1,600.00         -                1,600.00           -                  9/30/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

09-30-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.318, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

16 43513 00 KRISTINA GAW TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.610TE N 7,500.00         -                7,500.00           -                  9/30/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

09-30-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.610, WASHOE 
COUNTY.NV B/L#: EXEMPT

17 43613 00 STEVEN/JENNIFER DOSS TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.962TE N 3,200.00         -                3,200.00           -                  9/30/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

09-30-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.962, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

18 46213 00 STEVER FAMILY REVOC 
TRUST

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.082TE N 3,100.00         -                3,100.00           -                  10/9/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-14-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, PARCEL S-650-WA-020.082, 
WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

19 46313 00 ALFONSO AND ESTHELA 
ALVEREZ

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.463TE N 1,700.00         -                1,700.00           -                  10/9/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-14-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, PARCEL S-650-WA-020.463, 
WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

20 46413 00 JUAN MIRELES-VILLARREAL TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.689TE N 10,300.00       -                10,300.00         -                  10/9/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-14-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, PARCEL S-650-WA-020.689, 
WASHOE COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

21 46913 00 JULIA L DEAL TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.361TE N 5,600.00         -                5,600.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.361, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

22 47013 00 ALLISON F BECK-CALLAHAN TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.141TE N 6,400.00         -                6,400.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.141, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

23 47113 00 JOSEPH AND CRISTY 
HANCOCK

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.690TE N 2,700.00         -                2,700.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.690, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

24 47213 00 ANIBAL E LOPEZ-ARGUETA TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.294TE N 2,400.00         -                2,400.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.294, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

25 47313 00 HOWARD AND PENAEY 
SANDERS

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.070TE N 5,000.00         -                5,000.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.070, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

26 47413 00 CODY GOODSELL/JODIE 
SMITH

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.118TE N 500.00            -                500.00              -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.118, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

27 47513 00 LAWRENCE AND DIANA 
MCCAFFERTY

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-019.988TE N 4,200.00         -                4,200.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-019.988, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

28 47613 00 RONNIE RUGGLESCINDY 
SCHEINFELD

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.781TE N 4,800.00         -                4,800.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.781, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

29 47713 00 CARL AND WINNIE 
CHISHAM

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.723TE N 4,700.00         -                4,700.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.723, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

30 47813 00 WILLIS/ETHEL 
KLEINSASSER TRUST

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.911TE N 9,400.00         -                9,400.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.911, WASHOE 
COUNTY.NV B/L#: EXEMPT

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                            Page 7 of 12



Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Vendor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Notes

31 47913 00 MICHAEL HINES TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.022TE N 3,800.00         -                3,800.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.022, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

32 48013 00 KRISINDA MICHELE 
SIEBERT

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-019.871TE N 7,900.00         -                7,900.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-019.871, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

33 48113 00 HELEN EVANS TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-019.408TE N 2,500.00         -                2,500.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-019.408, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

34 48213 00 DENNIS MACK TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-019.979TE N 4,500.00         -                4,500.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-019.979, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

35 48313 00 WANDA ANN STOKLEY TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.094TE N 2,000.00         -                2,000.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.094, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

36 48413 00 B JARDON, J AND D 
LAWRENCE

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.815TE N 500.00            -                500.00              -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.815, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

37 48513 00 RICHARD BULLARD TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-019.945TE N 3,500.00         -                3,500.00           -                  10/12/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-019.945, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20071462966

38 48813 00 RAFEL A LOPEZ TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-019.919TE N 3,500.00         -                3,500.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-019.919, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

39 48913 00 JACK AND LISA CROSS TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.804TE N 6,800.00         -                6,800.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.804, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

40 49013 00 LCT INVESTMENTS TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.950TE N 1,300.00         -                1,300.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.950, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20101383542

41 49113 00 MICHAEL AND MOLLY 
LENNON

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-019.996TE N 1,600.00         -                1,600.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-019.996, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

42 49213 00 DIANE J HOWARD TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.047TE N 5,700.00         -                5,700.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.047, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

43 49313 00 CHARLES AND TERRIEA 
COWGILL

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.827TE N 2,900.00         -                2,900.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.827, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

44 49413 00 JOSE MARTINEZ TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.281TE N 2,100.00         -                2,100.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.281, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

45 49513 00 FREDRICK STRODE TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.306TE N 2,400.00         -                2,400.00           -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.306, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

46 49613 00 JORGE AND NORMA 
ALDAMA

TEMP ESMT S-650-WA-020.220TE N 700.00            -                700.00              -                  10/15/2013 4/30/2016           - ROW 
Access

10-15-13: TO GRANT A TEMPORARY EASEMENT FOR 
CONSTRUCTION RELATED TO THE SOUTHEAST 
MCCARRAN BLVD PROJECT, S-650-WA-020.220, WASHOE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: EXEMPT

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                            Page 8 of 12



Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Vendor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Notes

47 32013 01 KIMLEY HORN AND 
ASSOCIATES, INC.

SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE 
OF CSS SOFTWARE

N 1,000,000.00  (500,000.00)  500,000.00       -                  10/14/2013 12/31/2015 10/28/2013 Service 
Provider

AMD 1 10-28-13: REDUCE AGREEMENT TERM FROM 4 
YEARS TO 2 YEARS WITH AN OPTION TO RENEW FOR 2 
ADDITIONAL YEARS.                                                                                            
10-14-13: TECHNICAL AND OPERATIONAL SUPPORT OF THE 
DEPARTMENT'S CENTRAL SYSTEM SOFTWARE (CSS), 
STATEWIDE. NV B/L#: NV19911015458
NOTE: SEE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION FOR THIS LINE ITEM 
ON PAGE 12

48 03113 02 WEBSOFT DEVELOPERS 
INC

DEVELOP PLAN PORTAL FORMS N 24,950.00       7,000.00       41,750.00         -                  1/22/2013 12/30/2013 10/7/2013 Service 
Provider

AMD 2 10-07-13: TO INCREASE AUTHORITY BY $7,000.00 
FROM $34,750.00 TO $41,750.00 AND EXTEND TERMINATION 
DATE FROM 09-30-13 TO 12-30-13 DUE TO UNPLANNED 
WORK TO MEET SECURITY CAPABILITIES.                                                                                        
AMD 1 06-26-13: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 06-30-
13 TO 09-30-13, AND INCREASE FUNDING FROM $24,950.00 
TO $34,750.00 DUE TO UNPLANNED WORK TO MEET 
REQUIREMENTS INCLUDING VIEWING, PRINTING, AND PDF 
CAPABILITIES.                                                                                
01-22-13: DEVELOPMENT OF THE PLANNING PORTAL 
FORMS, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV20121454363

49 09911 03 STANTEC CONSULTING 
INC.

LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE 
FLAMINGO

Y 190,975.00     -                201,975.00       -                  9/30/2011 9/30/2014 9/24/2013 Service 
Provider

AMD 3 09-25-13: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 09-30-
13 TO 09-30-14 DUE TO PREVIOUS DELAYS NOW NEEDED 
TO COVER THE PLANT ESTABLISHMENT PERIOD.                                                                                
AMD 2 04-22-13: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 05-01-
13 TO 09-30-13 DUE TO A DELAY IN ADVERTISMENT OF THE 
PROJECT BECAUSE OF UTILITY ISSUES.                                                                
AMD 1 09-21-12: INCREASE AUTHORITY $11,000.00 FROM 
$190,975.00 TO $201,975.00 DUE TO THE NEED FOR POT 
HOLING SERVICES, UTILITY COORDINATION AND EXHIBITS, 
AND ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES 
DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PHASE.                                                                                                                                                                         
09-30-11: LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTURE DESIGN AND 
CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES FOR THE I-515 
FLAMINGO INTERCHANGE, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: 
20101021081

50 19712 01 J C BUILDING 
MAINTENANCE

JANITORIAL SERVICE ELY 
OFFICE

N 23,903.76       (4,859.90)      19,043.86         -                  5/23/2012 12/31/2014 10/7/2013 Service 
Provider

AMD 1 10-7-13: REDUCTION OF AUTHORITY $4,859.90 FROM 
$23,903.76 TO $19,043.86 DUE TO REDUCTION OF 
JANITORIAL SERVICES FROM ONCE A WEEK TO ONCE BI-
WEEKLY.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
05-23-12: TO PROVIDE JANITORIAL SERVICES FOR THE ELY 
ADMINISTRATIVE OFFICES, Q3-010-12, WHITE PINE 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20111472128

51 35013 00 HIGH DESERT TRAFFIC LLC TRADAS SOFTWARE 
MAINTENANCE

N 30,000.00       -                30,000.00         -                  10/7/2013 2/28/2014           - Service 
Provider

10-07-13: PROPRIETARY SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE OF 
THE TRAFFIC DATA SYSTEM (TRADAS) WHICH IS 
NECESSARY TO ENSURE ACCURACY OF REPORTS 
GENERATED AND DECISIONS MADE BASED ON THE DATA 
COLLECTED, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV20131523281

52 44213 00 SMART DATA STRATEGIES IRWIN SYSTEM DESIGN N 200,000.00     -                200,000.00       -                  9/30/2013 6/30/2015           - Service 
Provider

09-30-13: CHANGES IN WORKFLOWS FOR THE IRWIN 
SYSTEM DESIGN, CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV20121402899

53 44613 00 LINK TECHNOLOGIES SUPPORT FOR EDISCOVERY 
PROJECT

N 176,000.00     -                176,000.00       -                  10/7/2013 6/30/2014           - Service 
Provider

10-07-13: SUPPORT TO THE E-DISCOVERY PROJECT, 
CARSON CITY. NV B/L#: NV20021075566

54 44913 00 ANDERSON VALUATION 
GROUP

APPRAISAL AND EXPERT 
WITNESS

Y 35,000.00       -                35,000.00         -                  4/17/2013 4/30/2015           - Service 
Provider

10-07-13: REAL ESTATE APPRAISAL AND EXPERT WITNESS 
SERVICES FOR STATE VS RAILROAD PASS INVESTMENT 
GROUP, CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20041285225

55 45013 00 TY LIN INTERNATIONAL INC APPRAISAL AND EXPERT 
WITNESS

Y 25,000.00       -                25,000.00         -                  8/12/2013 8/12/2015           - Service 
Provider

10-07-13: CIVIL ENGINEERING, REAL ESTATE PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT ANALYSIS AND EXPERT WITNESS 
TESTIMONY IN STATE VS JACK M. WOODCOCK, CLARK 
COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19851016777

56 45113 00 FACILITIES MANAGEMENT REPAIR FLATWORK N 98,900.00       -                98,900.00         -                  10/7/2013 12/31/2013           - Service 
Provider

10-07-13: REPAIR FLATWORK AT HQ IN CARSON CITY. NV 
B/L#: NV20011331118

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                            Page 9 of 12



Line 
No

Agreement 
No

Amend 
No Vendor Purpose Fed

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amendment 
Amount Payable Amount Receivable 

Amount Start Date End Date Amend Date Agree Type Notes

57 45213 00 SIMPLEX GRINNELL REPLACE FIRE ALARM N 84,070.00       -                84,070.00         -                  10/7/2013 6/30/2014           - Service 
Provider

10-07-13: REPLACE FIRE ALARM SYSTEM IN THE 
HEADQUARTERS LABORATORY BUILDING. CARSON CITY. 
NV B/L#: NV20011155948

58 45313 00 LAS VEGAS PAVING ASPHALT DIKE PROTECTOR N 229,000.00     -                229,000.00       -                  10/7/2013 3/31/2014           - Service 
Provider

10-07-13: ASPHALT SHOULDER DIKE EMBANKMENT 
PROTECTOR INSTALLATION, I-15 AT MP42.88 AND 53.65 IN 
CLARK COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV19581000650

59 45413 00 MESA ENERGY DBA EMCOR 
SERVICES

HVAC MAINTENANCE N 78,255.00       -                78,255.00         -                  10/7/2013 12/31/2015           - Service 
Provider

10-07-13: HVAC MAINTENANCE AT THE TRAFFIC 
MANAGEMENT CENTER ON SUNSET IN CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV20071267110

60 45513 00 AQUA SERV ENGINEERS WATER TREATMENT TMC N 16,544.00       -                16,544.00         -                  10/7/2013 12/31/2017           - Service 
Provider

10-07-13: WATER TREATMENT FOR THE TRAFFIC 
MANAGEMENT CENTER ON SUNSET, CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV19641000624

61 45613 00 TOTAL PEST MANAGEMENT PEST CONTROL SERVICE N 29,060.00       -                29,060.00         -                  10/7/2013 12/31/2017           - Service 
Provider

10-07-13: PEST CONTROL SERVICES AT 123 E 
WASHINGTON, ULLOM, MT.CHARLESTON, GLENDALE AND 
WAGONWHEEL NDOT BUILDINGS, CLARK COUNTY. NV 
B/L#: NV20071638126

62 45713 00 J&L JANITORIAL SERVICES JANITORIAL AT VALMY N 43,800.00       -                43,800.00         -                  10/7/2013 6/30/2016           - Service 
Provider

10-07-13: JANITORIAL SERVICE FOR VALMY REST AREA IN 
HUMBOLDT COUNTY. NV B/L#: NV20101116972

63 46013 00 FEDERAL ENGINEERING 
INC

LONG TERM BROADBAND PLAN N 154,950.00     -                154,950.00       -                  6/11/2013 12/31/2013           - Service 
Provider

06-11-13: TO PROVIDE A PLAN FOR THE NEVADA LONG 
TERM EVOLUTION (LTE) BROADBAND NETWORK. CARSON 
CITY. NV B/L#: NV20131260427

64 46513 00 SYLVESTER & POLEDNAK, 
LDT

LEGAL SUPPORT A-13-680564-C Y 280,000.00     -                280,000.00       -                  9/7/2013 9/30/2015           - Service 
Provider

10-14-13: LEGAL SUPPORT CONDEMNATION RE: STATE V. 
SMITH FAMILY TRUST 8TH JD CASE NO. A-13-680564-C 
(PROJECT NEON). CLARK COUNTY. NV B.L# NV19981131366

65 51202 08 LOUIS BERGER GROUP INC CARSON CITY FREEWAY Y 1,999,780.00  -                12,375,197.47  -                  9/5/2002 7/1/2017 10/15/2013 Service 
Provider

AMD 8 10-15-13: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 07-01-
2017 TO 07-01-2018 AND TO REDUCE AND MODIFY LOUIS 
BERGER GROUP'S SCOPE OF WORK FOR PHASE 2B-3 OF 
THE CARSON CITY FREEWAY.                                                                                                                          
AMD 7 10-10-11: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 01-01-
13, TO 07-01-17, AND INCREASE AUTHORITY $1,300,789.77 
FROM $11,074,407.70 TO $12,375,197.47 DUE TO REVISED 
SCOPE OF SERVICES TO INCLUDE PACKAGE 2B-2 AND 
PACKAGE 2B-3 OF CARSON FREEWAY (S. CARSON STREET 
TO FAIRVIEW DRIVE) DESIGN SERVICES.                                                                                                                                                                         
AMD 6 06-09-09: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 07-01-
11 TO 01-01-13 AND INCREASE AUTHORITY $120,000.00 
FROM $10,954,407.70 TO $11,074,407.70 DUE TO REVISED 
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR DESIGN SUPPORT AND UTILITY 
COORDINATION FOR PHASE 2B PACKAGE 1 (KOONTZ & 
CLEARVIEW BRIDGE STRUCTURES WITH EDMONDS 
DRAINAGE CHANNEL) FOR THE FINAL DESIGN OF THE 
CARSON CITY FREEWAY.
AMD 5 01-05-09: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 02-01-
09, TO 07-01-11, DUE TO DELAYS IN AVAILABLE FUNDING 
FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THE PROJECT.                                                                                                                                                                                        
AMD 4 12-21-06: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 05-24-
07 TO 02-01-09, AND INCREASE AUTHORITY $1,500,000.00 
FROM $9,454,407.70 TO $10,954,407.70 DUE TO EXPANDED 
SCOPE OF SERVICES FOR DESIGN SUPPORT FOR THE 
BIDDING AND CONSTRUCTION PHASES OF THE CARSON 
CITY FREEWAY.                                                                                                                                                           
AMD 3 08-22-05: INCREASE AUTHORITY $485,703.55 FROM 
$8,968,704.15 TO $9,454,407.70 DUE TO INCREASED SCOPE 
OF SERVICES.                                                                                                                                                           
AMD 2 05-15-04: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 12-31-
04 TO 05-24-07, AND INCREASE AUTHORITY $6,968,924.15 
FROM $1,999,780.00 TO $8,968,704.15 DUE TO EXPANDED 
SCOPE OF SERVICES TO COMPLETE DESIGN OF THE 
PROJECT OVER EXTENDED PROJECT DURATION.                                                                                                                                                           
AMD 1 01-21-04: EXTEND TERMINATION DATE FROM 11-15-
03, TO 12-31-04, TO COMPLETE SCOPE OF SERVICES.                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                
09-05-02: DESIGN OF CARSON CITY FREEWAY, CARSON 
CITY, AND WASHOE COUNTIES. NV B/L#: NV20071158193

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                           Page 10 of 12



 

 

 

 

Line Item 47 

Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                           Page 11 of 12



Contracts, Agreements, and Settlements 
                                           Page 12 of 12

































































































 

 
MEMORANDUM 

 
October 31, 2013 

 
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM: Rudy Malfabon, P.E., Director 
SUBJECT: November 13, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
ITEM #11: Discussion and Possible Approval of the Annual Work Program Fiscal Year 

(FY) 2014, Short  and Long Range Element FY 2015 – 2023 and Possible 
Acceptance of the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP) 
FY 2014-2017 – For Possible Action. 

 

Summary: 

This agenda item is to request your acceptance of the STIP and your approval of the Annual 
Work Program. 
 
NDOT staff has spent the last 12 months working with the federal and regional agencies, local 
governments and planning boards to develop the enclosed Transportation System Projects 
(TSP) notebook for fiscal years 2014-2023.  This document contains the: 
 

Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (STIP), FY 2014-2017 
 
And the Work Program containing the: 
Annual Work Program (AWP), FY 2014 
Short Range Element (SRE), FY 2015-2016 
Long Range Element (LRE), FY 2017-2023 
 

Following consultations with Nevada’s seventeen counties and a thirty-day public comment 
period, the STIP, upon your action today, is then submitted to the Federal Highway 
Administration (FHWA), the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) for approval and to the 
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) for consultation.   
 
Background:  
 
The STIP lists all capital and non-capital transportation projects proposed for funding under 
Title 23 of the Federal Aid Highway Act and the Federal Transit Act.  These projects that 
improve the capacity of Nevada’s transportation system, such as increasing the number of 
lanes, constructing new roads, road extensions, and the intersection improvements along with 
the Department Maintenance Program.  It also includes transit, rail, and pedestrian walkway 
and bicycle facility projects. 
 
The Department is required to include, without change, all projects listed in the Metropolitan 
Planning Organizations’ (MPO) approved Regional Transportation Improvement Program 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 

 



 
(RTIP).  The Washoe County MPO adopted their RTIP on September 20th, 2013; the Clark 
County MPO adopted their new RTIP on August 8th, 2013, the Lake Tahoe MPO adopted their 
RTIP on January, 23, 2013; and the Carson Area MPO adopted their RTIP on August 14, 2013. 
The STIP is approved by the Governor’s Designee (Director of the Department of 
Transportation) and submitted to the FHWA, FTA for approval and the EPA for consultation. 
 
The Annual Work Program, the Short Range and Long Range Elements list projects the 
Department intends to work on during the current fiscal year and proposed projects for the 
succeeding nine years.  These documents satisfy Nevada Revised Statue (NRS 408.203) 
requiring the Director of NDOT to submit a three and ten year list of transportation projects to 
the State Legislative Council Bureau every even year and the State Legislature every odd year.  
The AWP lists projects that the Department plans to complete using state forces and projects 
NDOT plans to contract for preservation, safety and construction.  The Short and Long Range 
Elements identify projects that the state or local governments are seeking initiation within the 
next ten years. 
 
NDOT will submit the TSP document to the State Legislature/Legislative Council Bureau 
following the State Transportation Board and USDOT approval. 
 
As part of the Department’s public participation process, staff met with the 14 rural County 
Commissions, all MPOs and Nevada’s Tribal communities to present the proposed FY 2014-
2023 program of projects.  Comments from each of the counties are then incorporated into a 
final draft document and redistributed for additional review and input.  The “Final Draft” is 
presented as attached for approval by the State Transportation Board at the end of the Federal 
Fiscal Year. 
 
Analysis: 
 
The attached Transportation System Projects (TSP) book includes a section that describes the 
project development and selection process and compliance information to the Federal 
Legislation (SAFETEA-LU) Safe Accountable Flexible Transportation Efficiency Act a Legacy 
for Users.  The Department is using conservative estimates for incoming revenue and has 
prepared a similar work program for Fiscal Year 2014. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 

Approval of Fiscal Year 2014 Annual Work Program, the 2015-2023 Short and Long Range 
Elements and your acceptance of the 2014-2017 Statewide Transportation Improvement 
Program.  

 
List of Attachments: 
 
Transportation System Projects for FY 2014-2023 
 
Prepared by: 

Jason Van Havel, Acting Chief, Transportation & Multimodal Planning Division 
 
 

 



 
MEMORANDUM 

October 30, 2013  
TO:   Department of Transportation Board of Directors    
FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: November 13, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
ITEM #12: Briefing on Fuel Tax Indexing – Informational item only. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 

Assembly Bill 413 was approved during the 77th Session of the Nevada Legislature (2013). An 
ordinance was subsequently approved by the Clark County Board of Commissioners on 
September 3, 2013, to index the fuel tax to inflation from January 1, 2014 through December 31, 
2016. This action provides additional revenue to fund transportation infrastructure for Southern 
Nevada. A presentation will be provided to the Board of Directors explaining how the fuel tax 
indexing will be enacted in Clark County in comparison with Washoe County. In addition, the 
proposed projects that the Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada intends to 
fund with this revenue will be presented. 

Background: 
 
Gasoline taxes are a combination of federal, state and mandatory county taxes, as well as 
optional county taxes.  
 
The July 2012 base rate for federal gas tax is as follows: 
 Federal   18.4 ¢ 
 
The July 2012 State portion of the gas tax (per gallon) is as follows: 

State Highway Fund   17.650¢ 
 Petroleum Cleanup Fund    0.750¢  
 Inspection Fee for Gasoline    0.055¢ 

Total State   18.455 ¢  
 
There are also County Mandatory and County Optional gas taxes which vary by county. Twelve 
counties in Nevada, including Clark and Washoe County, have opted for the maximum amount 
of optional gas tax. Elko County increased their optional gas tax to the maximum 9 cents per 
gallon in March 2013. County gas tax goes to the counties for use on their local roads, not to the 
State Highway Fund. 
 
Five counties in Nevada have not opted for the maximum of optional gas tax of 9 cents per 
gallon: Douglas, Esmeralda, Lincoln, Nye, and Storey counties. These counties have the ability 
of increasing their gas tax by 5 cents per gallon. It is estimated that Douglas, Esmeralda, 
Lincoln, Nye and Storey Counties would generate approximately $2.3 million additional revenue 
for those counties for use on their local roads. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 
 



 
 

County 

Potential 
Increase In 

Gas Tax 
Revenue To 

The Counties 
Douglas $980,400.60 
Esmeralda $11,478.77 
Lincoln $136,568.51 
Nye $1,112,567.31 
Storey $60,648.67 
TOTAL $2,301,663.86 

 
 
CLARK COUNTY INDEXING 
Assembly Bill 413 was signed by the Governor on June 12, 2013. This bill enabled Clark County 
Board of Commissioners to enact an ordinance to index the fuel tax to inflation. The ordinance 
was passed on September 3, 2013 by a vote of 6-1. 
 
The forecasted AB 413 gas tax rates per gallon are anticipated to be as follows in Clark County: 
 
        EFFECTIVE 

 DATE   BASE RATE +  INDEXING = TOTAL 
 1/1/14   52.176¢  3.25¢   55.426¢ 
 7/1/14   55.426¢  3.45¢   58.876¢ 
 7/1/15   58.876¢  3.30¢   62.176¢ 
 to 12/31/16 
 
The maximum amount of the fuel tax may be increased due to indexing is capped at 7.8 percent 
per year based on the 10-year average of the Producer Price Index (PPI). A vote in Clark 
County in November 2016 will decide if Clark County can impose future fuel tax increases 
based on inflation through November 6, 2026. If voters reject it, then the fuel taxes that have 
already started by the end of 2016 will remain intact. 
 
A statewide vote will take place in November 2016 to determine if additional state taxes on 
motor vehicle fuel and various special fuels used in motor vehicles will be enacted from January 
1, 2017 to December 31, 2026. 
 
The RTC of Southern Nevada has issued a preliminary list of proposed projects to be funded 
using approximately $692 million of additional fuel tax revenue from indexing. Many of these 
projects are of regionally significant, including the future Interstate 11, US 95 widening, and the 
Clark County 215 Beltway to name a few. Two of the proposed projects are NDOT projects. 
  
 Future I-11 (Boulder City Bypass, Phase 2, RTCSN) $201 million 
 Future I-11 (Boulder City Bypass, Phase 1, NDOT)   $31.2 million 
 US 95, Ann to Durango (NDOT)    $6.4 million 
 Clark County 215, Airport Connector Phase II  $26.5 million 
 Clark County 215, Decatur to North 5th Street  $52 million 
  

2 
 



 
 
 
 
NDOT will receive the additional revenue from RTC of Southern Nevada through interlocal 
agreements for the two projects identified. The complete list of proposed projects in Clark 
County is provided as Attachment A. 
 
WASHOE COUNTY 
Voters approved an advisory ballot question (RTC-5) in November 2008. Senate Bill 201 was 
passed by the 75th Session of the Nevada Legislature (2009). Washoe County implemented the 
ordinance in August 2009 and index rates became effective January 2010. Washoe County has 
passed four bond sales pledged by indexed fuel tax. Washoe County indexes to the Producer 
Price Index (PPI). Each year, the PPI in Washoe County is adjusted based on the 10-year 
average of the annual changes in the PPI for street and highway construction. The PPI base for 
the past four years has been the following: 
 

FY 2010 6.20% 
FY 2011 5.18% 
FY 2012 4.98% 
FY 2013 5.81% 
 

Washoe County applies the PPI to the total federal, state and local tax. 
 
Washoe County gas tax for 2012/2013 is 68.08 cents per gallon as follows: 
 Federal      18.4¢ 
 State       18.455¢ 
 Washoe County Mandatory Plus Inflation Index   9.25¢ 
 RTC County Optional Plus Inflation Index  21.98¢ 
        68.085¢ 
 
Washoe County RTC has used the additional revenue from fuel tax indexing to fund regionally 
significant projects such as the Southeast Connector (Veterans Memorial Parkway) as well as 
rehab and preventative maintenance projects. 
 
Washoe County has bonded against the anticipated revenue from fuel tax indexing, so in the 
event the statewide vote in November 2016 does not support implementation of fuel tax 
indexing statewide, Washoe County would still continue to receive the fuel tax indexing revenue 
pledged to pay off its bonds. 
 
List of Attachments: 
 

A. List of Proposed Projects to be Funded in Clark County 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
This item is provided for information only. 
 

3 
 



AB 413: Proposed Bond Sale Projects DRAFT  
Entity Phase Project Notes Project Cost

Boulder City Construction Interstate 11, US-95 to Hoover Dam Bridge Phase II $180,000,000

Boulder City Design Interstate 11, US-95 to Hoover Dam Bridge Phase II $21,000,000

Clark County Construction CC-215, Grand Montecito Pkwy Bridge Beltway Bridge $9,000,000

Clark County Construction Casa Linda: Between Spring Mountain Rd and Twain Ave; between 
Rainbow Blvd and Torrey Pines Dr

Pavement Reconstruction $800,000

Clark County Construction Paradise Palms: Between Desert Inn Rd and Twain Ave; between 
Maryland Pkwy and Spencer St

Pavement Reconstruction $4,000,000

Clark County Construction Pebble Canyon: South of Pebble Rd, between Eastern Ave and Pecos 
Rd

Pavement Reconstruction $450,000

Clark County Construction Craig Park 1 and 2: North of Alexander Rd, between Pecos Rd and 
Walnut Ave

Pavement Reconstruction $800,000

Clark County Construction Las Vegas Blvd, St. Rose Pkwy to Silverado Ranch Blvd Roadway Construction $12,000,000

Clark County Construction Lamb Blvd, Owens Ave to Las Vegas Blvd Roadway Construction $2,000,000

Clark County Construction Desert Inn Rd, Paradise Rd to Mojave Rd Roadway Construction $3,500,000

Clark County Construction Tropicana Ave, Hualapai Wy to Fort Apache Rd Roadway Construction $10,000,000

Clark County Construction Rancho Las Brisas: North of Tropicana Ave, between Durango Dr and 
Buffalo Dr

Pavement Reconstruction $350,000

Clark County Construction CC-215, Airport Connector Ph.II Beltway Improvements $26,500,000

Clark County Construction Durango Dr, Tropicana Ave to Spring Mountain Rd Roadway Construction $4,000,000

Clark County Construction CC-215, Ft. Apache Rd Bridge/Durango Dr Bridge Beltway Bridge $12,500,000

Clark County Construction CC-215,  Decatur Blvd to N 5th St Beltway to Freeway Standards $52,000,000

Clark County Construction Fort Apache Rd, Warm Springs Rd to Tropicana Ave Roadway Construction $12,000,000

Clark County Construction Fort Apache Rd/Huntington Cove Pkwy Traffic Signal $500,000

Clark County Construction Fort Apache Rd/Maule Ave Traffic Signal $500,000

Clark County Construction Fort Apache Rd/Warm Springs Rd Traffic Signal $500,000

Clark County Construction Durango Dr, Blue Diamond Rd to Windmill La Roadway Construction $6,000,000

Clark County Construction Rainbow Blvd, Erie Ave to Blue Diamond Rd Roadway Construction $8,000,000

Clark County Design Fort Apache Rd, Warm Springs Rd to Tropicana Ave Roadway Construction $400,000

Wednesday, September 04, 2013 Page 1 of 8DRAFT

Attachment A



Entity Phase Project Notes Project Cost

Clark County Design Paradise Rd/Swenson St, Russell Rd to Sahara Ave Convention Corridor (Study / Initial Design) $3,000,000

Clark County Design Carey Ave, Nellis Blvd to Toiyabe St Roadway Construction $200,000

Clark County Design Decatur Blvd, Cactus Ave to Warm Springs Rd Roadway Construction $350,000

Clark County Design Sunset Rd, Rainbow Blvd to Decatur  Blvd Roadway Construction $200,000

Clark County Design Jones Blvd, Blue Diamond Rd to Wigwam Pkwy Roadway Construction $1,500,000

Henderson Construction Starr Rd, Las Vegas Blvd to St. Rose Parkway Roadway Construction $4,500,000

Henderson Construction College Dr, Paradise Hills Dr to I-515 Mission Paradise Neighborhood Stabilization $365,000

Henderson Construction Anthem Parkway at Anthem Country Club Entry Reunion Loop and Anthem Country Club Access - (Intersection 
Improvements, Mill & Re-Stripe, Add 2nd left turn lane)

$400,000

Henderson Construction Horizon Ridge Pkwy, Gibson Rd to Las Palmas Entrada Ave Roadway Construction $1,275,000

Henderson Construction Gibson Rd, Horizon Ridge Pkwy to I-215 Roadway Construction $1,100,000

Henderson Construction Arroyo Grande Pkwy / Mayan Dr, Helmsdale Dr / Harwick Dr, Sunset Rd 
near Scimitar Dr

Green Valley Neighborhood Stabilization (Groundwater repairs) $650,000

Henderson Construction High View Dr, Green Valley Pkwy to Valle Verde Dr Green Valley Neighborhood Stabilization $1,750,000

Henderson Construction Valle Verde Dr, Warm Springs Rd to High View Dr Green Valley Neighborhood Stabilization $1,000,000

Henderson Construction Sunset Rd, Annie Oakley Dr to Sunset Rd Roadway Construction $2,000,000

Henderson Construction Reunion Dr, Anthem Pkwy to Anthem Pkwy (loop) Reunion Loop and Anthem Country Club Access - (Intersection 
Improvements, Mill & Re-Stripe)

$1,250,000

Henderson Construction Mission Dr, College Dr to UPRR Mission Paradise Neighborhood Stabilization $850,000

Henderson Construction Racetrack Rd, Boulder Hwy to Athens Ave Roadway Construction $2,000,000

Henderson Construction Paradise Hills Dr, Greenway Rd to College Dr Mission Paradise Neighborhood Stabilization $495,000

Henderson Construction Center St, Burkholder Blvd to Lake Mead Blvd Complete Street $1,500,000

Henderson Construction Montelago Blvd, Lake Las Vegas Pkwy to Lake Las Vegas Pkwy Roadway Construction $1,100,000

Henderson Construction Whitney Ranch Dr, Arroyo Grande Pkwy to Russell Rd Roadway Construction $2,923,000

Henderson Construction Downtown Henderson Complete Streets (Market St, Panama St, Army 
St, Pacific Ave, Atlantic Ave, Basic Rd, and Van Wagenen St)

Roadway Construction $10,000,000

Henderson Construction Warm Springs Rd, Arroyo Grande Pkwy to Boulder Hwy Roadway Construction $5,760,000

Henderson Construction Volunteer Blvd, Las Vegas Blvd to Anthem Boundary and Executive 
Airport Dr, Volunteer Blvd to Bruner Ave

Roadway Construction $6,240,000

Henderson Construction Stephanie St, Russell Rd to Galleria Dr Roadway Construction $20,000,000

Wednesday, September 04, 2013 Page 2 of 8DRAFT

Attachment A



Entity Phase Project Notes Project Cost

Henderson Construction Arroyo Grande Pkwy, Horizon Ridge Pkwy to Sunset Rd Mill/Overlay $3,265,500

Henderson Construction Eastern Ave, Coronado Center Pkwy to Silverado Ranch Blvd Roadway Construction - Failing Pavement Repair $1,000,000

Henderson Construction Valle Verde Dr, Horizon Ridge Pkwy to Warm Springs Rd Roadway Construction $2,500,000

Henderson Design Executive Airport Dr, Volunteer Blvd to St. Rose Pkwy North Limited Transition Area Roadways $125,000

Henderson Design Sunset Rd Corridor, Annie Oakley Dr to Sunset Way, Right Turn at Valle 
Verde Dr, Marks St Intersection

Roadway Construction $450,000

Henderson Design SB I-515 Galleria Dr to I-215, Pecos Rd at I-215, Eastern Ave at I-215 Roadway Construction $450,000

Henderson Design Anthem Pkwy / Eastern Ave / Pecos Ridge Pkwy Intersection Improvements $275,000

Henderson Design Racetrack Rd, Sausalito Dr to Athens Ave with Newport Bridge @ C1 
Channel

Roadway Construction $375,000

Henderson Design Warm Springs Rd, Lake Mead Pkwy to Racetrack Rd Complete Street Design Package #1 $150,000

Henderson Design Pueblo Blvd, Newport Dr to Warm Springs Rd Complete Street Design Package #1 $125,000

Henderson Design Center St, Burkholder Blvd to Lake Mead Blvd Complete Street Design Package #1 $200,000

Henderson Design Bermuda Rd, Volunteer Blvd to St. Rose Pkwy North Limited Transition Area Roadways $100,000

Henderson Design Reunion Dr, Anthem Pkwy to Anthem Pkwy (loop) Reunion Loop and Anthem Country Club Access - (Intersection Imps, 
Mill & Re-Stripe)

$225,000

Henderson Design Valle Verde Dr, Warm Springs Rd to High View Dr Green Valley Neighborhood Stabilization $125,000

Henderson Design High View Dr, Green Valley Pkwy to Valle Verde Dr Green Valley Neighborhood Stabilization $150,000

Henderson Design Arroyo Grande Pkwy, Horizon Ridge Pkwy to Sunset Rd Green Valley Neighborhood Stabilization (Will be constructed as 
separate project)

$200,000

Henderson Design Arroyo Grande Pkwy / Mayan Dr, Helmsdale Dr / Harwick Dr, Sunset Rd 
near Scimitar Dr

Green Valley Neighborhood Stabilization (Groundwater repairs) $125,000

Henderson Design Bruner Rd, Gilespie St to Executive Airport Dr North Limited Transition Area Roadways $125,000

Henderson Design Gilespie St, Volunteer Blvd to St. Rose Pkwy North Limited Transition Area Roadways $75,000

Henderson Design Anthem Parkway at Anthem Country Club Entry Reunion Loop and Anthem Country Club Access - (Intersection Imps, 
Mill & Re-Stripe, Add 2nd left turn lane))

$125,000

Las Vegas Construction Lake Mead Blvd, Hills Center Dr to Rock Springs Dr Arterial Reconstruction #1 (under design) $2,500,000

Las Vegas Construction Lake Mead Blvd, Rainbow Blvd to Rancho Dr Arterial Reconstruction #1 (under design) $2,700,000

Las Vegas Construction Smoke Ranch Rd, Rainbow Blvd to Jones Blvd Arterial Reconstruction #2 (under design) $700,000

Las Vegas Construction Coolidge Ave, Main St to 4th St Downtown Bicycle/Pedestrian Improvements Phase II $1,250,000

Las Vegas Construction Carson Ave, Casino Center to 9th St Downtown Bicycle/Pedestrian Improvements Phase II $2,500,000

Wednesday, September 04, 2013 Page 3 of 8DRAFT

Attachment A



Entity Phase Project Notes Project Cost

Las Vegas Construction Eastern Ave, Sahara Ave to Cedar Ave ITS Infrastructure $600,000

Las Vegas Construction Gass Ave, Main St to Charleston Blvd Downtown Bicycle/Pedestrian Improvements Phase II $2,850,000

Las Vegas Construction Main St, US-95 to Owens Ave $5,000,000: Currently in Design/TIGER Contingency Project

Las Vegas Construction 6th St, Bridger Ave to Stewart Ave Downtown Bicycle/Pedestrian Improvements Phase II $1,400,000

Las Vegas Construction Las Vegas Blvd, Stewart Ave to Sahara Ave Currently in Conceptual Design/Complete Street $22,900,000

Las Vegas Construction Main St/Commerce St Downtown Couplet, I-515 to Las Vegas Blvd TIGER V, Currently in Design/Complete Street $18,000,000

Las Vegas Construction Decatur Blvd / Westmoreland Dr (Ped Actuated Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades (Under design) $75,000

Las Vegas Construction Decatur Blvd, US-95 to Lake Mead Blvd ITS Infrastructure $450,000

Las Vegas Construction Alexander Rd/Torrey Pines Dr Traffic Signal with ITS Package (design complete) $375,000

Las Vegas Construction Las Vegas Blvd, Stewart Ave to Owens Ave $13,000,000; Currently in Design/TIGER Contingency Project

Las Vegas Construction Shadow La, Alta Dr to Charleston Blvd Medical District Pedestrian Upgrades $1,000,000

Las Vegas Construction Buffalo Dr, Sky Pointe Dr to Grand Teton Dr Arterial Reconstruction #3 $1,400,000

Las Vegas Construction Cimarron Rd, Sky Pointe Dr to Grand Teton Dr Arterial Reconstruction #3 $1,050,000

Las Vegas Construction Elkhorn Rd, US-95 to Tenaya Wy Arterial Reconstruction #3 $1,200,000

Las Vegas Construction Meadows La, Decatur Blvd to Valley View Blvd Complete Street: Sidewalks, bike lanes, mid-block crossings, bus 
shelters (under design)

$1,000,000

Las Vegas Construction Charleston Blvd, Boulder Hwy to Nellis Blvd Construct 5 bus turnouts (design and R/W complete) $600,000

Las Vegas Construction Cliff Shadows Pkwy/Novat St Traffic Signal with ITS Package (under design) $375,000

Las Vegas Construction Bonanza Rd/Page St Traffic Signal with ITS Package (design complete) $375,000

Las Vegas Construction Smoke Ranch Rd, Jones Blvd to Rancho Dr Arterial Reconstruction #2 (under design) $1,000,000

Las Vegas Construction Charleston Blvd, Shadow Ln to Rancho Dr Medical District Pedestrian Upgrades $1,500,000

Las Vegas Construction Town Center Pkwy, Charleston Blvd to Summerlin Pkwy Arterial Reconstruction #3 $2,000,000

Las Vegas Construction Alta Dr, Decatur Blvd to Rancho Dr Arterial Reconstruction #2 (under design) $1,250,000

Las Vegas Construction Valley View Blvd, US-95 to Washington Dr Arterial Reconstruction #2 (under design) $250,000

Las Vegas Construction Washington Ave, Decatur Blvd to Rancho Dr Arterial Reconstruction #2 (under design) $1,000,000

Las Vegas Construction Alta Dr, Rainbow Blvd to Decatur Blvd Arterial Reconstruction #2 (under design) $2,250,000

Las Vegas Construction Lamb Blvd/Owens Ave Traffic Signal with ITS Package (design complete) $375,000

Wednesday, September 04, 2013 Page 4 of 8DRAFT

Attachment A



Entity Phase Project Notes Project Cost

Las Vegas Construction Smoke Ranch Rd / Maverick St (Ped Actuated Bi-Modal Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $90,000

Las Vegas Construction Street Lighting Upgrades (100) Light level upgrades to improve ped safety at night $350,000

Las Vegas Construction Rancho Dr/Decatur Blvd (N/S) Intersection Improvements $4,500,000

Las Vegas Construction Eastern Ave / Exley Ave Ped Actuated Flasher Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades (Under design) $75,000

Las Vegas Construction Decatur Blvd / Eldora Ave (HAWK Signal) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $200,000

Las Vegas Construction Charleston Blvd / Lamont Ave (HAWK Signal ) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades (Under design) $200,000

Las Vegas Construction Lake Mead Blvd / Arpa Wy (Ped Actuated Flasher ) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades (Under design) $75,000

Las Vegas Construction Street Lighting Upgrades (119) Light level upgrades to improve ped safety at night $416,500

Las Vegas Construction Smoke Ranch Rd / James Bilbray Dr (Ped Actuated Bi-Modal Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $90,000

Las Vegas Construction Street Lighting Upgrades (26) Light level upgrades to improve ped safety at night $91,000

Las Vegas Construction Lake Mead Dr / James Bilbray Dr (Ped Actuated Bi-Modal Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $90,000

Las Vegas Construction Rancho Dr / Redondo Ave (Ped Actuated Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $75,000

Las Vegas Construction Sahara Ave / Las Verdes St (Ped Actuated Bi-Modal Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $90,000

Las Vegas Construction Town Center Dr / Crestdale La (Ped Actuated Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $75,000

Las Vegas Construction Town Center Dr / Spring Gate La (Ped Actuated Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $75,000

Las Vegas Construction Buffalo Dr / Gilmore Ave (Traffic Signal) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades (Under design) $200,000

Las Vegas Construction Bonanza Rd/ Lillian St (Ped actuated flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $90,000

Las Vegas Construction Gowan Rd/ Shermcrest Wy (Ped Actuated Bi-Modal Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $90,000

Las Vegas Construction Street Lighting Upgrades (27) Light level upgrades to improve ped safety at night $94,500

Las Vegas Construction Curb Extensions (6) “bulb outs” adjacent to schools for pedestrian safety $270,000

Las Vegas Construction Curb Extensions (10) “bulb outs” adjacent to schools for pedestrian safety $450,000

Las Vegas Construction Curb Extensions (8) “bulb outs” adjacent to schools for pedestrian safety $360,000

Las Vegas Construction Street Lighting Upgrades (28) Light level upgrades to improve ped safety at night $98,000

Las Vegas Construction Martin L. King Blvd/Industrial Rd Connector, Oakey Blvd to Alta Dr Roadway Construction $9,615,000

Las Vegas Construction Rancho Dr, Bonanza Rd to Rainbow Blvd Roadway Construction $500,000

Las Vegas Design Gass Ave, Main St to Charleston Blvd Downtown Bike and Pedestrian Improvement Project $533,000

Las Vegas Design Lake Mead Dr / James Bilbray Dr (Ped Actuated Bi-Modal Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $15,000

Wednesday, September 04, 2013 Page 5 of 8DRAFT

Attachment A



Entity Phase Project Notes Project Cost

Las Vegas Design Smoke Ranch Rd / Maverick St (Ped Actuated Bi-Modal Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $7,000

Las Vegas Design Smoke Ranch Rd / James Bilbray Dr (Ped Actuated Bi-Modal Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $7,000

Las Vegas Design Gowan Rd/ Shermcrest Wy (Ped Actuated Bi-Modal Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $7,000

Las Vegas Design Decatur Blvd / Eldora Ave (HAWK Signal) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $27,000

Las Vegas Design Veterans Memorial Dr/Cultural Vista Pkwy Connector Roadway Construction $1,500,000

Las Vegas Design Rancho Dr / Redondo Ave (Ped Actuated Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $15,000

Las Vegas Design Las Vegas Blvd, Stewart Ave to Sahara Ave Complete Street $2,000,000

Las Vegas Design Charleston Blvd, Main St to Fremont St Complete Street $3,000,000

Las Vegas Design Sahara Ave / Las Verdes St (Ped Actuated Bi-Modal Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $7,000

Las Vegas Design Town Center Dr / Spring Gate La (Ped Actuated Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $15,000

Las Vegas Design Bonanza Rd/ Lillian St (Ped actuated flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $15,000

Las Vegas Design Town Center Dr / Crestdale La (Ped Actuated Flasher) Citywide Pedestrian Upgrades $15,000

Las Vegas Design Coolidge Ave, Main St to 4th St Downtown Bike and Pedestrian Improvement Project $233,000

Las Vegas Design 6th St, Bridger Ave to Stewart Ave Downtown Bike and Pedestrian Improvement Project $267,000

Las Vegas Design Carson Ave, Casino Center to 9th St Downtown Bike and Pedestrian Improvement Project $467,000

Las Vegas Design I-15 Frontage Roads, Washington Ave to Lake Mead Dr NEPA Clearance $2,500,000

Mesquite Construction Exit 118 (117.5) and Lower Flat Top Mesa, I-15 to Pioneer Blvd Roadway Construction $20,000,000

NDOT Construction Interstate 11, I-515 to US-95 Phase I- 20% match; $156,000,000 total project cost; currently in 
design

$31,200,000

NDOT Construction US95, Ann Rd to Durango Dr 20% match ; $32,000,000 total project cost $6,400,000

North Las Vegas Construction Decatur Blvd, Chuckwagon Ave to Lone Mountain Rd Pedestrian and Bicycle Improvements $180,000

North Las Vegas Construction Simmons St, Carey Ave to Lone Mountain Rd Currently in Design $10,080,000

North Las Vegas Construction Gowan Rd, Allen La to Losee Rd Sawtooth Infill $3,780,000

North Las Vegas Construction Centennial Pkwy/Donna St Rapid Flashing Pedestrian Crossings $67,725

North Las Vegas Construction Valley Dr, Cheyenne Ave to Tropical Pkwy Sawtooth Infill $3,780,000

North Las Vegas Construction Las Vegas Blvd/Bruce St Rapid Flashing Pedestrian Crossings $67,725

North Las Vegas Construction Las Vegas Blvd N, Evans St to Pecos Rd Pedestrian Safety Project $1,512,000

Wednesday, September 04, 2013 Page 6 of 8DRAFT

Attachment A



Entity Phase Project Notes Project Cost

North Las Vegas Construction Centennial Pkwy/Bruce St Rapid Flashing Pedestrian Crossings $67,725

North Las Vegas Construction Centennial/Black Oaks St Rapid Flashing Pedestrian Crossings $67,725

North Las Vegas Construction Alexander Rd/Arcata Wy Rapid Flashing Pedestrian Crossings $67,725

North Las Vegas Construction N. 5th St/Las Vegas Wash (N. of Craig Rd) Rapid Flashing Pedestrian Crossings $67,725

North Las Vegas Construction Las Vegas Blvd/Silver Nugget Rapid Flashing Pedestrian Crossings $67,725

North Las Vegas Construction Carey Ave, I-15 to Revere St Roadway Construction $2,480,000

North Las Vegas Construction Centennial Pkwy/Goldfield St Rapid Flashing Pedestrian Crossings $67,725

North Las Vegas Construction Losee Rd, Lone Mountain Rd to CC-215 Roadway Construction $15,120,000

North Las Vegas Construction N. 5th St, Alexander Rd to Centennial Pkwy Sawtooth Infill $2,335,000

North Las Vegas Construction Commerce St, Cheyenne Ave to Centennial Pkwy Sawtooth Infill $3,780,000

North Las Vegas Construction Centennial Pkwy, Losee Rd to Lamb Blvd Roadway Construction $1,326,000

North Las Vegas Construction Losee Rd at Lone Mountain Road Pedestrian Bridge $3,150,000

North Las Vegas Construction Losee Rd, Lone Mountain Rd to CC-215 Traffic Signal Install $1,575,000

North Las Vegas Construction Ann Rd/Commerce St Traffic Signal Install $1,050,000

North Las Vegas Construction Alexander Rd/Clayton Rd Traffic Signal Install $1,050,000

North Las Vegas Construction Gowan Ave/Commerce St Traffic Signal Install $1,050,000

North Las Vegas Design Commerce St, Cheyenne Ave to Centennial Pkwy Sawtooth Infill $350,000

North Las Vegas Design Revere St, Carey Ave to Colton Rd Sawtooth Infill $350,000

North Las Vegas Design Gowan Rd, Allen La to Losee Rd Sawtooth Infill $350,000

North Las Vegas Design Clayton Rd, Centennial Pkwy to Hammer Ln Roadway Construction $1,500,000

North Las Vegas Design Alexander Rd, N. 5th St to Losee Rd Sawtooth Infill $500,000

North Las Vegas Design Las Vegas Blvd N, Evans St to Pecos Rd Pedestrian Safety Project $150,000

North Las Vegas Design Carey Ave, Revere Rd to Pecos St Complete Street $500,000

North Las Vegas Design Las Vegas Blvd, Tonopah Ave to Lake Mead Dr Rehabilitation $800,000

RTC Construction Flamingo Rd, Boulder Hwy to Hualapai Wy TIGER V, BRT/Complete Street (w.NDOT) (currently in design) $13,000,000

RTC Design Maryland Pkwy, Stewart Ave to Russell Rd Study/Environmental/Initial Design $3,000,000

RTC FAST Construction Nellis Blvd, Lake Mead Dr to Flamingo Rd Upgrade Transit Signal Priority and Emergency Vehicle Preemption $1,433,750

Wednesday, September 04, 2013 Page 7 of 8DRAFT

Attachment A



Entity Phase Project Notes Project Cost

RTC FAST Construction CC-215, I-15 to Cheyenne Ave (Western) ITS Deployment $2,771,000

RTC FAST Construction CC-215, Tenaya Way to Aliante Pkwy (North) ITS Deployment $5,414,000

RTC FAST Construction Stewart Ave, Pecos Rd to Nellis Blvd Upgrade Transit Signal Priority and Emergency Vehicle Preemption $566,250

RTC FAST Construction CC-215, I-15 to I-515 (South) ITS Deployment $1,815,000

Grand Total: $692,078,300

Total # of Projects: 183

Wednesday, September 04, 2013 Page 8 of 8DRAFT

Attachment A



 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 Date: October 18, 2013 
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 

FROM: Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: November 13, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #13: Receive a Report on the Status of Future 1-11 and the Intermountain West 

Corridor Study – Informational item only 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary:   
 
The I-11 & Intermountain West Corridor Study is a two year coordinated effort between the 
Nevada and Arizona Departments of Transportation, in cooperation with the RTC of Southern 
Nevada, Maricopa Association of Governments,  Federal Highway Administration, and Federal 
Railroad Administration.  The study is evaluating the designated future I-11 between Phoenix, 
AZ and Las Vegas, NV, as well as potential connections north and south of that corridor.  Since 
the last board update, the team has completed the Level 1 screening to narrow down the range 
of alternatives in each study segment and held Stakeholder and Public to review the results of 
this analysis.  The project manager would like to provide an update on these results and the 
input receieved from agenency and public participants.     
 
Background: 
 
Many efforts, dating back at least to the early 1990’s, have shown a desire and need for  robust, 
efficient North-South corridors for North American trade.  In 1995, the CANAMEX Corridor was 
designated by Congress as a High Priority Corridor.  The corridor is defined as I-19 from 
Nogales to Tucson, I-10 from Tucson to Phoenix, US 93 in the vicinity of Phoenix to Las Vegas, 
and I-15 from Las Vegas to Canada.  The only portion of the CANAMEX Corridor that is not an 
interstate is US 93 between Phoenix and Las Vegas. However, this portion was designated as 
future I-11 in the passage of  MAP-21.  Several other high priority corridors are designated in 
the intermountain west that include connections between Nevada and the Pacific Northwest 
and/or Canada. 
 
The Arizona and Nevada Departments of Transportation felt it was critical to study the proposed 
I-11 in conjunction with potential north-south connections beween Mexico and Canada and have 
embarked on a two-year study to look at need, opportunities and constraints, including a 
Planning and Environmental Linkages effort to prepare portions of the Corridor for future 
environmental analysis. 
 
Analysis: 
 
Informational item 
 
  

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 



List of Attachments: (all can be found at http://i11study.com/wp/?page_id=237) 
 

a. I-11 & Intermountain West Corridor Draft Evaluation criteria (http://i11study.com/wp/wp-
content/uploads/2012/12/I-11_Draft-Level-2-Evaluation-Criteria_2013-10-09.pdf) 

b. Technical Memorandum:  Draft Level 1 Evaluation Results Summary 
(http://i11study.com/wp/wp-content/uploads/2012/12/I-
11_Draft_L1_Evaluation_Results_10-14-2013.pdf) 

 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Information item only. 
 
Prepared by: 
 
Sondra Rosenberg, Federal Programs Manager 
 
 

 

http://i11study.com/wp/?page_id=237
http://i11study.com/wp/wp-content/uploads/2012/12/I-11_Draft-Level-2-Evaluation-Criteria_2013-10-09.pdf
http://i11study.com/wp/wp-content/uploads/2012/12/I-11_Draft-Level-2-Evaluation-Criteria_2013-10-09.pdf
http://i11study.com/wp/wp-content/uploads/2012/12/I-11_Draft_L1_Evaluation_Results_10-14-2013.pdf
http://i11study.com/wp/wp-content/uploads/2012/12/I-11_Draft_L1_Evaluation_Results_10-14-2013.pdf


10/9/2013  Page 1 

Interstate 11 and Intermountain West Corridor Study 
Evaluation Criteria 
 

This document presents a proposed procedure for 
evaluating alternatives in the I-11 and Intermountain 
West Corridor Study. Figure 1 illustrates the corridor 
study area. The central segment, extending between 
the greater Phoenix and Las Vegas metropolitan areas, 
is known as the Priority Segment because congress 
designated this as a high priority corridor by 
establishing it as future I-11. This central segment, in 
turn, consists of three Priority Sections, designated 
from south to north as Priority Sections 1, 2 and 3. To 
the south of the central Priority Segment lies the 
Southern Arizona Future Connectivity Segment, 
extending from the southern fringe of metropolitan 
Phoenix to the Mexican border. Similarly, the Northern 
Future Connectivity Segment extends from the north 
edge of metropolitan Las Vegas to the northern border 
of Nevada and beyond. 
 
For purposes of this study, an alternative is defined as a 
specified alignment containing one or more specified 
modes (e.g., highway or rail) within one or more of the 
corridor segments. Part or all of an alignment may 
consist of, or contain, an existing transportation facility 
as well as other infrastructure, such as utilities. The 
evaluation process consists of a Level 1 and Level 2 
screening (Figure 2). The alternatives and evaluation 
screening will be discussed at a number of stakeholder 
partner meetings throughout different phases of the 
process (see Table 1).  

 
Table 1.  Stakeholder Partner Meetings 

Date Meeting Purpose 

August 2013 5 separate Geographic Stakeholder Partner 
meetings Discuss Universe of Alternatives 

October 2013 5 separate Geographic Stakeholder Partner 
meetings 

Discuss Level 1 Screening Results and 
Level 2 Screening Criteria 

December 
2013 

3 separate priority segment Geographic 
Stakeholder Partner meetings 

Discuss Level 2 Screening for 3 Priority 
Segments 

February 
2014 Joint Stakeholder Partner meeting Discuss Recommended Alternatives 

April 2014 Joint Stakeholder Partner meeting Discuss Implementation Plan, P&N and 
Business Case 

June 2014 2 Public Meetings Present draft Corridor Concept Report 

Figure 1.  Study Area Segmentation 

Attachment A



10/9/2013  Page 2 

 

Level 1 Analysis and Criteria 
Level 1 applies to the entire corridor: both the three Priority Sections and the Southern and Northern 
Future Connectivity Segments. As shown in Table 2, the Level 1 evaluation applies a small number of 
non-quantitative criteria to a comprehensive universe of alternatives. The purpose of this first level is to 
assess whether an alternative meets the Goals and Objectives of the project in order to: 

• Reduce the number of alternatives in the Priority Sections to a manageable number for more 
detailed evaluation, and  

• To help identify which corridor options (routes and modes) in the Future Connectivity Segments 
are the most promising candidates for long-term connections to Priority Sections 1 (Phoenix 
metropolitan area) and 3 (Las Vegas metropolitan area).  

 
  

Figure 2.  Evaluation Process 

Attachment A



10/9/2013  Page 3 

Table 2.  Level 1 Evaluation Criteria 
For use in all corridor segments. 

Each criteria will be rated on a scale of 1 – 5, with 1 being the lowest and 5 the highest score. 
 

Evaluation Category Proposed Criteria 

Legislation 1 
How well does the alternative meet the intent of legislative actions, 
including MAP-21 and the 1995 National Highway Systems Designation 
Act? 

System Linkage 

2 
How well does this alternative connect major national and international 
activity centers from Mexico to Canada through the Intermountain 
West? 

3 How well does this alternative most directly close gaps and/or develop 
missing linkages in the regional and national transportation network? 

4 How well does this alternative connect with adjacent segments/sections? 

Trade Corridor 5 How well does this alternative connect major freight hubs and high-
capacity transportation corridors? 

Modal 
Interrelationships 

6 How well does this alternative maximize opportunities for intermodal 
connectivity (highway, rail/transit, aviation)? 

7 How well does this alternative accommodate multiple modes in a shared 
alignment footprint (highway and rail)? 

Capacity/Congestion 
8 How well does this alternative relieve existing and projected congestion 

between and within the major activity centers in Nevada and Arizona? 

9 How well does this alternative align with existing conditions or proposed 
improvements at land ports of entry (as appropriate)? 

Economic Vitality 10 How well does this alternative support regional, state and national 
economic development goals? 

Project Status / 
Transportation 
Policy 

11 How well does this alternative comply with corridor-related actions 
taken to date? 

12 How well does this alternative conform to locally adopted transportation 
plans? 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

13 How compatible is this alternative with regional open space, 
conservation, and land management agency planning? 

14 How well does this alternative minimize environmental impacts (such as 
drainage, topography, species, and biological connectivity)? 

Land Use and 
Ownership 

15 How consistent is this alternative with regional land use and growth 
strategies? 

16 How compatible is this alternative with major land ownership patterns? 
Community 
Acceptance 17 How well is this alternative accepted by the local communities? 

Cost 18 What is the overall relative cost of this alternative, where 1 is the highest 
relative cost and 5 the lowest? 

 
 

Attachment A



10/9/2013  Page 4 

Level 2 Analysis and Criteria 
The Level 2 evaluation utilizes the same categories as those used for the Level 1 screening, however the 
criteria and performance measures will be quantitative where possible and depending on available data.  
Those for which suitable numerical data are not available will be assessed subjectively by professional 
planning or engineering judgment.   
 
The study team will use the Level 2 criteria to further evaluate alternatives that have been shown in 
Level 1 to be feasible and potentially beneficial to the two states. The Level 2 evaluation will apply only 
to the three Priority Sections. Depending on the initial screening results, some of the original 
alternatives may be modified or even hybridized at this time. The purpose of this evaluation is to 
identify two or more alternatives, including No-Build, for further planning and environmental work as 
part of the I-11 project development process. 
 
Table 3 lists the proposed Level 2 criteria belonging to each of eleven evaluation categories. These 
criteria are based on further development and elaboration of the Level 1 screening criteria. Some, but 
not all, of the evaluation criteria are expected to be amenable to quantitative measurement in Level 2. 
Those for which suitable numerical data is not available will be assessed subjectively by professional 
planning or engineering judgment. 
 
In both the Level 1 and Level 2 evaluations, either written explanations or numerical results for each 
alternative will be translated into a simple comparative rating scale such as graphic symbols in the style 
of “Consumer Reports.” For quantitative criteria used in Level 2, the numerical range that corresponds 
to each rating will be shown. If desired, the ratings can be converted to numerical scores (0, 1, 2, etc.) 
that can be totaled or used in combination with weights assigned to the criteria. Numerical weights, if 
appropriate, will be assigned using input from the Core Agency Partners. 

Modal Considerations 
Where possible, I-11 and Intermountain West corridor is envisioned to be a multi-use corridor—able to 
accommodate highway, rail and/or utilities. However, all of these modes have differing requirements. 
For instance, Interstate highways usually have a maximum grade rate of 6%, while freight rail has 1.5% 
maximum grades (2% for short distances) and some high-speed rail has grade rates in the 3% to 4% 
range. Water utilities require a downhill grade to be cost effective.  
 
Through this evaluation process, alternative rail alignments might need to be identified if it is 
determined highway and rail cannot feasibly share the same corridor.  Alternate parallel rail corridors 
will be proposed in those locations where a shared highway-rail corridor is not feasible. These rail 
corridors could consist of a combination of existing rail, new rail and new shared highway-rail corridors. 
These rail corridors will not be further analyzed as part of this study. 
 
The corridor alternatives will be evaluated based on how consistent they are with multiple uses. For 
instance, a particular corridor alternative could be an ideal candidate for both highway and rail, but if it 
fails to adequately connect with other reasonable highway or rail alternatives then it would not score 
well in the Modal Interrelationships category.  
 
 

 
  

Attachment A



10/9/2013  Page 5 

Table 3.  Level 2 Evaluation Criteria 
Each criteria will be rated on a scale of 1 – 5, with 1 being the lowest and 5 the highest score. 

 

Evaluation Category Proposed Criteria Proposed Approach 

System Linkage 

1A 
How well does the alternative 
connect to adjacent segments to 
the north? 

Qualitative Analysis - high/low score 
is given based on if the segment does 
or does not have the ability to 
connect to a recommended segment 
to the north. 

1B 
How well does the alternative 
connect to adjacent segments to 
the south? 

Qualitative Analysis - high/low score 
is given based on if the segment does 
or does not have the ability to 
connect to a recommended segment 
to the south. 

Trade Corridor 

2A 

What is the travel time from 
major population centers to land 
and water ports for access to 
international markets? 

Quantitative Analysis – identify which 
alternatives give the quickest access 
to national population centers and 
land and water ports to access 
international markets using the travel 
time output from the travel demand 
model. 

2B How well does this alternative 
serve regional goods movement? 

Quantitative Analysis - assess truck 
percentages by corridor section using 
regional model. 

Modal 
Interrelationships  
 

3A 
What percent of the corridor has 
sufficient opportunity for a multi-
use corridor? 

Quantitative Analysis - develop 
typical sections accommodating 
different modes/uses and determine 
what segments could reasonably 
accommodate all typical sections. 

3B 

How well does this corridor 
connect rail to major activity 
centers (transit hubs, aviation, 
etc.) and major freight hubs? 

Qualitative Analysis - identify the 
number of activity centers or freight 
hubs that the corridor traverses and 
could benefit from a rail connection. 

Capacity/Congestion 

4A 
What are the estimated travel 
time savings over No-Build 
(2040)? 

Quantitative Analysis - identify travel 
times between selected activity 
centers using regional models. 

4B What are the total vehicles miles 
traveled (VMT)? 

Quantitative Analysis - Identify 
corridor section VMT and regional 
VMT by facility type using regional 
models. 

4C What are the total vehicle hours 
of delay (vhd)? 

Quantitative Analysis - identify 
corridor section VHD and regional 
VHD by facility type using regional 
models. 

Attachment A



10/9/2013  Page 6 

Evaluation Category Proposed Criteria Proposed Approach 

4D 
How well does this alternative 
alleviate notable bottlenecks and 
hazards in the existing system? 

Quantitative Analysis - summarize 
V/C ratio from regional models in 
tabular and graphical form for 
corridor sections. 

4E What is the volume-to-capacity 
(V/C) ratio?  

Quantitative Analysis - summarize 
V/C ratio from regional models in 
tabular and graphic form for corridor 
sections. 

4G How well does this alternative 
serve regional person travel? 

Quantitative Analysis – based on 
statewide models to assess the 
number of long distance (>50 miles) 
person trips per alternative between 
activity centers using model trip 
tables. 

Economic Vitality 

5A 

How consistent is this alternative 
with local, regional and state 
economic development plans (as 
applicable, including tribal plans, 
if available)? 

Qualitative Analysis - 
High/medium/low rating given to 
alternatives based on how many 
economic development initiatives the 
corridor could support; initiatives 
identified from state and/or regional 
economic development plans and 
local economic development 
chapters of general/comprehensive 
plans. 

5B 
What are the expected long-term 
impacts to the regional 
economy?  

Qualitative Analysis - comparative 
evaluation based on a case study 
analysis of the economic benefits 
derived from infrastructure 
improvement projects in other 
regions. 

5C 

What are the expected short-
term impacts to the regional 
economy, as measured by the 
number of jobs (direct, indirect 
and induced) and economic 
output from construction related 
activities? 

Quantitative Analysis – based on 
input from IMPLAN model. 

5D What is the cost of delay? 

Quantitative Analysis – based on 
delay from the regional model 
multiplied by accepted factor for cost 
of delay. 

Project Status/ 
Transportation Policy 6A 

How well is this alternative 
consistent with short-term 
programmed transportation 
projects? 

Qualitative Analysis – what percent 
of alternative is documented in 
transportation plans. 

Attachment A



10/9/2013  Page 7 

Evaluation Category Proposed Criteria Proposed Approach 

6B 

How well is this alternative 
consistent with long-term 
transportation visions and plans? 
 

Environmental 
Sustainability 

7A 
How many major wildlife 
corridors and habitat areas are 
crossed by the alternative? 

Quantitative Analysis - based on GIS 
data layers. 

7B 
How many linear miles of areas 
of critical environmental concern 
(ACEC) are impacted? 

7C 
How many linear miles of slopes 
exceeding 12 percent are 
traversed?  

7D 
How many linear miles and/or 
acres of waterways, floodplains 
and aquifers are impacted? 

7E 
What is the general impact to air 
quality conditions with this 
alternative? 

Qualitative Analysis – high-level 
analysis based on quantitative factors 
such as vehicle miles traveled and 
congestion. 

Land Use and 
Ownership 

8A 

How consistent is this alternative 
with regional and local land use 
and resource plans (including 
tribal plans, if available)? 

Qualitative Analysis - 
high/medium/low rating given to 
alternatives based on consistency 
with land use and resource plans. 

8B 
How compatible is this 
alternative with major land 
ownership patterns? 

Qualitative Analysis - 
high/medium/low rating given to 
alternatives based on compatibility 
with land ownership patterns using 
GIS data layers. 

Community 
Acceptance 

9A 
How well is this alternative 
accepted by the Core Agency 
Partners? 

Qualitative Analysis - based on 
review of comments received on the 
alternative corridors. 9B 

How well is this alternative 
accepted by the Stakeholder 
Partners? 

9C How well is this alternative 
accepted by the general public? 

Cost 10A 

What is the order of magnitude 
cost for this alternative, including 
construction, 
maintenance/operations, and 
right-of-way?  

Quantitative Analysis – based on 
ADOT/ NDOT cost estimating tools 
plus an order of magnitude cost for 
ROW and a factor for O&M. 

 
 

 

Attachment A



 

MEMORANDUM 
 October 30, 2013   
TO: Department of Transportation Board of Directors 
FROM:  Rudy Malfabon, Director 
SUBJECT: November 13, 2013 Transportation Board of Directors Meeting 
Item #14: Old Business  
____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Summary: 
 
This item is to provide follow up and ongoing information brought up at previous Board 
Meetings. 
 
Analysis: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 

 
 Please see Attachment A. 
 
b. Monthly Litigation Report - Informational item only. 

 
 Please see Attachment B. 
 
c. Fatality Report dated October 30, 2013 - Informational item only. 
 
 Please see Attachment C. 
 
d. Summary of Agreements for Kimley-Horn & Associates and Transcore ITS, LLC  – 

Informational item only. 
 
 Please see Attachment D. 
 
List of Attachments: 
 
a. Report of Outside Counsel Costs on Open Matters - Informational item only. 
b. Monthly Litigation Report - Informational item only. 
c. Fatality Report dated October 30, 2013 - Informational item only. 
d.   Summary of Agreements for Kimley-Horn & Associates and Transcore ITS, LLC –  

Informational item only. 
 
Recommendation for Board Action: 
 
Informational item only. 
 
 

 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 

Phone: (775) 888-7440 
Fax:      (775) 888-7201 

 



Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

Nossaman, LLP Pioneer Program  9/23/09 - 7/1/13 9/23/2009  $                    125,000.00 

Legal and Financial Planning  Amendment #1 2/23/2010  $                       80,000.00 

NDOT Agmt No. P282-09-002  Amendment #2 10/6/2010  $                       30,000.00 

 Amendment #3 10/26/2010  $                       30,000.00 

 Amendment #4 8/31/2011  $                    365,000.00  $                630,000.00  $                  159,749.01 

Nossaman, LLP Project Neon  3/11/13 - 3/11/15 3/11/2013 1,400,000.00$                  

Legal and Financial Planning

NDOT Agmt No. P014-13-015

1,400,000.00$              $                  916,492.98 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT

1st JD 120C 00030 1B

 Contract # 3407 (Wells Wildlife Crossing)

 NDOT Agmt No. P082-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14

Amendment #1

3/1/2012

9/12/13

 $150,000.00

20,000.00 

 $                170,000.00  $                    37,810.43 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Peek Construction vs. NDOT

1st JD 120C 00032 1B

Contract # 3377 (Kingsbury Grade)

 NDOT Agmt No. P083-12-004

3/1/2012 - 3/30/2015

Amendment #1

Amendment #2

3/1/2012

2/18/13

9/12/13

 $150,000.00

$75,000.00

75,000.00 

 $                    300,000.00  $                300,000.00  $                    50,184.37 

Snell & Wilmer, LLP Construction Claims Williams Brother, Inc.

Contract # 3392 (Various in Las Vegas) NDOT 

Agmt No. P084-12-004

3/1/2012 - 6/30/14 3/1/2012  $                       30,000.00 

 $                  30,000.00  $                    26,822.50 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Carrie Sanders

8th JD - A-12-664693-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

NDOT Agmt No. P192-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/14 6/12/2012  $                    541,800.00 

 $                541,800.00  $                  468,681.11 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Gendall

 8th JD - A-12-666487-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

NDOT Agmt No. P325-12-004

6/12/12 - 6/12/14 6/12/2012  $                    541,800.00 

 $                541,800.00  $                  483,128.61 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust

 8th JD - 12-665880-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

NDOT Agmt No. P452-12-004

10/23/12 - 10/12/14 10/23/2012  $                    475,725.00 

 $                475,725.00  $                  440,461.71 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Catello Family Trust

 8th JD - A-12-671920-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

NDOT Agmt No. P476-12-004

11/16/12 - 11/30/15 11/16/2012  $                    449,575.00 

 $                449,575.00  $                  435,530.96 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA

 8th JD - A-12-658642-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

NDOT Agmt No. P508-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    455,525.00 

 $                455,525.00  $                  429,830.23 

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980

 8th JD - 

Project Neon - Las Vegas

NDOT Agmt No. P507-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    449,575.00 

 $                449,575.00  $                  432,519.07 

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF OCTOBER 16, 2013

Vendor Case/Project Name
Contract and Amendment 

Amount

Total Contract 

Authority

Contract Authority 

Remaining

Page 1 of 3

Attachment A



Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF OCTOBER 16, 2013

Vendor Case/Project Name
Contract and Amendment 

Amount

Total Contract 

Authority

Contract Authority 

Remaining

Chapman Law Firm NDOT vs. Highland 2000-I, LLC

 8th JD - A-12-671915-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

NDOT Agmt No. P501-12-004

 1/14/13 - 1/14/15 1/14/2013  $                    449,575.00 

 $                449,575.00  $                  420,762.28 

Laura FitzSimmons, Esq. Condemnation Litigation Consultation

NDOT Agmt No. P510-12-004

12/16/12 - 12/30/14 12/16/2012  $                    300,000.00 

 Amendment #1 8/12/2013  $                    850,000.00  $             1,150,000.00  $                  442,244.65 

Lemons, Grundy, Eisenberg NDOT vs. Ad America (Appeal)

 8th JD  - A-11-640157-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

NDOT Agmt No. P037-13-004

1/22/13 - 1/22/15 1/22/2013 $205,250.00 

 $                205,250.00  $                  161,117.74 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. Wykoff

8th JD - A-12-656578-C

Warms Springs Project - Las Vegas

NDOT Agmt No. P071-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013 $275,000.00 

 $                275,000.00  $                  108,374.39 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. Railroad Pass

8th JD - A-12-665330-C

Boulder City Bypass Project

NDOT Agmt No. P072-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                    275,000.00 

 $                275,000.00  $                  195,770.40 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs. K & L Dirt

8th JD - A-12-666050-C

Boulder City Bypass Project

NDOT Agmt No. P073-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                    275,000.00 

 $                275,000.00  $                  250,006.87 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. NDOT vs.  I-15 & Cactus

Cactus Project - Las Vegas

8th JD - A-12-664403-C

NDOT Agmt No. P074-13-004

 2/27/13 - 2/27/15 2/27/2013  $                    200,000.00 

 $                200,000.00  $                  194,165.00 

Sylvester & Polednak, Ltd. JYTYJK, LLC dba Wireless Toyz vs. NDOT 

8th JD A-13-681291-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

NDOT Agmt No. P127-13-004

 4/19/13 - 2/28/13 4/19/2013  $                    175,000.00 

 $                175,000.00  $                  168,709.70 

Watt, Tieder, Hoffar & Fitzgerald Pacific Coast Steel vs. NDOT

K3292 - I-580

2nd JD CV12-02093

NDOT Agmt No. P160-13-004

 4/30/13 - 4/30/15 4/30/2013  $                    275,000.00 

 $                275,000.00  $                    71,980.16 

Page 2 of 3

Attachment A



Contract Period Contract and Amendment Date

OPEN NDOT - OUTSIDE COUNSEL CONTRACTS AS OF OCTOBER 16, 2013

Vendor Case/Project Name
Contract and Amendment 

Amount

Total Contract 

Authority

Contract Authority 

Remaining

Sylvester & Polednak Fitzhouse Enterprises

(acquired title as Westcare)

8th JD - A-13-660564-C

Project Neon - Las Vegas

NDOT Agmt No. P201-13-004

 5/31/13 - 5/31/15 5/31/2013 290,000.00$                     

290,000.00$                 $                  224,259.81 

Chapman Law Firm 54 B LLC vs. Clark County & NDOT

8th JD - A-12-674009

NDOT Agmt No. P217-13-004

 6/6/13 - 11/30/15 6/6/2013 250,000.00$                     

250,000.00$                 $                  238,542.71 

Snell & Wilmer Meadow Valley Public Records

 Request K3399

NDOT Agmt No. P273-13-004

NDOT Agmt No. P273-13-004

 7/18/13 - 7/30/14 7/18/2013 $30,000.00

30,000.00$                   $                    25,554.90 

Kemp, Jones, Coulthard Nassiri vs. NDOT

8th JD A672841

NDOT Agmt No. P290-13-004

 7/17/13 - 6/30/15 7/17/2013 280,000.00$                     

280,000.00$                 $                  211,500.00 

Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT (Project Neon)

8th JD A640157

NDOT Agmt No. P291-13-004

 7/25/13 - 7/30/15 7/25/2013 200,000.00$                     

200,000.00$                 $                  119,968.10 

Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT

(Cactus Direct and Inverse)

8th JD A-10-631520-C & A-12666482-C

NDOT Agmt No. P292-13-004

 7/25/13 - 7/30/15 7/25/2013 250,000.00$                     

250,000.00$                 $                  221,767.40 

Chapman Law Firm Ad America vs. NDOT (South Point)

8th JD A-11-653502-C

NDOT Agmt No. P293-13-004

 7/25/13 - 7/30/15 7/25/2013 70,000.00$                       

70,000.00$                   $                    56,745.91 

Kemp, Jones & Coulthard NDOT vs. City of Los Angeles

8th JD A-13-687717-C

Boulder City Bypass Project

NDOT Agmt No. P405-13-004

 9/1/13 - 9/30/15 9/1/2013 250,000.00$                     

250,000.00$                 $                  250,000.00 

Sylvester & Polednak NDOT vs. Smith Family Trust

8th JD A-13-687895-C

Project Neon

NDOT Agmt No. P465-13-004

 9/7/13 - 9/30/15 9/7/2013 280,000.00$                     

280,000.00$                 $                  276,768.50 

* BH Consulting Agreement Management assistance, policy 

cecommendations, negotiation support and 

advice regarding NEXTEL and Re-channeling of 

NDOT's 800 Mhz frequencies.

6/30/12 - 6/30/16 6/30/2012  $                       77,750.00 

 $                  77,750.00  $                    76,340.00 

*  Pass Through - Federally mandated 800 MHz rebanding project fully reimbursed by Sprint Nextel.

Page 3 of 3

Attachment A



Page 1

Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - October 18, 2013       

Fees Costs Total
Condemnations
NDOT vs. 2.5 Acres @ Dean Martin, LLC   Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus
NDOT vs. AD America, Inc.  (Cactus - Direct)   Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 112,740.01$     25,200.36$      137,940.37$    
NDOT vs. Bawcon   Eminent domain - Elko
NDOT vs. Catello Family Trust, Carmine V.   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 12,608.25$       1,435.79$        14,044.04$      
NDOT vs. City of Los Angeles, et al.   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass
NDOT vs. Fitzhouse/Westcare  Eminent domain  - Project Neon 36,825.00$       28,915.19$      65,740.19$      
NDOT vs. Gendall Trust   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 54,534.61$       4,136.78$        58,671.39$      
NDOT vs. Highland Partnership 1980, LLC   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 13,390.00$       3,665.93$        17,055.93$      
NDOT vs. Highland 2000-I, LLC   Eminent domain  - Project Neon 26,505.11$       2,307.61$        28,812.72$      
NDOT vs. I-15 and Cactus, LLC   Eminent domain - I-15 Cactus 5,800.00$         35.00$             5,835.00$        
NDOT vs. Jenkins, Carrie, aka Carrie Sanders   Eminent domain - Project Neon 68,869.25 4,249.00 73,118.25$      
NDOT vs. Jericho Heights, LLC   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 386,440.00$     321,315.35$    707,755.35$    

NDOT vs. K & L Dirt Company, LLC   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 23,350.00$       1,643.13$        24,993.13$      
NDOT vs. KP & TP, LLC, Roohani, Khusrow   Eminent domain  - I-15 and Warm Springs 
NDOT vs. MLK-ALTA   Eminent domain - Project Neon 23,700.00$       1,994.77$        25,694.77$      
NDOT vs. Railroad Pass Investment Group   Eminent domain - Boulder City Bypass 65,775.00$       13,454.60$      79,229.60$      
NDOT vs. Smith Family Trust, et al   Eminent domain - Project Neon
NDOT vs. Union Pacific Railroad Co.   Eminent domain - Recnstr.  of SR 317
NDOT vs. Woodcock, Jack   Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 
NDOT vs. Wykoff Newberg Corporation   Eminent domain - I-15 and Warm Springs 130,875.78$     21,357.23$      152,233.01$    
Inverse Condemnations
54 B LLC   Inverse condemnation 8,523.03$         122.62$           8,645.65$        
AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (Cactus)   Inverse condemnation - I-15 Cactus 41,707.75$       24,997.94$      66,705.69$      
AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (NEON)   Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 292,560.00$     99,634.96$      392,194.96$    
AD America, Inc. vs. NDOT (SouthPoint)   Inverse condemnation - I-15 Cactus 40,585.85$       4,650.00$        45,235.85$      
JYTYJK, LLC dba Wireless Toyz vs. NDOT Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 5,505.25$         785.05$           6,290.30$        
MLK-ALTA vs. NDOT   Inverse condemnation - Project Neon 23,700.00$       1,994.77$        25,694.77$      
Nassiri, Fred vs. NDOT  Inverse condemnation
P8 Arden, LLC vs. NDOT    Inverse condemnation - Blue Diamond Road
Robarts 1981 Decedents Trust vs. NDOT   Inverse Condemnation - Project Neon 31,554.83$       1,792.21$        33,347.04$      
Rural Telephone vs. Dorsey Ln, NDOT   Public utility seeks permanent easement

Case Name J
u

Nature of Case Outside Counsel to Date

Attachment B



Page 2

Monthly Litigation Report to the Nevada Department of Transportation - October 18, 2013       

Fees Costs Total
Torts
Allstate Insur. vs. Las Vegas Paving;NDOT Plaintiff alleges property damage and negligence
Antonio, James S. vs. NDOT Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury
Ariza, Ana, et al. vs. Wulfenstein, NDOT Plaintiff alleges wrongful death
Austin, Renee vs. State, NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence causing personal injury
Chadwick, Estate of Lonnie Joe vs. NDOT 8    Estate alleges transfer of property w/o court order
Daisy Investments, LLC vs. State 8   Plaintiff alleges property damage and negligence
Discount Tire Company vs. NDOT; Fisher 8   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
Harper, Kenneth J. vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence/wrongful death
Lopez, Jewelee Marie vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
Marshall, Charles vs. State, NDOT   Plaintiff alleges personal injury
Mullen, Janet vs. NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges personal injury
NDOT vs. Tamietti   NDOT seeks injunct. relief to prevent closing access
Slegers, Gloria vs. NDOT 7   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
State Farm Fire and Casualty Co. vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence  to maintain roadway
Wang, Zexlang vs. NDOT   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
Contract Disputes
Peek Construction vs. State, NDOT      Plaintiff alleges delays on Contract 3377, SR 207 238,653.50$   11,162.13$     249,815.63$    
Peek Construction vs. State, NDOT      Plaintiff alleges delays on Contract 3407, US-93 127,946.00$   4,243.57$       132,189.57$    
Personnel Matters
Akinola, Ayodele vs. State, NDOT  Plaintiff alleges 14th Amendment  - discrimination
Cooper, Jennifer vs. State, NDOT 9   Plaintiff appeals trial verdict of alleged decrimination
Hettinger, Travis vs. State Employees  Plaintiff alleges wrongful termination
Lau, Stan vs. State, NDOT  Plaintiff is appealing termination

Cases Removed from Last Report:
* Bell, Katherine M. et al vs. NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
* Bennett, Blaine A. et al vs. NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
* Curtis, Alexandra, et al vs. NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
* D'Alessandro, Richard et al vs. NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
* Knox, Marissa et al vs. NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
* Knox, William, et al vs. NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
* Lee, Christopher et al vs. NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
* Schumacher, Jeanie et al vs. NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury
* Shirey, Stephen Michael et al vs. NDOT 2   Plaintiff alleges negligence and personal injury

*  Arising out of June 2011 Amtrak Accident

Case Name J
u

Nature of Case
Outside Counsel to Date

Attachment B



                                                                                                                                                  10/30/2013

TO: PUBLIC SAFETY, DIRECTOR NDOT,  HIGHWAY SAFETY COORDINATOR, 
NDOT TRAFFIC ENGINEERING, FHWA, LVMPD, RENO PD.

FROM: THE OFFICE OF TRAFFIC SAFETY, FATAL ANALYSIS REPORTING SYSTEM (FARS)

SUBJECT: FATAL CRASHES AND FATALITIES BY COUNTY, PERSON TYPE, DAY, MONTH, YEAR AND PERCENT CHANGE.

Yesterday Crashes Fatals Yesterday Crashes Fatals Crashes Fatals

10/29/2013 1 1 10/29/2012 1 1 0 0
MONTH 16 17 MONTH 14 14 2 3
YEAR 194 213 YEAR 197 218 -3 -5

CRASH AND FATAL COMPARISON BETWEEN 2012 AND 2013, AS OF CURRENT DATE. 

2012 2013 2012 2013

COUNTY 2012 2013 % 2012 2013 % Alcohol Alcohol % Alcohol Alcohol %

Crashes Crashes CHANGE Fatalites Fatalities Change Crashes Crashes Change Fatalities Fatalities Change

CARSON 0 4 400.00% 0 5 500.00% 0 2 200.00% 0 3 300.00%
CHURCHILL 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
CLARK 133 142 6.77% 148 153 3.38% 40 33 -17.50% 44 38 -13.64%
DOUGLAS 5 6 20.00% 7 6 -14.29% 2 2 0.00% 4 2 -50.00%
ELKO 11 3 -72.73% 12 4 -66.67% 3 0 -100.00% 3 0 -100.00%
ESMERALDA 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 2 0 -100.00% 4 0 -100.00%
EUREKA 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
HUMBOLDT 5 2 -60.00% 5 3 -40.00% 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00%
LANDER 4 0 -100.00% 4 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00%
LINCOLN 2 5 150.00% 2 5 150.00% 1 2 100.00% 1 2 100.00%
LYON 3 4 33.33% 6 6 0.00% 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00%
MINERAL 2 2 0.00% 2 2 0.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 1 100.00%
NYE 6 7 16.67% 6 10 66.67% 2 1 -50.00% 2 1 -50.00%
PERSHING 1 1 0.00% 1 1 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
STOREY 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%
WASHOE 22 15 -31.82% 22 15 -31.82% 9 3 -66.67% 9 3 -66.67%
WHITE PINE 1 2 100.00% 1 2 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00%

YTD 197 194 -1.52% 218 213 -2.29% 62 44 -29.03% 70 50 -28.57%
TOTAL 12 236 ----- -17.8% 259 ----- -17.8% 66 -33.33% 74 ----- -32.43%

2012 AND 2013 ALCOHOL CRASHES AND FATALITIES ARE BASED ON PRELIMINARY DATA.

COMPARISON OF FATALITIES BY PERSON TYPE BETWEEN 2012 AND 2013, AS OF CURRENT DATE.

2012 2013 2012 2013

COUNTY Vehicle Vehicle % 2012 2013 % Motor- Motor- % 2012 2013 % 2012 2013

Occupants Occupants Change Peds Peds Change Cyclist Cyclist Change Bike Bike Change Other Other

CARSON 0 3 300.00% 0 2 200.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

CHURCHILL 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

CLARK 88 76 -13.64% 35 37 5.71% 21 33 57.14% 1 4 300.00% 3 3

DOUGLAS 5 4 -20.00% 1 1 0.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0

ELKO 11 4 -63.64% 0 0 0.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

ESMERALDA 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

EUREKA 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

HUMBOLDT 3 3 0.00% 1 0 -100.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

LANDER 3 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

LINCOLN 2 4 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 1 1 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

LYON 5 4 -20.00% 0 0 0.00% 1 1 0.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0

MINERAL 2 1 -50.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 1 100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

NYE 4 7 75.00% 1 1 0.00% 0 2 200.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0

PERSHING 1 1 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

STOREY 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

WASHOE 9 5 -44.44% 7 4 -42.86% 5 6 20.00% 0 0 0.00% 1 0

WHITE PINE 0 2 200.00% 0 0 0.00% 1 0 -100.00% 0 0 0.00% 0 0

YTD 135 114 -15.56% 45 45 0.00% 33 45 36.36% 2 6 200.00% 4 3

TOTAL 12 156 -26.92% 58 -22.41% 38 18.42% 3 100.00% 4

Total 2012 259

CURRENT SAME DATE LAST YEAR # CHANGE

Attachment C



Agreement 
No Division Service Provider

Original 
Agreement 

Amount

Amount 
Remaining *

Type of 
Procurement Start Date End Date Description of Work

16813 Safety Kimley-Horn & Associates $1,500,000.00 $1,500,000.00 Request for 
Proposals 11/12/2013 12/31/2017

SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE OF MULTIPLE TASKS FOR THE STRATEGIC HIGHWAY SAFETY PLAN (SHSP)  
INCLUDING:
(1) SUPPORT FOR EACH OF THE FIVE CRITICAL EMPHASIS AREA (CEA) TASK TEAMS (IMPAIRED DRIVING, OCCUPANT 
PROTECTION, INTERSECTIONS, LANE DEPARTURES, AND PEDESTRIANS)
(2) SUPPORT THE NEVADA EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE FOR TRAFFIC SAFETY (NECTS)
(3) SUPPORT THE STRATEGIC COMMUNICATION ALLIANCE (SCA) AND THE ZERO FATALITIES PROGRAM
(4) SUPPORT THE INTEGRATION OF SHSP WITH OTHER TRANSPORTATION PLANS BY COORDINATING THE SHSP WITH 
REGIONAL AGENCIES’ TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAMS.                                                                                                                     
THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE APPROVED BY THE BOARD OF EXAMINERS. 

17013 Safety Kimley-Horn & Associates $620,000.00 $620,000.00 Request for 
Proposals 11/13/2013 12/31/2015

PERFORM ROAD SAFETY AUDITS (RSA) AND SAFETY ENGINEERING DESIGN SERVICES (SEDS) FOR THE CONTINUED 
SUPPORT OF THE HIGHWAY SAFETY IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (HSIP) AND THE NEVADA STRATEGIC HIGHWAY 
SAFTEY PLAN (SHSP)

39112 Traffic Operations Kimley-Horn & Associates $250,000.00 $1,705.43 Sole Source 9/26/2012 12/31/2013 TECH SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE FOR THE DEPARTMENT'S CENTRAL SYSTEM SOFTWARE (CSS). THIS IS THE 
PRECEEDING AGREEMENT TO P320-13-016 

32013 Traffic Operations Kimley-Horn & Associates $500,000.00 $500,000.00 Sole Source 10/14/2013 12/31/2015 ON CALL TECH SUPPORT AND MAINTENANCE OF THE DEPARTMENT'S CENTRAL SYSTEM SOFTWARE (CSS)

30712 Planning Kimley-Horn & Associates $214,957.00 $203,613.40 Request for 
Proposals 4/30/2013 12/31/2014 DEVELOPMENT OF LOCAL BICYCLE PLANS IN 12 COUNTIES

38211 Safety Kimley-Horn & Associates $384,764.00 $107,046.36 Request for 
Proposals 2/21/2012 3/2/2014

SAFETY CAPACITY.  TO:
(1) PROVIDE ADDITIONAL SAFETY RESOURCES TO NDOT SAFETY PROGRAMS
(2) BROADEN THE SAFETY DISCIPLINE BEYOND NDOT SAFETY ENGINEERING
(3) ENCOURAGE THE DEVELOPMENT OF A SAFETY CURRICULUM IN NEVADA'S UNIVERSITIES
(4) IMPLEMENT THE STATE-OF-THE-ART SAFETY PROCESS AND ANALYSES
(5) CODIFY SAFETY TRAINING PROGRAMS WITHIN THE DEPARTMENT.
PRIMARILY DEVELOP AND IMPLEMENT THE PROJECT DURING THE FIRST YEAR, ANDPROVIDE PROGRAM 
MONITORING AND SUPPORT DURING THE SECOND YEAR.

31210 Traffic Operations Kimley-Horn & Associates $498,842.48 $17,623.37 Request for 
Proposals 2/14/2011 12/31/2014 DEVELOP PLANS SPECIFICATIONS AND AN ESTIMATE PACKAGE FOR FAST PACKAGE D - FULL ITS INFRASTRUCTURE 

ALONG I-15 FROM CRAIG ROAD INTERCHANGE TO APEX

31310 Traffic Operations Kimley-Horn & Associates $497,934.10 $74,278.35 Request for 
Proposals 2/14/2011 12/31/2014 DEVELOP PLANS SPECIFICATIONS AND AN ESTIMATE PACKAGE FOR FAST PACKAGE F - FULL ITS INFRASTRUCTURE 

ALONG US95 FROM I-215 INTERCHANGE TO RAILROAD PASS

371-13 Traffic Operations Transcore ITS, LLC $5,500,000.00 $5,500,000.00 Request for 
Proposals 10/14/2013 12/31/2015 ADDING BANDWIDTH AND ADDITIONAL ACCESS LOCATIONS TO THE STATE OWNED LEVEL 3 FIBER OPTIC CABLE 

THAT CROSSES NEVADA ALONG I-80. 

104-12 Traffic Operations Transcore ITS, LLC $500,000.00 $500,000.00 Request for 
Proposals 10/11/2012 12/31/2014 ITS FIELD EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE AND SUPPORT, STATEWIDE

073-11 Traffic Operations Transcore ITS, LLC $8,920,003.00 $1,160,576.25 Request for 
Proposals 2/17/2011 12/31/2013 EXPANSION OF FAST PACKAGE B2 NETWORK ALONG US-95 FROM CHARLESTON BLVD TO US-95/I-215 INTERCHANGE 

IN HENDERSON, CLARK COUNTY. 

154-11 Traffic Operations Transcore ITS, LLC $200,000.00 $162,928.00 Request for 
Proposals 4/8/2011 12/31/2014

STATEWIDE REPAIR, RESTORATION, REPLACEMENT, AND SUBSEQUENT TESTING OF ITS SYSTEM TO VALIDATE 
READINESS, AND COLLECTION OF THE DAMAGES FROM THE RESPONSIBLE PARTY WITHIN OR ADJACENT TO 
EXISTING DEPARTMENT INTERSTATES, FEDERAL AND STATE HIGHWAY SYSTEMS.

Contract 
#3529 Construction Transcore ITS, LLC $1,753,671.20 $175,670.00 Invitation to Bid 4/15/2013 12/31/2013

SIGNAL SYSTEM MODIFICATION, SYSTEMIC REPLACEMENT OF 5 SECTION PROTECTIVE/PERMISSIVE HEADS TO 4 
SECTION PROTECTIVE/PERMISSIVE HEAD (UTILIZING FLASHING YELLOW ARROW). MULTIPLE INTERSECTIONS IN 
DISTRICT I (CITY OF LAS VEGAS) PACKAGE 1, IN CLARK COUNTY

Contract 
#3549 Construction Transcore ITS, LLC $870,935.40 $870,935.40 Invitation to Bid 11/12/2013 1/23/2014

THE PROJECT IS SIGNAL MODIFICATION INCLUDING SYSTEMIC REPLACEMENT OF 5 SECTION 
PROTECTIVE/PERMISSIVE HEADS TO 4 SECTION PROTECTIVE/PERMISSIVE HEADS UTILIZING A FLASHING ARROW ON 
MULTIPLE INTERSECTIONS IN CLARK COUNTY

* Note: this report is current as of the date above, however Service Providers often bill NDOT up to 3 months after work is completed.  Therefore this data may be up to 1 quarter behind actual numbers

Agreements and Contracts for Kimley-Horn & Associates and Transcore ITS, LLC
Nevada Department of Transportation

 as of 10/31/2013

Attachment D


	Agenda
	Item #3
	Item #5
	Attachment A

	Item #6
	Attachment A

	Item #7
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	Item #8a
	Item #9a
	Item #10a
	Item #11
	Item #12
	Attachment A

	Item #13
	Attachment A

	Item #14
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C
	Attachment D




